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Notice of Request for Proposal AHCCCS
Anzona Health Care Cost Containment Svstem
PAGE

SOLICITATION NO.: YH12-0001 1 701 East JefTerson, MD 5700
AHCCCS . -

OF Phoenix, Atzona 85034
164

Jﬂmcy Schultz Telephone: {6D2) 417-4629

Contracts and Purchasing Scction Telefax: (602) 417-53957

701 E, Jefferson, MD5700 E-Mail: Inmey Schuliz@azahcees.ov

Phoenix, Arzonn 85034 Issue Date: January 31, 2011

LOCATION: ARIZONA HEALTH CARE COST CONTAINMENT SYSTEM (AHCCCS)
Coutraets and Purchasing Section (First Floor)
701 E, Jet¥erson, MD5700
Phoenix, Arizona 85034

DESCRIPTION: ARIZONA LONG TERM CARE SYSTEM (ALTCS) ELDERLY & PHYSICALLY DISABLED
(E/PD) CONTRACT FOR CONTRACTORS

PROPOSAL DUE DATE;: April 1, 2011 AT 3 LML MST

Pre-Proposal Conference:

A Pre-Proposal Offeror’s Conference has been scheduled for Wednesdavy, February 9, 2011
from 3:30 AM to 4:30 PM, MST, The Conference will be held in the following location:
Gold Roaom, Third Floor

N 701 E. Jefferson Street

Phoenix, Arizonn

QUESTIONS CONCERNING THIS SOLICITATION SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE SOLICITATION CONTACT
PERSON NAMED ABOVE, IN WRITING VIA E-MAIL BY MARCH 4, 2011, AT THE LATEST. SEE SECTION |,
PARAGRAPH 11, FOR TIMELINES REGARDING SUBMISSION AND RESPONSE TO QUESTIONS.

In accordance with A.R.S. § 41-2501 {G.), which is incorporated hercin by reference, competitive sealed proposals will be received
at the above specified location, until the time and date cited. Proposals received by the correct time and date will be opened and the
name of cach Offeror will be publicly read,

Proposals must be in the actual possession of AHCCCS on or prior to the ihine and date and at the location indicated above,
Late praposals shall not be considerced.

Proposals must be submitted in a sealed envelope or packoge with the Solicitation Number and the Offcror's nome and address
clearly indicated on the envelope or package. All praposals mast be typewritten.  Additional instruetions for preparing a proposal
are inchuded in this solicitation document.

Persons with o disability may request a reasonable accommodation, such as a sign language interpreter, by contacting the
appropriste Procurement Agency. Requests should be made as early as possible to allow thine to arrange the accommodation. A

person requiring special accommodations may contact the solicitation contact person responsible for this procurement as identificd
above,

OFFERORS ARE STRONGLY ENCOURAGED TO CAREFULLY READ THE ENTIRE SOLICITATION.

CYE 12 ALTCS RFP
January 31, 2011



Notice of Request for Proposal AliCCes

Arirona Health Care Cost Containment Systent

PAGE
s SOLICITATION NO.: YH12-0001 2 701 East Jeflerson, MD 5700
N AHCCCS OF Phoenix, Arizonn 85034
160
OFFER
The undersigned Offeror hereby agrees to provide all services in accordance with the terms and requirements stated herein,
including all exhibits, amendments, and best-and-final offers (if any). Signature also acknowledges receipt of all pages indicated in
the Table of Contents,
Arizons Transaction (Sales) Privilege Tax License No.: Far clarification of this offer, contact:
NfA Name: Carclyn Rose
Federal Employer Identification No.:
139763092 Phone: 480-968-686G6

E-Mail Address:  CRose@iasishealthcare.com Fax:  $80-784-2933

Health Choice Arizona
Company Name

Signature of Perséin Authonized to Sign Offer

410 N. 4dth Street Suite 900 Carolyn Rose
Address Printed Name
Phoenix AZ 85008 CEO
N City State Zip Title
N
CERTIFICATION

Ry signature in the Offer section above, the bidder certifios:

The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices.
The bidder shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment in violation of Federal Executive Order 11246,
State Executive Order 99-4 or AR.S. §§41-1461 through 1465,
- The bidder has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give ot any time hereafler any economic opportunity, future employment, gift,
loan, gratuity, speciol discount, trip, favor, or service to a public servant in conncction with the submitted offer. Failure to provide
a valid signature affirming the stipulations required by this clausc shall result in rejection of the offer. Signing the offer with a
false statement shall void the offer, any resulting contract and may be subject to legal remedies provided by law.

The bidder certifies that the above referenced organization ___is{___Is not a small business with less than 100 employces or
has gross revenues of S4 million or less.

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER {to be completed by AHCCCS)

Your offer, including all exhibits, amendments and best-and- final offer (if any), contained hercin, is accepted.

The Contractor is now bound 1o provide all services listed by the attached contract and based upon the solicitation, including all
terms, conditions, specifications, amendments, etc., and the Contractor's Offer as accepted by AHCCCS,

This contract shall henceforth be referred 1o as Contract No. Y HI12-0001-

Awarded this day of 2011

Michsel Veit, as AHCCCS Contracting Oficer and not personally

CYE 12 ALTCS RFP
January 31, 3011
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Page 1 of 1 plus attachment

SOLICITATION AMENDMENT Arizona Health Care Cost Containment
o System (AHCCCS)
K Solicitation Number:  RFP YH12-000) 701 East Jefferson, MDD 5700
7 Phoenix, Arizona 85034
N~ Amendment Number | (Onc)
AHCCCS . . Contract Management Specialist:
Solicitation Due Date:  April 1, 2011 | Schulty. CMS
3:00 PM (MST) amey SChutts,

E-mail: Jamey Schultzi@azaheecs. gov

A signed copy of this amendment shall be included with the proposal, which must be reccived by AHCCCSA no
later than the Solicitation duc date and time. This solicitation is amended as follows:

I. The aitached Answers to Questions are incorporated as part of this solicitation amendment.

7N\
AN

Offeror herchy ackncwledges receipt and

h ! A This Solicitation Amendment is hereby executed this the pr
understanding of this Solicitation Amendment.

day of February, 2011, in Phoenix, Anzona,

CW@ &y, 401

Signature ¢ Date W

7
Carolyn Rose, CEO

Typed Name and Title Michael Veit
Health Choice Arizona Contracis and Purchasing Administrator
Name of Company

N
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* 2
Signature Page




Page 1 of ) plus attachment

SOLICITATION AMENDMENT Arizona Health Care Cost Containment
e System (AHCCCS}
‘ Solicitation Number:  REP YH12-0001 701 East Jefferson, MD 5700
7 Phoenix, Arizona 85034
s Amendment Number 2 (Two)
AHCCCS o ) Contract Management Specialist:
Solicitation Due Date:  Apal |, 2011 ; Schultz. CMS
3:00 PM (MST) amey Schuliz,
E-mail: Jamey. Schultzi@iazaheees.gov
{
A signed copy of this amendment shall be included with the proposal, which must be reccived by AHCCCSA no
later than the Solicitation due date and time. This solicitation is amended as follows:
1. The attached Answers to Questions are incorporated as part of this solicitation amendment.
7N\
N
Offeror hereby acknowledges receipt and This Solicitation Amendment is hercby exceuted this the 11"
unfferstandmg of this Solicitation Amendment. day of March, 2011, in Phoenix, Arizona,
/
CM«/ @424:;_— 401711 )
Signawre | Date M/
L4
Carolyn Rose, CEO
Typed Name and Title Michael Veit
Health Choice Arizana Contracts and Purchasing Administrator
Name of Company
VA
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Completion of all items
in Section G of RFP




N

N

REPRESENTATION AND CERTIFICATIONS OF OFFEROR
The Offeror must complete all information requested below.
1. CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY OF INFORMATION PROVIDED

By signing this offer the Offeror certifies, under penalty of law, that the information provided herein is true, correct and
complete to the best of Offeror's knowledge and belief. Offeror also acknowledges that should investigation at any time
disclose any misrepresentation or falsification, any subsequent contract may be terminated by AHCCCS without penalty
to or further obligation by AHCCCS.

2. CERTIFICATION OF NON-COERCION

By signing this offer the Offeror certifies, under penalty of law, that it has not made to any provider any requests or
inducements not to contract with another potential Contractor in relation to this solicitation.

3. CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE - ANTI-KICKBACK / LABORATORY TESTING

By signing this offer, the Offeror certifies that it has not engaged and will not engage in any violation of the Medicare
Anti-Kickback or the “Stark [” and “Stark II” laws goveming related-entity and compensation there- from. If the
Offeror provides laboratory testing, it certifies that it has complied with and has sent to AHCCCS simultaneous copies of
the information required to be sent to the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services. (See 42 USC §1320a-7b, PL 101-
239, PL 101-432, and 42 CFR §411.361.)

4. AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY

Authorized Signatory for Health Choice Arizona
[OFFEROR’S Name]

Carolyn Rose Chief Executive Officer

[INDIVIDUAL'S Name] [Title]
is the person authorized to sign this contract on behalf of Offeror.

S. OFFEROR'S MAILING ADDRESS

AHCCCS should address all notices relative to this offer to the attention of:

Carolyn Rose Chief Executive Officer
Name Title

410 N. 44" Street, Suite 900 480-968-6866

Address Telephone Number
Phoenix AZ 85008

City State ZIP

6. OFFEROR GENERAL INFORMATION
a. [f other than a government agency, when was your organization formed? 1990

b. License/Certification: Attach a list of all licenses and certification (e.g. federal HMO status or State certifications)
your organization maintains. Use a separate sheet of paper listing the license requirements and the renewal dates.

Have any licenses been denied, revoked or suspended within the past 10 years? Yes [ | No X
If yes, please explain.




AN

VAR

N

c. Civil Rights Compliance Data: Has any federal or state agency ever made a finding of noncompliance with any

civil rights requirements with respect to your program? Yes [ | No [X] Ifyes, please explain.

d. Accessibility Assurance: Does your organization provide assurance that no qualified person with a disability will
be denied benefits of or excluded from participation in a program or activity because the Offeror's facilities (including
subcontractors) are inaccessible to or unusable by persons with disabilities? (Note: Check local zoning ordinances for
accessibility requirements). Yes [ No [[]  If yes, describe how such assurance is provided or how your
organization is taking affirmative steps to provide assurance.

Health Choice Arizona works with facility management to assure we comply with the requirements of the

Americans with Disabilities Act. Additionally, we provide all reasonable accommodations.

e. Prior Convictions: List all felony convictions within the past 15 years of any key personnel (i.e., Administrator,
Medical Director, financial officers, major stockholders or those with controlling interest, etc.). Failure to make full and
complete disclosure shall result in the rejection of your proposal.

N/A

f. Federal Government Suspension/Exclusion:  Has Offeror been suspended or excluded from any federal
government programs for any reason? Yes [] No [X] Ifyes, please explain.

g. Provide the name(s) of the in-house or independent actuary, or actuarial firm used to assist in developing capitation
rates and / or reviewing published capitation rate information.

Kevin Lurito, Principal Services provided by Mercer Health & Benefits LLC
Name

2325 East Camelback Road, Suite 600 Phoenix A7
Address City State

h. Did any other firm or organization provide the Offeror with any assistance in making this offer (to include
developing capitation rates or providing any other technical assistance and/or reviewing published capitation rates)?
Yes X] No [] Ifyes, what is the name of this firm or organization?

Mark Heit, Principal Services provided by Sellers Dorsey

Name

230 South Broad Street Suite 1802 Philadelphia PA
Address City State

i.. Has the Offeror contracted or arranged for Management Information Systems, software or hardware, for the term of
the contract? Yes_[X] No [ ] Ifyes, is the Management Information System being obtained from a vendor? Yes _
DX No _[]_ If yes, please provide the vendor's name, the vendor's background with AHCCCS, the vendor's
background with other HMOs or managed care entities, and the vendor's background with other Medicaid programs.

Jay Dunlap Services provided by Landacorp a division of SHPS; 2080 East 20" Street, Suite 170 Chico CA

Landacorp has over 30 years of experience building and maintaining health care software with health care

systems and health plans. These plans utilize the tools provided in Landacorp’s software platforms to

enable collaboration for their members, the providers who serve them and their health plan medical

management staff. Landacorp is proud of their heritage in care management and remain committed to the

growth and evolution of care management technology and services to meet the needs of the Medicaid and

Long Term Care Populations.




In addition to Health Choice Arizona, Landacorp products (Care Radius, Care Affiliate, CareWise, Care

Find) are leveraged by many clients across the country including the State of Kentucky who utilizes

their platform to support Medicaid and Long Term Care medical management initiatives. Landacorp’s Care

Radius and legacy medical management software platforms provide the infrastructure for health plans

and systems that cover over 44 million lives, many of which are Medicaid and Long Term Care populations.

CareRadius is delivered with a unique, extensible configuration feature, the ‘Client Subsystem’, which

allows clients to segment their member population by their lines of business, plan types and contracts.

Reporting by government programs such as Medicare, Medicaid and FEHBP is accomplished by using this

Feature.

Below are some additional statistics on the clients Landacorp serves:

Thirteen of our clients are health plans serving a combined total of 44 million + lives today.

Total of 212 years of customer usage.

Average of 6.8 years of usage per customer.

92% year over year customer usage

7. FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

The Offeror must provide the following information as required by 42 CFR 455.103. This Financial Disclosure
Statement shall be prepared as of December 31, 2010. However, continuing Offerors who have filed the required
Financial Disclosure Statement to AHCCCS within the last 12 months need not complete this section if no significant

changes have occurred since the last filing.

a. Ownership: List the name and address of each person with an ownership or controlling interest, as defined by 42

CFR 455.101, in the entity submitting this offer:

Percent of
Name Address Ownership or Control
TASIS Healthcare Corp. 117 Seaboard Lane, Building E 100.00%

Franklin, TN 37067

b. Subcontractor Ownership: List the name and address of each person with an ownership or control interest in any

subcontractor in which the disclosing entity has direct or indirect ownership of 5% or more:

Percent of
Name Address Ownership or Control
N/A

Names of above persons who are related to one another as spouse, parent, child or sibling:
N/A

¢. Ownership in Other Entities: List the name of any other entity in which a person with an ownership or control

interest in the Offeror entity also has an ownership or control interest:
IASIS Healthcare Corporation

Health Choice Generations

Mountain Vista Medical Center




N

a

\N./‘b

SN

RS

St. Luke’s Behavioral Hospital

St. Luke’s Medical Center

Tempe St. Luke’s Hospital

Physician Group of Arizona

d. Long-Term Business Transactions: List any significant business transactions, as defined in 42 CFR 455.101,
between the Offeror and any wholly-owned supplier or between the Offeror and any subcontractor during the five-year
period ending on the Contractor’s most recent fiscal year end:

Describe Ownership Type of Business Dollar Amount
of Subcontractors Transaction with Provider of Transaction
N/A

e. Criminal Offenses: List the name of any person who has ownership or control intercst in the Offeror, or is an
agent or managing employee of the Offeror and has been convicted of a criminal offensc related to that person's
involvement in any program under Medicare, Medicaid or the Title XX services program since the inception of those
programs:

Name Address Title
N/A

f. Creditors: List name and address of each creditor whose loans or mortgages exceed 5% of total Offeror equity and
are secured by assets of the Offeror’s company.

Description Amount
Name Address of Debt of Security
N/A
g QOutstanding Legal Actions:

1. Are there any lawsuits, judgments, tax deficiencies or claims pending against your organization?
Yes [ 1 No [X Ifyes, provide details including the dollar amount.

2. Has your organization ever gone through bankruptcy? Yes [ ] No [X] If yes, provide the year.

11
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8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
a. Board of Directors: List the names and addresses of the Board of Directors of the Offeror.

Name/Title Address

N/A

b. Related Party Tramsactions: Describe transactions between the Offeror and any related party in which a
transaction or series of transactions during any one fiscal year exceeds 2% of the total operating expenses of the
disclosing entity. List property, goods, services and facilities in detail noting the dollar amounts or other consideration
for each transaction and the date thereof. Include a justification as to (1) the reasonableness of the transaction, (2) its
potential adverse impact on the fiscal soundness of the disclosing entity, and (3) that the transaction is without conflict of
interest:

i) Describe all transactions between Offeror and any related party which includes the lending of money, extensions of
credit or any investment in a related party. This type of transaction requires review and approval in advance by the
Office of the Director:

Description of Name of Related Party Dollar Amount for
Transaction and Relationship Reporting Period
Payment for medical services Mountain Vista Medical Center $4,494,831
Payment for medical services Tempe St. Luke’s Hospital $1,975,767
Payment for medical services St. Luke’s Medical Center $2.926,255
Corporate Fees/Information Services IASIS Healthcare Corporation $5,691,654
Administrative Expense Charged to HCG ~ Health Choice Generations $5,861,462
Justification:

Health Choice Arizona (HCA) is owned by IASIS HealthCare Corporation, which also owns the

hospitals listed above. HCA contracts with these facilities to provide medical services to its members.

The transactions are reasonable because the hospitals are reimbursed at or below 100% of AHCCCS

fee-for-service rates, as are other contracted hospitals in the HCA network. There is no adverse impact

on the fiscal soundness of HCA, as the services would be performed at other facilities were it not for

the TASIS facilities. The transactions are without conflict of interest because the hospitals are being

paid for performing necessary services at reimbursement rates that are consistent with rates that non-

TASIS hospitals are being paid.

Payment to JASIS Healthcare Corporation is for information systems services and infrastructure,

corporate management fees, insurance, tax and legal departments, and other administrative support.

The transactions are reasonable because HCA is reimbursing IASIS for mission-critical support

services and resources that are absolutely necessary for HCA to be operational. There is very little

potential impact on the fiscal soundness of HCA, because the intercompany charges make up a very

small percentage of HCA'’s operating expense. The transactions are without conflict of interest

because IASIS is being reimbursed at a very reasonable rate for performing mission critical services

for HCA. This is one of the reasons that HCA consistently maintains a very low administrative cost

ratio.

Transactions between HCA and Health Choice Generations (HCG) are for the purpose of

appropriately sharing administrative costs between the two health plans. Expenses are charged to

HCG in two ways, 1) allocation of shared expenses, and 2) direct charges for expenses paid by HCA

on behalf of HCG. The transactions are reasonable because they are either direct charges for specific

12
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HCG costs that were simply paid from the HCA accounts payable bank account, or they are

allocations for mission-critical services that HCG requires to be in business. The impact on the

fiscal soundness of the offeror is a positive one, as the sharing of administrative expense makes

HCA more cost effective, and any costs unrelated to HCA are charged to HCG directly, and entirely.

The transactions are without conflict of interest because HCG is being charged directly for its own

expenses, and shared expenses are being allocated based on a reasonable method. The allocation is

based on the revenue earned by each entity as a percentage of the combined total. Using revenue (as

opposed to member months, for example) as a basis for allocation ensures that more expense is

allocated to HCG per member, as HCG members are more labor and cost intensive. The dollar

amount listed for HCG above represents charges from HCA to HCG.

ii) List the name and address of any individual who owns or controls more than 10% of stock or that controlling has a
interest (i.e. formulates, determines or vetoes business policy decisions):

Has Controlling
Owner Or Interest?
Name Address Controller Yes/No

N/A

9. OFFEROR'S OFFSHORE PERFORMANCE OF WORK PROHIBITED

Due to security and identity protection concerns, direct services under this contract shall be performed within the
borders of the United States. Any services that are described in the specifications or scope of work that directly serve
the State of Arizona or its clients and may involve access to secure or sensitive data or personal client data or
development or modification of software for the State shall be performed within the borders of the United States.
Unless specifically stated otherwise in the specifications, this definition does not apply to indirect or “overhead”
services, redundant back-up services or services that are incidental to the performance of the contract. This provision
applies to work performed by subcontractors at all tiers. Offerors shall declare all anticipated offshore services in
the proposal.

N/A

END OF SECTION

13
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GSA 44 Capitation RALE ........coeviuiireiree ettt be et ns b s s obsceeteetonbebenessnensssasnas 16

GSA 50 Capitation RAE ......c.cceirieiriririreeieeeetcee ettt ettt st et es b et s st et e e nsnesen et eseanns 17
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AHCCCS Capitation Calculation For Rates for CYE12
EPD RFP Bid Submission

Service Category

Health Choice Arizona / GSA 42

Gross MIX Net

Nursing Facility
Share of Cost
Net Nursing Facility

$ 4,047.07 41.20% $ 2,038.19
- (290.22)

HCBS Home and Community
Net HCBS

$ 1,128.51 58.809

Acute Care Prior to Reinsurance $ 49517
Reinsurance Offset $ (186.69)
Net Acute Care $ 308.48
Medical Component * $ 2,720.02
Case Management 3 $ 123.05

Administration *

4.00% $ 121.19

Sub-Total of Scored Components $ 2,964.26
Risk/Contingency at 1% 3 31.51
Net Capitation $ 299577
Premium Tax (98% of Final Cap) - $ 61.14
Net Cap w/ Premium Tax '$ 3,056.91

Key
user input

user input using AHCCCS provided numbers

formula

Notes

1) Numbers reflect the bid submitted by Health Choice Arizona and are-on a Per Member Per Month

(PMPM) basis.

2) Scored component, must be within the range provided by AHCCCS or will not be accepted.
3) Scored component (no max, no range supplied).

4) Scored component. Bidder must enter admin as a %. Admin dollars will be a calculation. Max
admin accepted for bid is 8%. If bidders bid admin % above the max will not be accepted. Admin %

is calculated as: Admin / (Net NF + Net HCBS + Acute Care Prior to Rl + Case Management)
5) The above template must be provided for each GSA bid.

6) With bid submission bidder must submit an actuarial certification signed by a qualified actuary.

7) Bidder must use AHCCCS provided numbers for SOC, HCBS Mix % and Reinsurance Offsets

when submitting their bid.

15
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AHCCCS Capitation Calculation For Rates for CYE12
EPD RFP Bid Submission '
Service Category Health Choice Arizona / GSA 44
Gross MIX Net
Nursing Facility $ 4,983.01 3213% $ 1,601.04
Share of Cost $ (304.75)
Net Nursing Facility - $  1,296.29
HCBS Home and Community $ 1,053.58 67.87% $ 715.06
Net HCBS $ 715.06
Acute Care Prior to Reinsurance $ 493.25
Reinsurance Offset $ (106.81)
Net Acute Care $ 386.44
Medical Component * $ 2,397.79
Case Management ° $ 137.04
Administration * 400% $ 105.67
Sub-Total of Scored Components '$  2,640.50
Risk/Contingency at 1% $ 27.47
Net Capitation $ 2,667.97
Premium Tax (98% of Final Cap) $ 54.45
Net Cap w/ Premium Tax $ 2,722.42

Key
user input

'user input using AHCCCS provided numbers
formula

Notes

1) Numbers reflect the bid submitted by Health Choice Arizona and are on a Per Member Per Month
(PMPM) basis.

2) Scored component, must be within the range provided by AHCCCS or will not be accepted.

3) Scored component (no max, no range supplied).

4) Scored component. Bidder must enter admin as a %. Admin dollars will be a calculation. Max
admin accepted for bid is 8%. If bidders bid admin % above the max will not be accepted. Admin %
is calculated as: Admin / (Net NF + Net HCBS + Acute Care Prior to Rl + Case Management)

5) The above template must be provided for each GSA bid.

6) With bid submission bidder must submit an actuarial certification signed by a qualified actuary.

7) Bidder must use AHCCCS provided numbers for SOC, HCBS Mix % and Reinsurance Offsets
when submitting their bid.
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AHCCCS Capitation Calculation For Rates for CYE12
EPD RFP Bid Submission ’

Service Category

Health Choice Arizona / GSA 50

Gross MIX Net
Nursing Facility $ 541767  33.24% $ 1,800.83
Share of Cost $ (265.64)
Net Nursing Facility $ 1,535.19
HCBS Home and Community $ 1,664.21 66.76% $ 1,111.03
Net HCBS $ 1,111.03
Acute Care Prior to Reinsurance $ 534.53
Reinsurance Offset $ (195.45)
Net Acute Care $ 339.08
Medical Component 2 $ 2,985.30
Case Management ° $ 123.37
Administration * 3.00% $ 99.12
Sub-Total of Scored Components $ 3,207.79
Risk/Contingency at 1% $ 34.03
Net Capitation $ 3,241.82
Premium Tax (98% of Final Cap) $ 66.16
Net Cap w/ Premium Tax $ 3,307.98

Key
user input

user input using AHCCCS provided numbers

formula

Notes

1) Numbers reflect the bid submitted by Health Choice Arizona and are on a Per Member Per Month

(PMPM) basis.

2) Scored component, must be within the range provided by AHCCCS or will not be accepted.
3) Scored component (no max, no range supplied).
4) Scored component. Bidder must enter admin as a %. Admin dollars will be a calculation. Max

admin accepted for bid is 8%. If bidders bid admin % above the max will not be accepted. Admin %

is calculated as: Admin / (Net NF + Net HCBS + Acute Care Prior to Rl + Case Management)
5) The above template must be provided for each GSA bid.

6) With bid submission bidder must submit an actuarial certification signed by a qualified actuary.

7) Bidder must use AHCCCS provided numbers for SOC, HCBS Mix % and Reinsurance Offsets

when submitting their bid.
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AHCCCS Capitation Calculation For Rates for CYE12
EPD RFP Bid Submission '

Net Nursing Facility

Service Category Health Choice Arizona / GSA 52

Gross MIX Net
Nursing Facility $ 5,529.50 25.82% $ 1,427.72
Share of Cost $ (22308

HCBS Home and Community
Net HCBS

$ 1,536.81 74.189

Acute Care Prior to Reinsurance S 64541
Reinsurance Offset $ (229.85)
Net Acute Care $ 415.56
Medical Component * $ 2,760.20
Case Management ° $ 131.07

Administration *

4.00% $ 124.84

Sub-Total of Scored Components $ 3,016.11
Risk/Contingency at 1% $ 32.46
Net Capitation $ 3,048.57
Premium Tax (98% of Final Cap) $ 62.22
Net Cap w/ Premium Tax $ 311079

Key
user input

user input using AHCCCS provided numbers

formula

Notes

1) Numbers reflect the bid submitted by Health Choice Arizona and are on a Per Member Per Month

(PMPM) basis.

2) Scored component, must be within the range provided by AHCCCS or will not be accepted.
3) Scored component {no max, no range supplied).
4) Scored component. Bidder must enter admin as a %. Admin dollars will be a calculation. Max

admin accepted for bid is 8%. If bidders bid admin % above the max will not be accepted. Admin %

is calculated as: Admin / (Net NF + Net HCBS + Acute Care Prior to Rl + Case Management)
5) The above template must be provided for each GSA bid.
6) With bid submission bidder must submit an actuarial certification signed by a qualified actuary.
7) Bidder must use AHCCCS provided numbers for SOC, HCBS Mix % and Reinsurance Offsets

when submitting their bid.
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Kevin Lurito, FSA, MAAA

Government Human Services Consuiting
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Phoenix, AZ 85016

+1 602 522 6564
kevin.lurito @ mercer.com
www.mercer.com

Mr. Chris Coleman

Chief Financial Officer
Health Choice Arizona

410 N. 44th Street, Suite 900
Phoenix, AZ 85008

March 23, 2011

Subject: Actuarial memorandum for the contract year ending 2012 (CYE12) Arizona Long
Term Care System (ALTCS) bids

Dear Mr. Coleman:

In partnership with Health Choice Arizona (Health Choice), Mercer Government Human
Services Consulting (Mercer) has developed capitation rate ranges for use in developing
competitive bids for the CYE12 ALTCS Elderly and Physically Disabled managed care
program. This work focused on developing rate ranges for the following four Geographic
Service Areas (GSAs):

=  (GSA 42 - La Paz and Yuma counties

» GSA 44 — Apache, Coconino, Mohave and Navajo counties
=  GSA 50 - Pima and Santa Cruz counties

=  GSA 52 - Maricopa County

Data reliance

In developing the CYE12 rate ranges for each GSA, Mercer relied on the following data
sources and supplemental information:

Information provided by AHCCCS

= Encounter data

= Compiletion factors

= [mpact of encounter underreporting

» Audited and unaudited financial statements
Base period share of cost adjustments
Acute Care Only services exclusions
Benefit changes

Fee schedule changes

» Historical actuarial certification memos

Services provided by Mercer Heaith & Benefits LLC.

Consulting. Outsourcing. investments.
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March 23, 2011

Mr. Chris Coleman
Health Choice Arizona

CYE12 Home- and community-based nursing facility member mix assumptions
CYE12 share of cost per member per month (PMPM) offsets

CYE12 reinsurance offsets

Risk and contingencies margin

Premium tax

Information provided by Health Choice Arizona

AHCCCS acute care trends

= Development of case management PMPMs

Development of administrative requirement

Targeted managed care efficiencies for acute care services

Summary

Mercer developed CYE12 rate ranges for each of the four GSAs requested by Health
Choice. When feasible, Mercer performed checks for reasonability and consistency with the
various data sources and assumptions provided by AHCCCS and Health Choice. A
21-month base period encompassing all 12 months of CYE09 and the first nine months of
CYE10 was utilized as the base data for the development of the GSA-specific rate ranges.

Adjustments were applied to the base data to reflect only the populations and benefits
covered under the ALTCS program. For example, acute care services were excluded from
the base data for members who are not eligible for the ALTCS program. Additional
adjustments were applied to account for the following:

= Base period share of cost
s Benefit changes

= Fee schedule changes

= Prospective trends

= Efficiency adjustments

This process yields the gross medical PMPMs which are grouped into three major
components: (1) nursing facility services, (2) home- and community-based services and (3)
acute care services.
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Mr. Chris Coleman
Health Choice Arizona

Assumptions provided by AHCCCS are then applied by GSA to reflect the assumed CYE12
member placement percentages, the CYE12 share of cost offsets and the CYE12 assumed
reinsurance offsets.

Case management PMPMs and administrative requirements are provided by Health Choice
and reviewed for reasonability and consistency against current ALTCS Contractors. Finally,
loads for risk and contingencies and premium tax are provided by AHCCCS and loaded onto
the final net capitation rates by GSA.

As part of the CYE12 rate development process, ranges are provided to Health Choice for
each GSA in order to reflect the variability inherent in developing prospective capitation
rates. It is important to note that the midpoint of the rate range for each GSA reflects the
best estimate for expected costs based on the information provided. Any material changes
to the information utilized or the assumptions provided in developing the rate ranges may
require a restatement of the results presented in this certification.

For bids that are submitted between the lower bound and the midpoint of the CYE12
GSA-specific rate range, it should be recognized that the bid reflects more aggressive
assumptions related to lower trend assumptions, more aggressive savings resulting from
Contractor efficiencies, more aggressive case management assumptions and administrative
requirements, and potentially better than average risk selection. It is important that Health
Choice understands the impact of these variables and the results produced in the rate
development process. These results should be both reasonable and attainable to Health
Choice when determining the final bid submission for each GSA.

The final CYE12, GSA-specific rate ranges are detailed below.

. CYE12 Rate Range
GSA Counties Lower Mid Upper
42 La Paz, Yuma $2,963.43 $3,110.35 $3,263.17
44 Apache, Coconino, Mohave, Navajo $2,722.42 $2,854.44 $2,991.90
50 Pima, Santa Cruz $3,249.58 $3,416.42 $3,590.15
52 Maricopa $3,096.41 $3,215.08 $3,337.60

Note: Additional detailed documentation of the specific assumptions, rate impact, rate
development processes and disclosures for the CYE12 ALTCS rate ranges has been
provided to Healith Choice in a separate correspondence.
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Mr. Chris Coleman
Health Choice Arizona

Certification of final rate ranges

Mercer certifies that the CYE12 ALTCS rate ranges are developed in accordance with
generally accepted actuarial practices and principles by actuaries meeting the qualification
standards of the American Academy of Actuaries for the populations and services covered
under the managed care contract. Rates developed by Mercer are actuarial projections of
future contingent events. Actual costs will differ from these projections. Mercer has
developed these rate ranges in partnership with Health Choice Arizona for purposes of
submitting competitive bids for four GSAs in responding to the ALTCS CYE12 Elderly and
Physically Disabled Request for Proposal. The use of these rate ranges is not appropriate
for any other purpose other than that described in this certification and Mercer disclaims any
responsibility for the use of these rate ranges by any other parties for any purpose.

If you have any questions related to this certification, please call us at 602 522 6564 or
602 522 6567.

R 4 2ach Gt

Kevin Lurito, FSA, MAAA Zach Aters, ASA, MAAA

KL/ZA/RO/Im
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MORAL AND RELIGIOUS OBLIGATION

REQUIREMENT #2
Submil a statement of any moral and religious objections to providing any services covered under Section D, Program Requirements of the ALTCS RFP. If moral

and religious objections are identified describe, in as much detail as possible, all direct and related services that are objectionable. Provide a listing of the codes

impacted including but not limited to CPT codes, HCPCS codes, diagnosis codes, revenue codes, modifier codes, etc.

Health Choice Arizona has no moral or religious objections to providing any services covered under Section D,
Program Requirements of the ALTCS RFP.
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ORGANIZATION AND STAFFING

REQUIREMENT #3

Submit current resumes of key personnel as required in Section D, Paragraph 25, Staff Requirements and Support Services documenting their educational and
career history up to the current time. Include information on how long the personnel have been in these positions and whether the position included long term

care experience. If personnel are not in place, submit job descriptions outlining the minimum qualifications of the position(s). Each resume or job description is

limited to 2 pages.
Required Position Title used by Health Full Time/ | Name of Incumbent
Choice Part Time
Administrator/CEQ/COO Chief Executive Officer Full Time | Carolyn Rose, MA
Administrator/CEQ/COO Chief Operating Officer Full Time | Michael Uchrin. MBA, M.Eng.
Medical Director/CMO Chief Medical Full Time | Chukwuemeka Oranyeli, M.D.
Officer/Medical
Management Coordinator
Medical Director Medical Director Full Time | Rene Bartos, M.D., MPH
Chief Financial Officer/CFO | Chief Financial Officer Full Time Christopher Coleman, BS, BA
Pharmacy Pharmacy Director Full Time | Randy Hromika
Director/Coordinator
Dental Director/Coordinator | Co-Dental Director Part Time | Carole Ann Slencsak, DDS
Dental Director/Coordinator | Co-Dental Director Part Time Seymour Rosen, DDS
Compliance Officer Compliance Director Full Time | Kathy Harris, BS
Dispute and Appeals Medical Services Director | Full Time | Carol Allis, MBA/HCM, BS
Manager
Business Continuity Planning | Director of Information Full Time | Jesse Perlmutter, MBA, MHSM
Coordinator Systems / BCP Coordinator
Contract Compliance Officer | Compliance Director Full Time | Linda Ross, MBA
Quality Management Quality Management Full time Linda Beurle, RN, BSN
Coordinator Director
Performance/Quality Director of Performance Full time Joseph J. Schaller, BS
Improvement Coordinator Improvement
Maternal Health/EPSDT EPSDT Coordinator Full Time | Linda Ross, MBA
Coordinator
Maternal Health/EPSDT Vice President, Medical Full Time | Martha Olds, RN, MBA
Coordinator Management
Medical Management UM/Medical Management | Full Time | Delores Johnson, RN
Coordinator Coordinator
Behavioral Health Behavioral Health Manager | Full Time | Heidi Eccleston, LMSW
Coordinator
Member Services Manager Member Services Director | Full Time | Suzan Irmer
Provider Services Manager Provider Service Director Full Time | Carol Allis, MBA/HCM, BS
Claims Administrator Claims Director Full Time | Adrian Brown
Provider Claims Educator Provider Claims Educator | Full Time | Abby Catalan, ME
Case Management Case Management Full Time | Heidi Eccleston, LMSW
Administrator Administrator
Network Services Director Network Services Director | Full Time | Tommy Ashley
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Carolyn Rose, MA

Professional Experience

. Health Choice Arizona
B President and Chief Executive Officer, 11/1999 — Present

Responsible for executive oversight of all administrative and fiscal operations of Health Choice Arizona, a
managed care health plan and Health Choice Generations a Medicare Advantage Special Needs Plan.
Interfaces with the State of Arizona, CMS, government agencies, legislators, media, physicians, hospitals,
vendors, and plan membership.

Oversees the development of operating standards for each department, the development of annual budgets,
and the HCA response to AHCCCS RFP’s and Operation and Financial Reviews.

Assesses ongoing operations to ensure planning and implementation of necessary internal controls/intermnal
audits.

Reviews and approves all monthly, quarterly and annual management and financial reports, both internal and
AHCCCS, in conjunction with CFO.

Reviews monthly operation reports to identify potential trends and works with HCA management team to
develop and implement timely operational improvements.

IASIS Healthcare
Vice President, IPA/TPA/HMO Development & Operations, 9/1998 — 11/1999

Designed and implemented programs to coordinate IPA growth and development with IASIS hospital
strategy.

Assisted IPAs with delegated risk contracts by providing infrastructure to support contracts. This
infrastructure included medical technology, claims management systems, medical management systems, and
support for credentialing and physician database management.

Developed the IASIS Employee Health Plan TPA for the purpose of servicing health benefits needs of
employees.

Provided oversight for managed care “risk” contracting operations and HMOs owned or managed by IASIS
Healthcare.

Stamos & Associates
Partner, 1/1995 - 6/1998

L4

Partnered in a consulting firm based in San Francisco and New York City, the focus of which was health
system strategy and implementation of strategy.

Spent two years in New York area organizing medical groups and IPAs to approach the payor market in
partnership with hospitals.

Developed and implemented two “MSQOs” for the purpose of practice management and managed care
contracting.

Served as acting CEO for both organizations during the development and initial operational states.
Served on development team for nine IPAs across one large health system consisting of nine hospitals on
Long Island.

California Pacific Medical Group/California Pacific Medical Services Organization
Chief Executive Officer, 8/1989 — 1/1995

%

Founding CEO for IPA and MSO, which became one of the largest and most successful groups in Northern
California.

Merged four competing IPAs during merger of two hospitals.

The IPA was responsible for nearly 200,000 lives at global risk with all administrative services delegated.
Revenues for the professional fee and hospital components of contracts were in excess of $250 million
annually.

The IPA held commercial contracts by Medicare and MediCal.
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Education and Certifications
» Bachelor’s of Science Degree, University of Kansas
+ Master’s of Arts Degree, University of Kansas

Awards

» Scholarship Recipient, University of Kansas
+  University of Kansas Endowment Award
o Administrator Grant from NEY
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Michael J. Uchrin Jr., MBA, M.Eng.

Professional Experience

Health Choice Arizona
Chief Operating Officer, 9/2006 — Present

Responsible and accountable for the day to day health plan operations comprised of a Medicaid Plan
(~200,000 Covered Lives) with an associated Medicare Special Needs Plan with ¢lderly, long term care and
physically disabled populations(~4,200 Covered Lives). More specifically holds direct oversight and
responsibility of the Claims, Medicare SNP, Call Center / Member Service, and Information Technology
Divisions. Ensures technology initiatives are aligned with organizational strategies and objectives. Possess
lead role in communicating and coordinating initiatives and program implementations between the Arizona
Health Care Cost Containment System (AHCCCS) and Health Choice Anizona (HCA) Leadership. Specific
results attained include:
o Led a large member transition of over 80,000 members during service area expansion with no
interruptions in service.
« Led Successful PBM Migration from Caremark to ESI
o Led Successful RBM Implementation (MedSolutions)
« Development of 2 year Technology Plan aligning organization’s strategics and goals with enabling
technology initiatives by leveraging ITIL and COBIT Frameworks
o Integrated Care Management Software Solution to meet current Medicare/Medicaid
Requirements

» Developed strategy and tactical plans to re-engineer care management process
« Developed enhanced Program Integrity strategy and tactical plans
« Developed Medicare Star Rating Remediation Plan
o Successful AHCCCS Operational and Financial Reviews
o Led Policy/Procedure development and maintenance for both Medicaid and Medicare product
business
» Security and Controls Remediation leading to a successful Sarbanes Oxley (SOx) (NON 404) audit
from E&Y Auditors.
« Developed and Maintained comprehensive Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Plan
+ Re-Structure of Claims Organization resulting in improved financial and payment accuracy metrics
by over 200 basis points.
o Call Center re-organization and alignment of duties to achieve AHCCCS and CMS required key
performance indicators
« Implementation of IS and Network outreach strategies that led to an increase in electronic claims
receipts from 27% of total volume to 70% of total volume and EFT Payments from 32% of total
volume to 71% of total volume. :
» Developed Claims Process and Software Strategy the resulted in the increase of claims Auto- -
Adjudication rates from near 0% to over 46% in 9 months.
e Developed Integrated Provider Scheduling Program aimed at
o Reducing Re-Admits
o Increasing Performance Measures
Health Choice Arizona

" Chief Information Officer, 4/2005 — 8/2006

Responsible and accountable for Member Services Call Center Operations as well as the Information
Technology Department. Technology responsibilities included the planning, development and execution of
strategic and tactical technology initiatives to enable each business unit to carry out their objectives more
efficiently and effectively while reducing cost. Call center responsibilities included organizational structure,
staffing, as well as meeting key performance indicators for call abandonment and speed of answer that are
requirements of the AHCCCS contract. Successful initiatives included:

» Claims scanning strategy development and execution

o EDI strategy development and exccution

o Claims process re-engineering for the medical review and adjudication of claims rcccived

electronically
+ Medicare and Medicaid member retention strategy development and execution
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« Deployment of physician portal that enables providers to gain access to medical review criteria,
forms, reports as well as application modules to verify member eligibility, review claim status as well
as upload claims electronically

» Created in-house software development program to augment functionality of the claims and medical
management software platforms

o Agile Development Mcthodologies

Health Choice Arizona

Director, Information Systems, 5/2003 — 4/2005
Responsible for the planning, implementation, operation, security and maintenance of the Health Plan’s
Management Information Systems. Further capacities include development and management of capital and
operational budgets, vendor selection and governance, and new technology rescarch. Developed an agile but
aligned IT organization that is not only responsive to the health plan’s changing needs, but aligned to the
business units to ensure all initiatives are driven by business needs and meet the guidelines of strategic
initiatives. Large initiatives implemented to date include:

» Infrastructure Improvement:

Hub to Switch Technology,

Server Hardware Upgrade

Software Migration from Novel 3.1 to MS 2003 Server.

MS Office '97 Upgrade to 2003

Remote Conncctivity/Devices for mobile users
o Segregated Server Environments that enable Configuration Management

o Federal/State Guideline Compliance Projects
o HIPAA Compliant Transactions and Code Sets
o HIPAA Security

» Application Development / Improvements
o Thin Client Architecture
o Claims Adjudication Application edits and automation
o User Driven Reporting / Data Mining Applications

O 0 O 0 O

Health Choice Arizona

Senior Project Analyst, 11/2002 — 5/2003
Responsible for large project analysis, design, build, implementation, and management. Focused on building
documentation and communication channels between the business units and IS.

Venturi Technology Partners (Now Comsys)
Held Branch Manager and Analyst Positions, 8/1999 — 11/2002

Education

+  Master of Engineering, Software, Ira A. Fulton School of Engineering, Arizona State University
»  Master of Business Administration, W.P. Carey School of Business, Arizona State University

+ Change Management and Decision Support Systems classes, Keller Graduate School

+ Disaster Recovery Planning, Venturi Technology Partners

» Bachelor of Science, Geosciences with Geophysics Concentration, University of Arizona

»  MIS Minor, University of Arizona

Associations
+  Greater Phoenix Area CIO Council
+ GITA RFP Evaluation Team - Rural Arizona RHIO Facilitation Project
+  Advisor to the Rural RHIO Formation Project that is currently being implemented by GITA

Awards

»  Manager of the Year, 2004, Health Choice Arizona, INC.
» Starfish Award, 2003: Excellence in Community Service, Health Choice Arizona, INC
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Chukwuemeka Oranyeli, M.D.

Professional Experience

Health Choice Arizona/Health Choice Generations
Chief Medical Officer/Medical Management Coordinator, 05/2008 - Present

e Oversee and direct all medical management functions to include prior authorization services, medical
necessity/pharmacy reviews, medical assessments for appeals/grievances, claims and outlier review, inpatient
concurrent review, and day to day network and non-network physician and facility interventions.

o Ensure that appropriate inpatient and outpatient medical necessity criteria are adopted and consistently
applied.

e Develop, implement and monitor care coordination, disease management and case management functions.

e Monitor, analyze and implement appropriate interventions based on utilization data, including identifying and
correcting over or under utilization of services.

e Oversee the department Directors and Managers responsible for Medicare Advantage Special Needs Plan.

e Provide oversight and direction to the following staff. Medical Director, Vice President of Medical Services,
QMUM Director, and the Director of Pharmacy Services.

e Provide leadership and/or oversight of health plan committees to include QM/UM, Pharmacy and
Therapeutics, Credentialing, Medical Management.

¢ Provide oversight and direction for all medical management and medical coordination function.

» Provide oversight and medical necessity reviews for concurrent and retrospective inpatient and subacute level
member health care delivery.

e Oversce and assist the department Directors and Managers responsible for matemal child/EPSDT health
services, behavioral health services, dental services and transplant services.

¢ Provide guidance and direction to Quality and Utilization Management, including the arcas of health
performance measures, credentialing, delegation, HEDIS, performance improvement projects,
provider/member incentive initiatives and/or outreach.

o Assist Network and Medical Services departments with day to day network and non-network provider/facility
growth, development, communications and interventions.

¢ Ensure that Health Choice Arizona remains contractually compliant with AHCCCS 1n all areas, and adheres
to state rules and regulations pertaining to AHCCCS Acute Care contractor responsibilities.

La Paz Regional Hospital (LPRH)
Attending Physician / Medical Director, 12/2004 — 05/2008
» Manage patients in three outpatient offices affiliated with the LPRH, namely La Paz Family Practice, Bouse
Clinic, and Tni Valley Clinic.
«  Admit patients for inpatient care.
« Serve as medical director in two clinics (Bouse Clinic and Tri Valley Clinic).

Howard University Hospital Family Medicine Residency Program
Resident, 10/2002 - 09/2007
Intern, 09/2001 - 09/2002

Central Wits Health Region, Johannesburg, South Africa
Principal Medical Officer / District Surgeon, 01/1998 — 08/2001
+  Worked with a group of senior physicians in the outpatient family practice office. This was a
multidisciplinary polyclinic affiliated to a tertiary specialist care facility.

Chris Hani Baragwanath Hospital, South Africa
Senior House Officer / Medical Resident, 07/1996 — 12-1997
o Trained in a 3500 bed tertiary hospital, Intemal medicine department. Six months in internal medicine and six
months in the GIT as a senior house officer.
+ Another 3 months in general medicine and 3 months in ICU as medical resident.

Central Wits Health Region, Johannesburg, South Africa
Senior Medical Officer, 10/1995 — 06/1996
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« Worked in a multidisciplinary outpatient office which served as a family practice and primary care center.

Staff & Family Clinics, Federal Aviation Authority, Lagos, Nigeria
P Senior Medical Officer, 11/1993 — 09/1995
'\/ » Managed patients in a family practice outpatient clinic, under a team of family physicians.

Nigeria Airways Staff / Family Clinics, Lagos, Nigeria
Junior Medial Officer, 11/1992 — 10/1993
»  Worked with a group of senior family physicians in a multidisciplinary clinic with admission and
observational facilities.
+ This was part of a compulsory National Youth Service Corps program for University graduates.

Education and Certifications
» Diplomate in Family Medicine, American Board of Family Medicine
+ Diplomate in Family Medicine, Colleges of Medicine of South Africa
« Family Medicine Resident, Howard Univ Hospital Family Medicine Residency Program, 10/2002 — 09/2004
+ Family Medicine Resident, College of Medicine, University of Pretoria, 11/2000 — 08/2001
+ Principal Medical Officer / District Surgeon,Central Wits Health Region affiliated to University of
Witwatersrand, 01/1998 - 10/2000
+ Internal Medicine Resident, Chris Hani Baragwanath Hospital affiliated to College of medicine, University of
Witwatersrand, 07/1996 — 12/1997
« Senior Medical Officer, Central Wits Health Region affiliated to Univ of Witwatersrand, 10/1995 — 06/1996
+  Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery (MBBS), University of Nigeria College of Medicine
» Board Certified, American Board of Family Medicine, Dec. 2004
ECFMG (Educational Commission for Foreign Medical Graduates) certified
ACLS (Advanced Cardiac Life Support) certified
BLS (Basic Life Support) certified
7N Currently hold an unrestricted Medical License for the State of Arizona since October 2004. Passed the
USMLE, (United States Medical Licensure Examination) Steps 1, 2, Clinical Skills Assessment and Step 3
exams. :

Research Experience / Publications
» H. Pylori Infection — Acquisition in Children. South African Medical Journal (SAMI, 87 (6), 1997).

» In -Vitro Antibiotic Efficacy To Helicobacter Pylori. South African Medical Journal (SAMJ, 87 (6), 1997).

» Cross Sectional Study on Prevalence and Effects of Alcohol Consumption in Undergraduate Students of the
University Of Nigeria, Enugu Campus (1988). This was a compulsory requirement for completion of
Community Medicine Course.

Professional Memberships
o Member, Arizona Academy of Family Physicians (AzAFP)
» Delegate 2006, La Paz County, Arizona Academy Of Family Physicians
« Member, American Academy Of Family Physicians (AAFP)
+ Member, South African Academy of Family Medicine & Primary Care (SAAFMPC)
« Member, South African HIV Clinicians Society (SAHCS)
+ Member, Healthcare Professions Council of South Africa (HPSA)
« Member, Nigerian Medical Association (NMA)

Yolunteer Experience
»  Chief of Staff, Medical Staff, La Paz Regional Hospital, 01/2008 - 08/2008
+ Vice Chief Of Staff, Medical Staff, La Paz Regional Hospital, 10/2006- 12/2007
» Secretary, Medical Staff, La Paz Regional Hospital. 01/2006 — 12/2006
N +  Member Clinical Improvement Committee, La Paz Regional Hospital, 01/2005 — 08/2008
4 +  Medical Officer, Central Wits Health Region (SOWETO CLINICS), 11/1995 - 01/1996
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René E. Bartos, MD, MPH

Professional Experience

'\\"/ Health Choice Arizona
Medical Director, 2/2007 - Present

N

N

Oversee prior authorization decisions, review and sign Notice of Action (denial) letters.
Assist with Concurrent and Retrospective Review.

Develop and oversee Quality Management program and Performance Improvement.
Develop coverage policies and criteria for both Medicaid and Medicare lines of business.
Chair Quality/Utilization Management Committee and Credentialing Committee.
Develop and oversee the Child Health (EPSDT) Unit.

Oversee and implement activities to improve HEDIS performance measures.

Oversee and implement activities to improve Performance Improvement Projects (PIPs).
Represent health plan at Administrative Law Judge hearings for appeals.

Research and present Practice Guidelines present to the QM/UM Committee for adoption.
Assist in developing Discase Management programs.

Dcvelop and implement provider incentive Pay-for-Performance program.

Develop and implement member incentive programs.

Phoenix Health Plan/Community Connections and Abrazo Health Plan
Medical Director and Director of Quality, 8/2005 — 2/2007

Developed coverage policies and criteria for both Medicaid and Medicare lines of business.

Oversaw prior authorization decisions, reviewed and signed Notice of Action (denial) letters.

Directed Concurrent Review nursing staff, providing daily oversight and review of hospitalized patients.
Developed and oversaw Quality Management program.

Chaired Quality Management Committee, Credentialing and Peer Review Committee as well as Utilization
Review Committee.

Arizona Department of Health Services, Office for Children with Special Health Care Needs and Children’s
Rehabilitative Services
Medical Director, 3/2004 - 8/2005

Provided medical direction for the Office for Children with Special Health Care Needs (OCSHCN) and
Children’s Rehabilitative Services (CRS), including formulating medical policy and rules.

Represent OCSHCN and CRS at the national, state and local levels.

Consulted with other programs within the Department of Health Services, other state agencies and medical
organizations.

Provided advice and assistance regarding children with special health care needs and the programs that serve
them.

Coordinated programmatic activities and decisions with regional medical directors of CRS clinics and the
Arizona Health Care Cost Containment System (AHCCCS).

Conducted literature reviews and provided education to health care providers on best medical practices for
children with special health care needs and their families.

Prepared position statements and facilitated resolution of problems and appeals.

Developed and drafted program plans, budget requests, Icgislation and grant applications.

Arizona Department of Health Services, Division of the Office of Women’s and Children’s Health
Chief, Research and Statistical Analysis, 6/2003 — 3/2004

Directed evaluation and assessment activities with the Office of Women’s and Children’s Health, including
data analysis, technical assistance and guidance with program evaluation and planning.

Directed preparation of the Five-year Matemal and Child Health Needs Assessment and Arizona’s Annual
Title V Block Grant application.

Managed the Arizona Perinatal Trust contract.

Served on the Governor’s Commission Data subcommittee on Prevention of Violence Against Women.
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Pima County Health Department
Senior Public Health Officer, 9/2001-6/2003

Provided primary care, including physical exams and referrals to children and adolescents.

Provided family planning services to women, teens and the homeless throughout Pima County.

Served as the Medical Committee Chairperson for the Children’s Assistance Resource Event (CARE Fair), a
two-day event serving over 10,000 individuals.

Developed medical policies and guidelines for County Clinics.

Provided education to and serve as a resource for public health nurses and community providers.

Education and Certifications

Pediatric Residency, University of Arizona

M P H. in Matemal and Child Health, Johns Hopkins University School of Hygiene and Public Health
M.D., University of Michigan Medical School

B.S,, Biology, Summa Cum Laude, Michigan State University

Arizona Board of Medicine—unrestricted medical license

American Board of Pediatrics, board certified 10/24/2000, currently in progress for re-certification

Fellow, American Academy of Pediatrics, Section on Adolescent Health, Section on Community Pediatrics,
Section on Injury and Poison Prevention, Section/Committee on Children with Disabilities—Arizona State
Liaison

Publications

R

Goldblum J.R., Bartos R.E., Carr K.A, Frank T.S.: Hepatitis B and alterations of the p53 tumor suppressor
gene in hepatocellular carcinoma. American Joumnal of Surgical Pathology. 17.1244-1251.1993.

Frank T S , Bartos R E., Haefner H K., Roberts J.A., Wilson M.D., Hubbell G P.: Loss of heterozygosity and
overexpression of the p53 gene in ovarian carcinoma. Modern Pathology. 7:3-8.1994.

Cook S.M., Bartos R.E., Pierson C.L., Frank T.S.: Detection and characterization of atypical mycobacteria by
the polymerase chain reaction. Diagnostic Molecular Pathology. 3:53-58. 1994.

Caduff R.F., Svoboda-Newman S.M., Bartos R E., Frank T.S.: Comparative Analysis of Histologic
Homologues of Endometrial and Ovarian Carcinoma. American Journal of Surgical Pathology. 22 (3): 319-
326. 1998

Frank T.S., Johnston C.M., Bartos R E., Caduff R F.: Pattems of gene expression and loss in carcinomas of
the endometrium vary with histologic subtype (platform presentation, United States-Canadian Academy of
Pathology, 1994) Modern Pathology.7(1):88A.1994.

Research

Research Assistant, University of Michigan Department of Pathology 1992-1993Investigated tumor
suppressor gene alterations in endometrial, ovarian, and hepatocellular carcinoma and developed a protocol
for characterizing atypical mycobacteria utilizing DNA extraction, polymerase chain reaction, restriction
enzyme digestion, electrophoresis, southem blots, and immunohistochemistry studies.

Research Assistant, Harvard University Department of Biology 1988-1989Performed exercise physiology
studies, including determining the effects of exercise on mitochondria, oxygen consumption, lung capacity,
and other adaptations in the body. Performed gait studies and determined joint forces for various exercise
modalities (1.e., jumping, running, walking)

Molecular Biology, Independent study, Michigan State University 1988

Created a protocol for students to leam transformation, isolation, and mapping using the bacterial plasmid
PBR322.

Physiology Independent study, Michigan State University 1988

Performed endocrinology research presented at an international symposium in Madison, Wisconsin.
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Christopher M. Coleman, BS, BA

Professional Experience

Health Choice Arizona
Chief Financial Officer, 3/2005 — Present
» Oversee preparation and presentation of monthly, quarterly and annual financial statements as well as many
other ad hoc reports.
« Coordinate annual financial audit, direct staff to complete audit requests, and work directly with auditors to
address any outstanding issues.
o Participate in strategic planning and decision making for an acute care Medicaid health plan and a Medicare
Advantage Special Needs Plan.

Health Choice Arizona
Director of Finance, 9/2003 - 3/2005
o Oversaw preparation of monthly, quarterly and annual financial statements and presented results to senior
management.
o Coordinated annual budget process, directing the Accounting and Financial Analysis staff and working with
Directors from other departments.
o Managed workload, set priorities and performed quality control function for the Financial Analysis
Department.

Arizona Health Care Cost Containment System (AHCCCS)
Financial Consultant I11, 1/2002 - 9/2003

» Managed financial aspects of Arizona’s long-term managed care system, with an annual budget of over
$750,000,000.

« Monitored financial performance and solvency of contracted health plans, set payment rates for government
contracts, supervised two compliance auditors, and provided technical assistance on financial statement
preparation.

« Provided financial analysis and other reporting to executive management and the Arizona State Legislature.

Lifemark Corporation
Assistant Controller, 10/2000 - 12/2001
»  Oversaw preparation of financial statements and reported results to senior management.
o Supervised accounting staff for two health plans.
« Streamlined accounting processes and created new reporting tools using spreadsheet and database skills.

Lifemark Corporation
Financial Analyst, 11/1997 - 10/2000
« Gathered financial and statistical data for financial statement preparation, rate setting, and physician
contracting. v
« Provided trend analysis, revenue forecasts, and other support for annual budgets.
« Developed new reports for tracking profitability of physician contracts, estimating medical expenses, and
compiling cost data retrieved from database queries.

National Century Financial Enterprises
Financial Analyst, 4/1996 — 10/1997
» Evaluated the true value of healthcare receivables and set contractual rates for receivables purchasing
agreements.
+ Performed risk analysis and due diligence site visits of potential clients and reported findings to senior
management.
Monitored receivable balances of existing clients and provided ongoing reporting, identified problem clients
and wrote action plans for improving collections of Medicare, Medicaid, and other receivables.
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Saint Agnes Medical Center
Administrative Assistant, 7/1995 — 4/1996
+ Produced radiology reports, prepared x-rays for shipment to physician practices, connected physicians to
telephone radiology reporting system, and located lost x-rays and medical records.

Arizona Lost Boys Center
Volunteer Treasurer, Board of Directors, 6/2003 — 3/2006
« Served on the board of directors and as Treasurer for the Arizona Lost Boys Center, a non-profit community
center for Sudanese refugees.
e Performed all accounting functions including payroll, accounts payable, bank reconciliations and tax returns.

Education and Certifications
o Bachelor’s of Science Degree in Business Administration, California State University

o Bachelor’s of Arts Degree in German, California State University
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Randy Hromika

Professional Experience

>

Health Choice Arizona

Director of Pharmacy Services, 10/2008—Present
» Responsible for Medicaid, Medicare formulary development
«  Prior authorization process ,specialty pharmacy, pharmacy call center
« Pharmacy PBM operation

Medicis Pharmaceutical
Clinical Product Safety, 2/2006-2008
» Manage adverse event reports from clinical studies and marketed products
+ Maintain current awareness of US FDA drug and device regulations
o Communicate with healthcare professionals on reported cases of adverse events

Fry’s Food & Drug, Phoenix

Pharmacist/Manager (part time/full time), 6/1989—Present
o Perform professional duties and responsibilities with dispensing prescriptions
» Responsible for adherence to Federal and State Pharmacy laws
« Ensure prompt and courteous service by all pharmacy associates.

PCS Health Systems, 1984-1990 and 1998-1999
Director Clinical Services Western Region
« Provide leadership to team of Clinical Pharmacist Specialists responsible for detailing physicians on
formulary prescribing patterns and therapeutic interchanges
» Responsible for revenue of 2.1 million dollars
&/: « Accountable for budget, staffing, performance planning and report distribution
Sales Director
» Ranked in top five on national sales force
« Direct marketing responsibility for third party prescription drug programs as part of employee benefit for
insurance companies, HMOs and Fortune 500 companies
o Developed cost management analyses and recommendations to corporate clients identifying methods and
opportunities to reduce prescription costs
Manager Pharmacy Audit
« Responsible for monitoring and ensuring the integrity of the claims payment system
» Developed and implemented automated audit system and regional field auditor program
o Increased number of audits from 300 to 3000 and recoveries 700% while reducing costs

Health Resource Publishing Company
Senior Director of Retail, 1996-1998
« Sales and marketing of direct targeted customer drug information at point of sale to pharmacy chains and food
and drug stores. Increased sales by 40%
o Responsible for development and growth of westem region retail network
« Oversee installations, operations, staffing and monitoring of network compliance

Smitty’s Food and Drug Store Chain

Director of Pharmacy (Company sold), 1994-1996
« Responsible for corporate chain pharmacy revenue, purchasing, staffing and daily operations
o Accountable for all third party prescription programs and managed care network participation
« Ensure regulatory compliance of State and Federal pharmacy regulations

-
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National Data Corporation (NDC)
Regional Sales Manager, 1992-1994
+ Direct sales responsibility for on-line healthcare claims transaction services to pharmacy chains in Western
United States
o Increased sales 34 percent and maintained retention of client base
» Assured customer success through coordinated efforts of marketing and customer service representatives

Education and Certification
« Bachelor of Science degree, Pharmacy, Duquesne University
+ State Licensed Pharmacist: Arizona, Maryland, Pennsylvania
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Carole Ann Slencsak, DDS

Professional Experience

Health Choice Arizona
Dental Co-Director, 1/2006 - Present
» Coordinate dental activities of Health Choice and provide required communication between Health Choice
and AHCCCS.
« Perform dental preauthorization and claims review.
o Assist with writing and reviewing dental clinical guidelines.
» Report suspected provider fraud and abuse for further follow-up by Oral Health Program Manager.

Private Practice in Tempe and Scottsdale Arizona
Dentist, 01/1988 — Present

Bridgeway Health Solutions
Pharmacy Clinical Consultant,10/05 — Present

Independent Contractor for Various Hospital, Retail and Home Health Pharmacies
Staff Pharmacist, 02/1988 - Present

American Heart Association
Instructor, Advanced Cardiac Life Support, 09/1998 — 07/1991

The Ohio State University College of Pharmacy
Clinical Instructor, 7/1984 — 6/1986

Riverside Methodist Hospitals
Pharmacist, 9/1981 — 1/1988

The Central Ohio Poison Control Center
Poison Information Specialist/Pharmacist, 10/1981 — 7/1982

Education and Certifications
» Resident, Dental Anesthesiology, College of Dentistry/Department of Anesthesiology, The Ohio State
University Hospitals
+ Doctor of Dental Surgery and Bachelors of Science in Pharmacy, The Ohio State University
o State of Arizona: Dental Board, No. 3687; Pharmacy Board, No. 8979

Awards
» The American Dental Society of Anesthesiology Award
+ Dean’s List, Undergraduate Studies

Publications and Presentations
 Slencsak, CA, Nahata, MC, Camp, J: Effect of chlorophyllin on urinary odor in geriatric patients. Drug Intell
and Clin Pharm 1983; 17:732-34
+ Slencsak, CA, Nahata, MC: Monitoring digoxin levels in a group of nursing home patients. J or the Am
Geriatrics Soc 1982; 30:360
»  Oxygen Delivery Systems, The Ohio Dental Association Annual Session September 11-14, 1986.
+ Handling Office Emergencies, The Ohio State University Dental Assistants Lecture Scrics, August 6, 1986.

Organizations
« The Ohio State University Alumni Association

» The Ohio State University College of Dentistry Alumni Association
» The Ohio State University College of Pharmacy Alumni Association
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Additional Experience

Research involving the effect of fentanyl on the amnestic properties of midazolam in dental outpatient surgery
(07/86 - 08/87)

Clerkship in oral surgery, didactic and clinical experience (01/86 - 06/86)

Clerkship in intravenous sedation, participated in pilot program and helped to develop course for
undergraduate dental students (08/85 - 12/85)

Pedodontic Club member, volunteer, providing dental services to mentally and physically challenged children
(03/85 - 06/86)

Extern, The Medical College of Ohio, Department of Dentistry (07/85 - 08/85)

Conducted a drug study comparing the effectiveness of chlorophyllin versus placebo as a urinary deodorant
(06/81 - 07/81)

Monitored digoxin pharmacokinetics in nursing home patients (06/81 - 07/81)

Clerkship in geriatrics, The Ohio State University, Colleges of Medicine, Pharmacy and Nursing, member of
pilot program and coordinated course utilizing the team approach to medical care (05/81 - 06/81)
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Seymour L Rosen, DDS

Professional Experience

Health Choice of Arizona
Dental Co-Director, 2001-Present
o Coordinate dental activities of Health Choice and provide required communication between Health Choice
and AHCCCS.
e Perform dental preauthorization and claims review.
o  Assist with writing and reviewing dental clinical guidclines.
« Report suspected provider fraud and abuse for further follow-up by Oral Health Program Manager.

North Mountain Dentistry
General Dentistry, 1982-Present
o Provide diagnostic and comprehensive treatment planning, pedodontics, oral surgery, endodontics,
periodontics, fixed, removable, and implant prosthetics.
+ Business management of a 12 employee multi office dental practice.

Denta-Health of Arizona
General Dentistry, 1980 - 1982
« Provided general dentistry services.

Erie County
Pedodontist, 1978 — 1979
o Provided Pedodontic treatment in various school settings.

Education and Certifications
+ B.S. Biology, Chemistry, Brooklyn College
« Doctor of Dental Surgery , State University of NY at Buffalo School of Dentistry
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Kathleen Harris, BS

Professional Experience

Health Choice Arizona
Compliance Director, 8/2005 — Present

Oversee the Health Choice Arizona (HCA) Compliance Program and ensure compliance with the contractual
requirements of the Arizona Health Care Cost Containment System (AHCCCS) and federal law.

Coordinate the preparation and execution of specific contract requirements such as OFR’s, random audits, and
ad hoc visits.

Manage and oversee the day to day duties for provider claim disputes, member appeals, fraud & abuse, and
requests for hearings.

Oversee appropriateness and adherence to operation policies and procedures.

Coordinate and oversee cultural competency program.

Coordinate the tracking and submission of all contract deliverables and responses to AHCCCS inquiries.
Represent the company in appeals at the Administrative Law level.

MAXIMUS, Inc
Project Manager, 12/2003 — 8/2005

Managed the project and day to day duties of the Direct Service Claiming program for Arizona including
supervision of thirteen people.

Program serves over 250 Local Education Agencies in Arizona and generates an average of $1 million in
disbursement per week.

Program processes all claims and prepares claims for payment from AHCCCS and CMS,; issues checks to
LEA’s, program training, program updates and information, program promotion, compliance audits,
compliance to both State and Federal laws and rules, customer service, technical assistance to Submitters,
consulting services to AHCCCS, and comprehensive eligibility match process.

Program exceeded its financial projects in the first year of operations by 60%.

Mullen & Associates
Program Manager, 1/2000 - 12/2003

Managed the oversight responsibilities for the Administrative Clmmlng program for Arizona.

Managed the program and the day to day duties of the company’s fee-for-service billing and consulting
program.

Supervised staff of six people.

FFS program served up to 85 LEA’s in Arizona; approximately 45% of the participating LEA’s.
Administrative program served over 220 LEA’s in Arizona.

Health Choice Arizona
Grievance Coordinator / Fraud & Abuse Coordinator, 10/1996 — 12/1999

Managed all incoming grievances and appeals.

Researched and issued decisions on all grievances.

Represented the company in all appeals at the Administrative Law level.

Developed policy and procedure for Fraud & Abuse program within the company, as mandated by AHCCCS
contract.

Reviewed and prepared all incoming fraud referrals.

Managed Care Solutions
Grievance Coordinator, 1994 - 1996

Managed all incoming grievances and appeals for this company’s acutc AHCCCS-ontracted health plan and
its long-term AHCCCS-contracted health plan.

Researched and issued decisions on all grievances.

Represented the company in all appeals at the Administrative Law level.
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Samaritan Health Services

Account Representative IV, 1990 — 1994
+ Followed up and collected recoveries for AHCCCS-responsible patient accounts.
o Submitted grievances for accounts as necessary.
o Attended administrative hearings for accounts for appeals.

Education and Certifications

« Bachelors of Science in Business Management, University of Phoenix
« Member of National Health Care Anti-Fraud Association
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Carol Allis, BS Ed., MBA/HCM

Professional Experience

Health Choice Arizona
Provider Services Director, 2/2006-Present
» Responsible for daily operations of Health Choice Arizona Network Department and assuring that a sufficient
provider network is in place.
+ Implement and manage the network operations plan for the Arizona Health Care Cost Containment System
(AHCCCS) statewide contract.
» Respond to provider inquiries and assist providers in resolving problems.
o Assure that providers are educated about the AHCCCS program.
o Oversee contract development and negotiations with current and prospective providers.
» Maintain policies and procedures and oversee the quarterly provider and member newsletters.
« Work in collaboration with all departments and providers to ensure Health Choice Arizona maintains
adequate services to contracted providers and members statewide.

Health Choice Arizona
Director of Inpatient Utilization Management, 12/2004-2/2006
o Responsible for daily operations and training of all Utilization Specialists performing concurrent and retro
review for all acute admissions.
+ Provided ongoing education and training on acute care criteria to document medical necessity and continuity
of care.
« Worked in collaboration with all departments and providers.
« Responsible for daily operations of Case and Discase Management, tracking, trending and assigning referrals.
« Worked in collaboration with providers on special projects for members.

St. Luke’s Medical Center
Director of Case Management, 6/2001-12/2004

« Responsible for the daily operations and training of case managers performing utilization resource
management, case management, concurrent review, and discharge planning in collaboration with all
departments and physicians.

« Managed and facilitated the pre-admission screening program in cooperation with admitting physicians and
physician advisor. Provided ongoing education and training for case managers and physicians on interqual
critena.

« Interfaced and developed relationships with physicians, department directors and providers to ensure quality
and continuity of care.

« Maintained hospital/department policies and procedures, departmental budget, staffing, interqual training, and
hospital Medicare Liaison.

Geriatrix
Case Manager, 1/2001-6/2001
« Lead in the facilitation of the sub-acute case management program in collaboration with acute care case
managers, physicians, and nurse practitioners.
+ Pre-screened patients for sub-acute criteria and provided concurrent reviews for medical necessity and
discharge planning.

St. Luke’s Medical Center
Case Manager, 2/2000-12/2000
» Responsible for case managing a 25 patient case load. Duties included initial criteria assessment, concurrent
reviews, case management and discharge planning,.
» Provided weekend case management for all levels of acute care, as well as facilitated the pre-admission
screening for new patients.
+  Madec rounds with the hospitalist to initiate plan of care and facilitate timely discharge plans.
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Arizona State Veterans Home/Sonoran Rehabilitation and Care Center/Chris
RidgeVillage
Director of Social Service, 8/1994-2/2000
;o « Responsible for providing medical screening for sub-acute patients and discharge planning, as well as
completing annual reviews on long term residents to ensure quality of carc and quality of life standards of
care were followed.
« Interfaced with Department of Health Services, Area Agency on Aging, Managed Care, Medicare/Medicaid,
and Arizona Long Term Care during the implementation of Prospective Payment System.

Education and Certifications
o MBA/HCM, University of Phoenix
» BS Health Science and Physical Education, East Stroudsburg University

O

8
N

44



:\ e

Id
\/

Jesse Perlmutter, MBA, MHSM

Professional Experience

Health Choice Arizona
Director of Information Systems / Business Continuity Plan Coordinator, 8/2010 - Present

Lead all facets of the Information Systems Department, including staffing, budgeting and project planning for
the business analysis, infrastructure, and development teams

Ensure customer service focus for all staff in assessing and analyzing business needs, and aligning with
strategic objectives

Coordinate with new vendors to integrate outsourced processes

Maintain Business Continuity Plan, updating as processes, hardware and software configurations change;
coordinate testing of backup/restore and emergency processes; provide training for new employees regarding
emergency procedures.

Health Choice Arizona
Manager of Information Technology / Business Continuity Plan Coordinator, 12/2007 - 8/2010

Manage the activities of the development team to automate manual processes and make data more readily
available to management.

Manage infrastructure team to maintain a stable network, and resolve user hardware and software issues.
Maintain Business Continuity Plan, updating as processes, hardware and software configurations change;
coordinate testing of backup/restore and emergency processes; provide training for new employees regarding
emergency procedures.

Health Choice Arizona
Project Manager, 5/2007 — 12/2007

Developed and implemented a corrective action plan to increase the percentage of electronic claims received
from providers, resulting in an increase from 27% to 51% of all claims receipts.

Led implementation of project to consolidate printing and mailing of checks and remits via Emdeon Business
Services.

Implemented RightFax Fax Server to allow the high fax volume Prior Authorization department to send and
archive authorization responses more efficiently.

Health Choice Arizona
Business Analyst, 10/2006 — 5/2007

Managed implementation of National Provider Identifier project including system enhancements and
reporting progress to AHCCCS.

Assessed users’ needs and coordinated claims adjudication system enhancements with IT staff, management,
and outsourced developers.

Maintained project documentation per company policy; assisted in technical analysis and testing of system
changes.

Caremark
IT Project Management Intern, 5/2006 - 8/2006

Designed and developed software enhancements for HP Nonstop claims processing engine, resulting in
improved routing of 15 million claims per month.

Facilitated construction and testing of a new development environment for National Provider Identifier
project. '

Coordinated development efforts with business analysts, testing, infrastructure, and other technical teams.

Howell Sterling
»~~ Co-founder / Owner, 2/2002 - 10-2006

Created an online antiques business and grew the company to over $100,000 in revenue.
Managed company finances to maximize business tax deductions and minimize overhead.
Evaluated sales trends; purchased undervalued merchandise according to market demand.
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The 1Q Group
Web Designer, 10/2002 — 10-2004

Designed and produced over 700 dynamic advertisements for 150 life and health insurance carriers and
wholesalers targeting insurance agents and financial planners.

Acted as liaison with sales department to promote client relationships and increase contract renewals.

SalemGlobal Internet
Lead Web Developer, 10/2001 - 10/2002

Managed website architecture, design and development on over 75 client and in-house websites.
Supervised and delegated tasks to freelance developers and group of interns.

Education and Certifications

Bachelor’s of Science Degree in Industrial Technology, Arizona State University

Master’s of Business Administration Degree — Information Management Specialization,

W. P. Carey School of Busincss, Arizona State University

Master’s of Health Sector Management Degree, W. P. Carey School of Business, Arizona State University
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Linda M. Ross, MBA

Professional Experience

DIRECTOR OF PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT
HEALTH CHOICE ARIZONA, Phoenix, AZ, Aug. 2010 - Present

~ A managed care organization that provides healthcare to people in Arizona’s Medicaid Program, Arizona
Health Care Cost Containment System (AHCCCS).

~  Reports directly to the Chief Executive Officer to assist the company with defining and positioning new
and existing program and service opportunities for its” provider/hospital network, members and company
staff.

~  Collaborate with senior management team and other key personnel to develop customized solutions for
identified members.

~ Collect product and service feedback from stakeholders, and relay information to management to enhance
program strategy.

~ Assist the marketing function with the planning and executions of outreach activities, advertising, promotion,
and special events.

~ Participate with senior management staff in strategic planning processes. Develop tactical plans within area of

responsibility and oversee plan execution, including monitoring progress, adhering to budgets, and periodic
reporting to the CEO and senior management team.

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER - AACHC / EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, HEALTHCARE CONNECT, Sept. 2009 — Aug.
2010

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER, June 2004 - Sept. 2009

ARIZONA ASSOCIATION OF COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS (AACHC), Phoenix, AZ

~ Arizona’s Primary Care Association (PCA), advancing the expansion of Federally Qualified Health Centers
(FQHCs) and advocating for the health care interests of the medically underserved and uninsured.

~ Served as COO for 5 years and subsequently transitioned under new management to CFO role in 2009
while retaining shared services operation and assuming leadership of Healthcare Connect.

Provide executive leadership, directing 35 direct and indirect reports, building extensive external relationships, and
playing integral role in strategic planning and program implementation / management to meet organizational and
membership goals. Contribute to tactical planning, deliver presentations, and report to several boards.

Ensure cost-effective financial management, manage budgets totaling $1+ million, administer grant programs, and
ensure adherence to funding charter. Collaborate with COOs and CFOs of 36 members of the association statewide
with 150 sites, identifying and facilitating program needs; also assist HR and clinical groups.

~ Served as interim CEO during CEO’s 8-week medical leave and frequently serve as organizational
representative on behalf of CEO at national meetings. Served as only COO on CEO-only national steering
committee based on reputation for getting the job done.

~ Serve membership comprised of 36 health organizations with delivery sites statewide; includes 17 FQHCs.

- Introduced physician recruitment program that became one of the top programs countrywide to respond to
state’s chronic shortages and better meet demand for medical services at the community health centers.

- Increased attendees and related revenues 100% for regional 4-state annual conference.

- Implemented online registration and changes that improved effectiveness of training and conferences.

- Redesigned and developed publications and collateral to increase awareness and improve image.

~ Advocate for members, lobbying at the state and national level. Teamed with state Medicaid office to address

issues; includes securing $2 million for particular center through resolution of reimbursement issue.

~ Secure and administer grants for Healthcare Connect and the Association; such as $650,000 telemedicine
equipment grant and planning grants.
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~ Brought greater structure, enhanced compliance, and ensured clean audits by drafting and documenting an
array of new policies and creating policy manuals for various internal functions.

~ Implemented competitive bidding process and cultivated relationships to secure vendor discounts and
receive most favorable contract prices for the benefit of members.

ADMISSIONS COUNSELOR
UNIVERSITY OF PHOENIX ONLINE, College of Health Care & Nursing, Phoenix, AZ, 2003

Contributed to growth objectives, prospecting, relationship building, and follow up of inquiries. Clearly promoted
academic programs / quality within healthcare discipline.

~ Surpassed / met goals by differentiating programs from competitors and execution of marketing programs.

BUSINESS MANAGER, 1992-2002
MOTOROLA, GEG / SPS, Finance / R&D Departments, Scottsdale, Mesa and Tempe, AZ, 1982 -2002

Earned multiple promotions, ultimately progressing to business management role for different departments.

Directed staff of 10, oversaw financial activities, and maintained fiscal responsibility for multiple R&D and
engineering departments in worldwide locations with budgets totaling over $50M to maximize profits. Recruited,
hired, and assisted with training of 200+ employees. Centralized departmental purchasing, developed list of
preferred vendors and managed high-volume of vendor contracts. Held Secret Security Clearance for various
engineering projects.

~ Drove costs down and recovered substantial dollars:
— Reduced expenses 20% through cost-effective vendor negotiations.

— Saved as much as $1 million by uncovering and correcting erroneous purchase orders.

— Purchased software licenses at discount and sold interally to domestic and global company locations.
Served as key contact to vendors / internal customers for Preferred Vendor Software Program.

~ Conscientious in meeting budget parameters. Created and maintained expense and capital budgets, actual
versus budget analysis, variance reporting and general ledger journal entries.

~ Led a major relocation as well as contributed as team member on shutdown of fabrications operations within
required timeframe; included deploying employees / equipment and managing financial activitics.

~ Served in team-driven environment, identifying bottle necks, gaps, and solutions to boost efficiency.

~  Earlier positions included Manager, Production Control / Project Manager; created costing method for product
line development. Oversaw production control functions for R&D semiconductor department.

Education

MASTER OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION (MBA) in HEALTH CARE MANAGEMENT - 2008
Regis University, Boulder, CO

MASTER OF SCIENCE IN PROJECT MANAGEMENT - 1999
George Washington University, Phoenix, AZ

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE (B.S.) in BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION / ACCOUNTING MINOR - 1996
BACHELOR OF ARTS (B.A.) IN BUSINESS MANAGEMENT
University of Phoenix, Phoenix, AZ
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Linda Hale Beuerle, RN

Professional Experience

Health Choice Arizona
Quality Management Director, 04/2004 - Present

Oversee functions of the Health Plan’s Medicaid and Medicare Quality Management program, Credentialing,
and HEDIS.

Ensure individual and systematic quality of care and integrate quality throughout the organization.
Ensure provider network is credentialed.

Assure survey (AHCCCS and CMS) readiness.

Coordinate QM/PI plan development, monitoring and evaluation

Oversee recommendations for corrective actions and program development.

Coordinate disease management activities for diabetic members.

Investigate quality of care grievances and report conclusions to AHCCCS/CMS.

Educate staff on how to handle quality of care issues.

Participate in Corporate Advisory Board, QM/PIL, QOC and Credentialing Committees.

Evercare Select Health Plan
Quality Management Manager, 07/2002 - 04/2004

Provided oversight of the quality management department, which included all aspects of the quality
management program for both Medicaid (ALTCS) and Medicare members.

Audited all contracted providers (nursing homes, home health agencies, alternate care facilities) to assure
compliance with State and Federal guidelines pertaining to managed care; investigated member quality issues;
intcracted with external and intemal customers; facilitated performance improvement teams; orientated new
employees to QM.

Assured survey readiness for the health plan in quality.

Developed and participated in quality improvements projects (QIP/QAPI) for both State and Federal agencies.
Policy/procedure development; developed the Quality Management plan and work plan to meet State
(AHCCCS) requirements; developed Case Management plan.

Maricopa Integrated Health Systems Health Plans
Quality Management Manager, 10/2000 - 06/2002

Provided leadership and oversight of the managed care QM programs (including EPSDT, Matemal Child
Health and Credentialing) for four health care insurance products including Medicaid and Medicare, serving
over 60,000 members.

Regulatory oversight responsibilities; survey readiness.

Oversaw completion of CMS and AHCCCS clinical studies.

Acted as a managed care QM liaison (State and Federal) to healthcare agency departments, AHCCCS
administration, QM vendors and community agencies  (CMS, QIO, ADHS, APS).

Managed a department of thirteen members; mentored and provided orientation and training to QM
coordinators and other staff regarding managed care QM and risk management issues.

Chandler Regional Hospital
Performance Improvement RN, 3/2000 - 10/2000

Resource liaison for all aspects of performance improvement for the medical staff, department personnel and
administration.

Facilitated team meetings, prepared statistical data for presentation at Committees, chart review for
performance improvement (PI) indicators, in-serviced staff on PI tools and functions, chart review for HCFA,
interfaced with utilization management and risk management.

Phoenix Baptist Hospital
Risk Manager, 11/1999 - 2/2000

Handled all risk management activities for the hospital including claims, complaint resolution, and medical
record review; in-serviced/orientated staff on risk issues.
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Interacted with corporate and community attorneys.
Developed reports to inform various committees of risk management information.
EMTALA review, monitoring and data collection.

\_ Mutual Insurance Company of AZ
=" Senior Risk Management Representative, 5/1999 - 11/1999

Conducted risk management audits in office practices and acute care facilities. Reviewed medical records for
specific audits.

Responded to insured risk management situations via the "Hot Line" phone calls.

Conducted in-services on risk management topics for small groups.

Medical Mutual Insurance Company of Maine
Senior Risk Manager, 1/1997 - 5/1999

Initiated risk management needs assessment of acute care facilities, office practices and nursing homes;
reviewed medical records.

Designed and developed risk management surveys/tools.

Investigated, evaluated and solved risk management issues from members using the Internet, consulting with
attorneys, and networking intra-departmental (claims and underwriting).

Wrote risk management risk alerts and practice tips on topics of interest which was sent to members on a
quarterly basis.

Education of insured risk managers and other staff on topics such as EMTALA, infant abduction policies, fall
reduction programs, and other topics, in an effort to take a proactive approach to risk reduction.

Lockport Memorial Hospital
Quality Management and Risk Management Director/RN, 11/1987 - 12/1996

™
%

Coordinated all hospital quality improvement activities including risk management activities, safety, and all
aspects of physician credentialing.

Conducted risk management education for corporate orientation of new employees in risk management and
quality management.

Initiated methods for identification of patient care problems; received, evaluated and referred problem forms;
met with administration, department heads, and medical staff to discuss problems; analyzed computer data
and logs to identify problems.

Reviewed patient charts for mortality and morbidity review, blood usage review, surgical case review,
reportable incidents, and generic screening.

Evaluated and coordinated activities to ensure that the hospital was in compliance with the Joint Commission
standards and the department of health.

Prepared reports to administration on department activities including budgetary, staffing and planning.

Education and Certifications

Healthcare Administration curriculum in Master's degree program, St. Joseph's College, Windham, Maine
Bachelors of Science degree in Nursing, State University of NY at Buffalo

Associates degree in Science/Human Services, Eric Community College

Certified Professional in Healthcare Quality (CPHQ) since 1996

Member of AzAHQ, NAHQ

Arizona — Registered Professional Nurse

New York, Maine — Registered Professional Nurse (inactive)
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Joseph J. Schaller

Professional Experience

Health Choice Arizona
Director, Performance Improvement, 7/2005-Present

Created reporting system to track performance quality to identify arcas for improvement

Implemented processes to help healthcare providers improve quality performance measures

Reported clinical quality performancce measure data to management, and regulating bodics

Communicated clinical quality performance measure data to health care providers to facilitatc improvement
Coordinated tracking and reporting of all clinical quality performance measure data for the health plan
Developed analysis tool to gather data for evaluation of clinical quality performance measures for healthcare
providers

Performed statistical analysis of claims data to determine areas for improvement

Managed all requests for analysis of health care data for Medicaid health plan

Designed Provider Profile for analysis of performance quality of healthcare providers

Performed all financial forecasting and budgeting

Assisted in estimating new rates for the bid process to obtain new business

Analyzed contracts to assist network department on the most effective reimbursement strategies

Tracked claims data to determine areas for improvement of performance measures

Improved process for generating reconciliation data to determine profitability of different business segments
Developed new reporting processes for trending of enrollment and financial data

Encompass Holdings LL.C
Owner/Manager, 3/2004-7/2005

Assisted in transition of a company from the primary shareholder to his heirs upon the owner’s death
Coordinated all information provided to an appraiser for valuation of the company for estate tax purposes
Designed, built and implemented custom organization management system which allowed the company to
quickly identify the most productive lines in the organization and duplicate successful processes

Set up new accounting system and controls and performed all accounting duties for company

Managed day to day operations of organization including accounting, marketing and general business
management functions

Provided business consulting services to a company which split operations into three separate entities
Defined structure of new entities for company to stream line operational performance

Prepared and filed all corporate paperwork to set up Limit Liability Companies for new entities
Coordinated all tax and license application information for creation of new entities

Set up new accounting system, procedures and controls for accounting within and between each new
company

Designed and built custom purchase order tracking system to improve process quality for large local school
district

Implemented custom built commission tracking system for local insurance agency

Allied Waste Industries, Inc.
Senior Financial Analyst, 8/2002-2004

Forecasted future financial results using trending models and historical operational and financial data
Created custom automated retrieval reports to facilitate data analysis using Cognos Powerplay and Excel
Performed operational and financial analysis to help identify problem areas within the company and find
solutions

Internal Reporting Manager, 10/2000- 8/2002

Performed Price Volume Analysis to analyze quarterly changes in total company revenue and volume
Member of corporate budget team that developed new budget system to process and gather data from over
eight hundred business units to accumulate into total company budget package

Developed analysis tools to help managers more efficiently analyze the operating results of the company
Analyzed forecast information for rcporting to senior management
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Arizona Heart Institute, Ltd.
Comptroller, 9/1998 — 10/2000
» Managed the day to day functions of Accounting and Business Office staff including all billing, ollectlons
data entry, cash management, general ledger and financial reporting functions

» Designed and implemented clinic automation system to efficiently capture billing information at source to
help maximize the accuracy of medical charges and diagnosis submitted for payment from insurance
companies

Lifemark Corp.

Assistant Controller, 8/1997 —- 9/1998
+ Responsible for preparing monthly financial statements for Health Plan
+ Ensured that all account reconcihiation’s were complete and account balances were accurately stated
+ Participated in creating Health Plan budget and insured that the budgets were used in the financial reporting
process
» Implemented quality improvement in processes by establishing and organizing Assistant Controller’s
meetings
Financial Analyst Manager, 6/1996 — 8/1997
» Developed and implemented budgeting process for company
» Created and processed monthly financial package for distribution to Board of Directors and Senior
Management team
»  Worked with management team to develop costing model for business analysis and pricing of new and
existing contracts

Genetrix, Inc.
Controller, 11/ 1993 — 6/1996
+ Managed the day to day financial operations including financial reporting, general ledger, accounts pavable,
cash receipts, payroll and purchasing functions for the company
» Set up and serviced a custom information retrieval and financial reporting system for quality improvement
Financial Analyst, 9/1992 — 11/1993
+ Analyzed and consolidated yearly budget data to implement into the full company budget package for Board
approval
+ Developed and maintained procedures to reconcile the accounts receivable sub ledger with the accounting
software

Education and Certifications

»  Bachelor of Science Degree in Accounting, DeVry Institute of Technology
+ Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Operations, DeVry Institute of Technology
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Martha Olds, RN, MBA
Health Choice of Arizona 11/2010 — Present
Vice President of Medical Services & Medical Management Coordinator

Oversees all functions of the Medical Services department which include; Prior Authorization, Grievance, Utilization
Management, Case Management and Disease Management services. Manages end-to-end and has full accountability
for directing the development, evaluation and implementation of new medical management programs that support’s
Health Choice of Arizona’s organizational strategies.

CIGNA Health Plan 08/2009 - 11/2010
National Project Lead — Quality & Improvement

Oversees and directs the development evaluation and implementation of new or changing health care programs and
medical services for organization at the national level. Responsible for program execution and drives medical
program management for specific clinical programs. Negotiates with vendor to provide programs and product
development. Managers end-to-end and has full accountability for product, systems, installation.

Responsibilities included:

Drive project initiatives — Collaborative Accountable Care/Patient Center Medical Home/ACO
Provide consulting to field project leads for Southeast, Central and Western region of the US
Program development including:

Health Advocacy/Care Coordination/Case Management integrated model

Standard Key focus action plan definition from each initiative

Payment method

Future- Learning collaborative, enhancement of tools and processes

End to end program oversight and responsibility — includes and support of outcomes measurement
End to end project oversight as a consultative support of PCMH/CAC/ACO initiatives

Integrates initiatives with CIGNA internal partners and how Health Advocacy encompasses all systems and
integration with future and pending IT program rollout and enhancements

Sales support — growth and retention

Communications development and maintenance

CIGNA Medical Group Phoenix AZ — 4/2002 - 8/2009
Director of Operations — Population Health Management Department (PHM)

Oversaw and directed the design development, evaluation and implementation of clinical management service
programs. PHM health care services and programs support CIGNA’s national CMS “Medicare Select” contract and
NCQA quality improvement compliance requirements.

Responsibilities included:
Partners and negotiates with internal and external customers to provide programs and product development

1. Oversees programs deliverables while assuring programs meet CMS compliance requirements.
. Design and develop clinical program strategy component for CIGNA Medical Groups (CMG).

3. Achieve cost management PMPM and Low Net Cost goals as determined by CMG Bed Day
Management strategy.

4. Manage team of clinical managers through strategies and tactics identified in strategic plan.

5. Lead program design to highlight the value of CIGNA Medical Groups medical and specialty service
integration.

6. Serves as champion for clinical conditions provided through CMG disease management programs.

7. Develop and implement alternative programs such as CMS Special needs Programs (SNP), Chronic
Health Improvement Program (CHIP), Care Coordination, Transition of Care Nurse Program, and
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HomeBase Provider visit Program

Develop and implement alternative programs for improving health and wellness

9. Develop and apply telemedicine techniques for medical management for identified high-risk
customers

10. Develop and apply clinical support tools for an integrated disease management programs
(CHIP/SNP) that supports all interdisciplinary team members in managing a member’s care plan.

11. Develop and maintain appropriate clinical, evidence-based documentation that supports all
programs.

12. In association with marketing, develop supporting material that highlights competencies in cost and
clinical management.

@

2006 / 2007 Health Service Manager

Oversaw and directed the development of a new department Population Health Management (PHM). The department
included all Health Center RN Care Coordinators, Home Base providers and their supporting staff, CIGNA
hospitalist, Diabetic Education nutritionists and the support and development of all health/wellness programs.

2004 / 2006 Case Nurse Consultant

Developed additional High Risk Patient Management programs; such as Home Base provider visit programs for the
homebound and high risk hospital DC patients. Developed and managed the implementation of prioritized efforts
through the project lifecycle. Established a tracking and reporting system that dcmonstrated program measures of
success.

2002 / 2004 Case Manager Specialist

Developed RN Care Coordination Program and Implemented program across the 18 CMG Health Care Centers.
Utilized this new nursing role to leverage their collective strengths, expertise and best practice. Qutcome
improvements included improved

CIGNA Healthcare of AZ

1997 ~ 2002 Rehabilitation Vendor Manager

Independently Managed Capitates Medical Rehab vendors and participates with the development of vendor strategy
and standards. Assisted with the development and implementation of operational procedures.

1993 ~ 1997 Patient Care Coordinator

CIGNA In Patient Case Manager — Responsiblc for utilization review of acute admissions. Specialized in Acute
medical Rehab Catastrophic Case Management

Licensed in:
* Arizona Registered Nurse RN046371

Honor or award Grantor Issue Date
o Six Sigma Yellow Belt 6/2009
e Delta Mu Delta Honor Society 3/2006
* Graduated with Honors Western International University 5/200

EDUCATION

2006 — Masters of Business Administration — Western International University, Phoenix, AZ

2001 - Bachelors of Science Healthcare Systems Management — Western International University Phx AZ
1996 — Certified Rehabilitation Registered Nurse (CRRN)

1993 — Certified Quality Management, UR Management, and Risk Management

1975 — Associate Degree in Applied Science — Register Nurse — Clark State College — Springfield Ohio
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Delores Johnson, RN

Professional Experience

Health Choice Arizona
Concurrent Review Coordinator/Medical Management Coordinator, 2/2006 — Present

Responsible for day to day operations of the concurrent review process and inpatient utilization management.
Provide dircct oversight of concurrent review staff.

Ensure adoption and consistent application of appropriate inpatient medical necessity criteria.

Ensure appropriate concurrent review and discharge planning of inpatient stays is conducted.

Ensure policies and procedures are followed for inpatient concurrent, retrospective and pre-payment review.
Provide training and education to Utilization Review Nurses.

Assure department efficiency, implement, enforce and make decisions on established policies and procedures.

St. Luke’s Medical Center
RN, 8/1978 - 2/2006

Held positions as UR Case Manager for Medical/Surgical and Telemetry, and Behavioral Health.
Supervised the UR Case Managers.

Held positions as Staff Nurse in Pain and Stress reduction and Behavioral Health.

Staff Nurse Behavioral Health

Staff Nurse Adolescent Behavioral Health

Education and Certifications

School of Nursing, Pennsylvania Hospital

Certificate for Geriatric Nursing, Georgetown University

Undergrad classes — Humanities & Social Studies, Mesa Community College
Counseling courses — Arizona State University

Certificate — Coding Classes
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Heidi Eccleston, LMSW

Professional Experience

Health Choice Arizona
Behavioral Health Manager, 6/2006 - Present

Ensure provision of Mental Health benefits to categorically eligible members and coordinate such care with
medically necessary services for Medicaid Managed Care Plan and Medicare Advantage Special Needs Plan
Develop, implement, and monitor Health Choice Arizona Behavioral Health policies and procedures.
Participate in the identification of best practices for behavioral health in a primary care setting.

Coordinate care efforts of the member, Health Plan, Health Plan providers, and the Regional Behavioral
Health Authority (RBHA) according to AHCCCS Behavioral Health guidelines.

Implement and monitor Health Choice Arizona’s behavioral health services through documentation and data
reporting.

Phoenix Health Plan
Behavioral Health Coordinator, 9/2004 — 6/2006

Assisted health plan members in obtaining behavioral health services through the Regional Behavioral Health
Authority.

Identified community resources for members within the community to assist members in achieving
independence in their daily living.

Maintained a case load of individuals identified through the assessment process to be in need of assistance
with their daily medical and/or behavioral health care needs.

Worked in a team environment with other Case Managers developing treatment goals, discharge plans and
plans of care.

Value Options
Area Clinical Care Coordinator/Centro Esperanza Clinic, 3/2003 - 9/2004

Provided daily clinical oversight to all Clinical Liaisons and Case Managers.

»  Monitored discharge planning and service planning for enrolled consumers.
» Actively involved with the management team to identify and develop best practice procedures.
» Provided individual and group supervision to clinical staff.

Value Options

Team Lead/West Camelback Clinic, 3/2002 — 32003

Provided clinical supervision and oversight to a team of case managers.

Ensured all consumers on the team were receiving appropriate behavioral health care.

Monitored those consumers on Court Ordered Treatment to ensure the clinical team was following up with
the consumer on a monthly basis.

Participant of the management team to develop more efficient clinical operations for both consumers and
emplovees.

St Luke’s Behavioral Health Center
Therapist III/Intake and Assessment, 5/2000 - 3/2002

Provided psychiatric and chemical dependency assessments and level of care determination for adults,
adolescents and children.

Utilization of programs such as Substance Abuse Detoxification, Outpatient Chemical Dependency Programs,
Inpatient Psychiatric Hospitalization and Outpatient Partial Hospital Program:.

Conducted case reviews and consultation with managed care companies, public/private community based
agencies and contracted physicians.
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ComCare
Adult Case Manager 1, 2/1998 — 8/1998

Responsible for the coordination and monitoring of services of adults in the Behavioral Health System,
diagnosed with a Serious Mental Illness.

Participant in a clinical team setting.

Identified and implemented treatment and service plans.

Education and Certifications

Master of Social Work, Arizona State University
Bachelor of Arts in Sociology/Law, Criminology and Deviance, University of Minnesota
Licensed Master Social Work with the Arizona Board of Behavioral Health, License Number LMSW-11650
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Professional Experience

Health Choice Arizona
Member Service Director, 7/2007 — Present
Member Services Manager, 9/2006 — 7/2007
» Oversec member service operations and resolve complex member and provider issues and inquiries.
» Analyze call volume and assure that telephone abandonment rates and hold times meet or exceed AHCCCS
contract requirements.
»  Coordinate communications with members, educate members, and act as a member advocate.
+ Manage, motivate, train, and coach member service staff to assure that members are given the best care
possible.
» Maintain member data base and oversee verification of member enrollment.

Express Scripts
Manager Prescription Processing, 7/2005 - 9/2006
» Managed Supervisors, Pharmacists and Pharmacy Technicians in the day to day Operation of entering an
average of 15,000+ prescriptions for 300+ accounts daily. Main account handling for the Department of
Defense.
» Responsible for meeting daily, monthly and yearly metrics of each individual account.
» Provided oversight for all facets of prescriptions from imaging, entering, exceptions, escalations, adjudication
and verification, utilizing 8 different computer applications.
o Interacted with all levels and numerous departments throughout the company, locally and nationally.
Communicated and reported to high ranking Military Personnel on a regular basis.

Olympian Labs Inc.
National Sales Manager, 2004-2005
C ' » Responsible and accountable for the daily operation of inbound/outbound sales, customer service, and key
’ accounts maintenance for over 13 thousand direct sale accounts calls.
« Direct oversight of 10 inside and outside sales reps responsible for selling nutraceutical vitamins and
supplements for a multi-million dollar research and development company.
+ Provided oversight for all aspects of sales center including; trade shows, radio shows, co-op advertising,
Business Improvement plans, strategic market planning and all support services necessary to maintain support
to wholesale, retail and direct to consumer sales.

Marcolin USA
Manager Customer Service, 2003-2004
»  Accountable for the daily operation of the inbound/outbound sales, customer service, and key accounts
maintenance for over 50 thousand direct sale accounts.
Direct oversight of customer service supervisor, training lead, and data entry order processors inclusive of 25
customer service representatives.
» Provided oversight for all aspects of call center to the service resource group offering support to 30,000
callers monthly.

Ulta, Inc., Mesa, Arizona
Assistant Manager, 2002-2003
o Accountable for all facets of retail sales and customer service.
» Responsible for selection, hiring, training and on going development of team. Accountable for reporting and
exceeding set sales goals, merchandising, inventory, shrinkages, building maintenance, vendor relationships
and overall store success.

{/ o IntelliRisk Management Corp
“-~ Manager, 2000-2002
» Directly responsible for all facets of call center environment. Provided inbound customer service, sales and
collections for PrimeCo.
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Developed team synergy and loyalty in a group of 8-15 supervisors and 250 consultants. Utilized monitoring
and management reporting tools to consistently evaluate programs and efficiencies.

Translated vendor vision and expectations into directions, plans and measurable objectives. Managed
through large-scale change successfully while exceeding vendor expectations.

America West Airlines, INC - Tempe Reservations Team
Manager, Specialty Sales and Services, 1987-2000

Directly responsible for all facets of the daily operation of a 600 position inbound/outbound contact center.
Provided inbound customer service, sales and technical support to over 40,000 callers daily.

Span of control and direct accountability for the management of the FlightFund Service Center (Airline
loyalty program), More Care (Travel Agency Services), Quality Management, International Sales, Emergency
Response Center, Group/Convention and Meeting Services, Internet Support.

Assessed operation standards, efficiencies and redundancies and established effective vehicles for
implementing necessary change. Assessed and changed PNP on a regular basis. Developed and implemented
process changes continually.

Responsible for all personnel aspects including: change management, union avoidance, training,
development, coaching, annual reviews, progressive disciplinary action, interviewing, terminations, EEQC
issue, HR issues, security compliance, total file maintenance.

Interfaced will all levels of management and internal/exteral clientele.

Education and Certifications

N

~

Degree Business Administration, Detroit College of Business

Course Certification: Strategic Management, Finance, Accounting, Labor Relations, Quantitative Analysis
and Critical Thinking

Lean Organizational Training

Licensed Pharmacy Technician

CERT National Certification, Citizens Emergency Response Team
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Adrian Brown

Health Choice Arizona - Claims Manager 2010-present

Oversee operations of the claims department and resolution services: monitor claims statistics, production levels and
payment and procedural accuracy, compare AHCCCS, and other payer policies, with HCA’s policies for needed
revisions or additions, evaluate departmental needs and implement necessary controls and interfaces/ counsel staff in
regards to HCA, AHCCCS, Medicare and CMS claims payment guidelines. Identify and implement cost containment
practice. Interface with HCA's IS department and identify and participate in development of system. Organize efforts
to reduce overpayments and recoupments. Continue professional growth and development to maintain high quality
work.

United Healthcare - Claims Supervisor 2007-2010

Manage teams of 20-25 claims examiners who are responsible for timely adjudication of Medicaid claims for the
states of Maryland, Texas, Nebraska and Arizona. Facilitated a cross-functional workgroup, with the goal of reducing
the number of pended claims for the state of Texas. Developed strong matrix partner relationships through the process
and was able reduce pended inventory and maintain a 30 day TAT at 99% monthly. Implemented similar process for
the State of Maryland and reduced pended inventory by 40% of total inventory and reduced pended claims over 30
days by 94%. Responsible for monitoring provider contracts (NPI), fee schedules, adjustment trends and system
configuration to minimize late payment interest. Accountable to update all operating instructions for each state plan
and work with system configuration team to ensure integrity of data within the system is compliant with all state and
federal guidelines. Excellent knowledge of claim operation strategy and business.

CIGNA HealthCare - Claims Manager 2005-2007
Manages the accurate and timely adjudication of claims and administers disposition according to contractual benefits
and company procedures. Provides direction regarding policies, procedures, workflows, claim service quality, and
training needs for a team of 27. Monitoring claim service standards. Trend issues and develop action plans for
improvement. Monitors Performance Guarantees to minimize financial impacts.

Additional roles: Call Manager 2005-2006, Site Hiring Manager 2006 - present
Interviewing, coordinating career fairs, new hire orientation and presentations. Liaison to internal and external
staffing resources. Compensation decisions.

TIGER FINANCIAL - Branch Manager 2001-2005

Responsible for all store operations, uphold customer service standards, build revenue and personnel management.
Created a management tool that is utilized in several markets to increase efficiency in daily store operations. Prepare
multiple reports for weekly, monthly and quarterly meetings. Designed a project checklist and proposal guidelines for
special promotional events. Developed an employee assessment in the Arizona market to assist with employee
development and production. Created and implemented a metrics to provided data for analyzing production and
creating individual goals and store objectives. Staff consistently earned 95% development and training scores.

INSIGHT ENTERPRISE INC. - Account Executive 1998-2000

Member of the #1 sales team. First team in company history to achieve 100% of its year-end quota goal. Target
businesses for direct marketing of brand name computers, hardware and software through a combination of strong
outbound telemarketing, electronic commerce, and electronic marketing. Generate leads, customer driven quotes and
manage accounts. Analyze client's business strategies and budget constraints

YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNLIVERSITY - 4dssistant Basketball Coach 1995-1998

Generate lists of high school and junior college prospects. Evaluate, recruited and signed a strong class of prospects
during a pivotal year. Create and maintained relationship with scouts, high school coaches, AAU coaches, and college
coaches for the purpose of obtaining new prospects. Scouted opponents for the purpose of analyzing, preparing and
presenting scouting reports. Coordinate team travel. Monitor academic progress of student-athletes. Director of
summer camps and league. Liaison for the City of Youngstown/Assistant Director of city Summer Youth programs.

EASTERN KENTUCKY UNIVERSITY Richmond, KY 1993

Bachelor of Arts, Broadcasting, Public Relations
Obtained 33 hours of Master's of Business Administration with a goal of completing degree in 2008
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Abby A. Catalan, ME

Professional Experience

Health Choice Arizona
Provider Claims Educator, 10/2007 —Present
» Facilitate the exchange of information between providers and Health Choice’s grievance, claims processing,
and provider relations systems.
+ Educate providers on the appropriate submission of claims, coding updates, electronic claims transactions and
electronic funds transfer.
o Assure providers understand provider manuals, websites, and fee schedules.
» Develop and maintain processes to track and trend providers claims coding issues and validate provide
education/training, '
» Analyze and evaluate claims encounter data and appeals/grievance data to establish provider claims and
coding issues.
» Maintain frequent communication with providers to assure that information is exchanged effectively and
recommend strategies to improve provider satisfaction.

Value Options of Arizona
Contracts Administrator, Maricopa County RHBA, 5/2006 - 9/2007
o Contracted and re-contracted network practitioners and facilities.
» Participated in annual analysis fee schedules.
o Assisted in reviewing utilization review and claims data.
» Managed all provider data input including creation of new providers, vendors, fee schedules, maintenance of
liability insurance and OBHL licensure.
+ Coordinated internal review and determined/evaluated administrative feasibility throughout contracting
process.
»  Monitored accuracy of CMS assigned National Provider ID number and AHCCCS and ADHS/DBHS
provider registration process.
 Prepared single case agreement letters with contracted providers for services not included in existing contracts
and out-of-network providers.

Pacific Life & Annuity/Pacificare
Claims Examiner 111, 4/2002 - 3/2006
» Adjudicated hospital and medical claims within contract and policy provisions.
» Maintained corresponding state compliance on pending claims.
» Reviewed claims for coordination of benefits, TPL, and Medicare/Medicaid eligibility.
» Completed comprehensive review of medical records for pre-existing investigation.

Independent Consultant
Health Claims/Systems and Development, 9/1999 — 4/2002
o Completed assignments with Jacobsen and Associates, Perot Systems, and Claims Net.
+ Analyzed and implemented cost effective contractual agreements with healthcare providers and institutions to
assure compliance with state and federal regulatory requirements.
Performed claims examination, auditing, benefit coding, systems interface, and planning.

SRT Corporation
Benefits Coordinator, 1992 — 1998
»  Supervised workflow of claims processing.
+ Pcrformed quality reviews and audits of targeted completed adjustments for client reports.
» Acted as a liaison between client’s benefits department, members, and provider network.
Provided system testing for system enhancement and client requested modifications.
« Handled appeals and gricvances.
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Self Employed
Counselor, 1988 - 1991

Performed crisis intervention and counseling.
Developed and provided individual treatment plans.
Evaluated and documented clients’ progress.

James Benefits
Manager, Greyhound Claims Operations, 1985 — 1987

Managed office personnel, performed administrative duties, and assured staff were trained.
Maintained effective working relationships with clients, providers, and vendors.

Assisted with implementation of new business lines and technological configuration and software
conversions.

Education and Certifications

Master of Education in Counseling, Northern Arizona University
Bachelor of Arts in Languages, Kent State University
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Tommy Ashley

Professional Experience

Health Choice Arizona
Director, Network Services, 5/2010 —Present
Manager, Network Services, 9/2007-4/2010
o Oversee contract operations and processes.
« Maintain and update Network Development plan to comply with annual strategic plan.
o  Perform network analysis to ensure adequate provider to membership ratios.
» Manage 12 members of the Network staff.
» Ensure contractual compliance with State and Federal requirements.
» Educate staff to ensure proper education is being given to the provider community.
e Develop and maintain policies and procedures.
» Responsible for presenting possible new contractual relationships to Senior Management
Network Account Manager, 7/2007-8/2007
o Management of all level 1 (large) provider groups.
» Responsible for provider rate negotiations.
« Finalize contract agreements and verification of accuracy.
« Prepare credentialing packets prior to submitting to the Credentialing Coordinator.
» Directly responsible for production and efficiency of subordinates.
Network Services Representative, 2/2006-6/2007
» Success in the areas of provider education, network evaluations and management of contractual agreements.
» Primary contact for contracted providers in South Phoenix, Tempe, portions of the West Valley and all of
Pinal County in the arcas of claims, quality, and general education.
o Perform network evaluations based upon population, geographic, and financial factors to determine network
need.

Harrah’s Prairie Band Casino
Accounting Clerk, 4/2004-9/2005
o Work with assigned vendors to ensure accurate and prompt payments.
» Rectify non-sufficient funds accounts.
« Generate payment letters to guests for in-house collections.
« Deal with guest bankruptcy issues. Assigned to liquor inventory.
» Coordinate with Purchasing Department to resolve quantity and/or cost discrepancies.
Total Rewards Representative , 8/2003-3/2004
«  Welcome guests by providing information regarding casino programs and promotions.
» Interacted with guests to increase awareness and utilization of the “Total Rewards Program”.

Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Kansas, 12/1995-6/2002
Medicaid Provider Relations Representative ,
»  Member of provider education team assigned to improve knowledge and understanding of the Medicaid
program.
»  Worked with Medicaid providers, including physicians, administrators, pharmacies, and nursing homes.
« Prepared and facilitated presentations of educational materials.

Education and Certifications
» Bachelor of Business Administration, Washburn University
» General Studies, Allen County Community College
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REQUIREMENT #4

For key positions/femployees which are not full time provide justification as to why the position is not full lime. Include a description of their other duties and the
amount of time allocated to each. If personnel are not in place, submit job descriptions outlining the minimum qualifications of the position(s).

Health Choice Arizona (HCA) contracts with two dentists on a part time basis who fill the position of Dental Director.
The dentists are able to put in the required time to meet the current needs of the health plan for dental review on an as
needed basis. As the health plan grows, or adds additional lines of business, HCA is planning on hiring a full time

Dental Director.

All other positions are full time and will remain full time in the foreseeable future.
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REQUIREMENT #5

Submit a functional organizational chart of the key program areas, responsibilities and areas that report to that position for the following functional areas: Case
Management, Quality Management, Medical Management, Prior Authorization, Grievance System (Member Grievances and Appeals and Provider Claim
Disputes) Provider Services, Finance, Claims, Encounters and Information Systems. The chart must identify the functions that will be subcontracted in a
Delegated Agreement, Management Service Agreement and or Service Level Agreement.

Health Choice Arizona
Case Management Staff

N
o

P

Chief Executive Officer (1)

Executive Director, Long
Term Care (1)

Case
Management
Coordinator

Case Manager
Supervisors

Case Managers

Behavioral Health
Director

I

Behavioral Health
Care
Coordinators
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Health Choice Arizona
Quality Management Staff

\\“_, .

Chief Executive Officer (1)

I

Chief Medical Officer/
Medical Management
Coordinator (1)

Medical Director (1)

Director, Quality
Management (1)

| | QM Coordinator
M

[~ QM Specialist (1)

N
N

| QM Assistant (2)

Credentialing
Coordinator (1)

L| Credentialing
Assistant (1)

N
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Health Choice Arizona
Medical Management Staff

Chief Executive Officer (1)

Chief Medical Officer/
Medical Management
Coordinator (1)

Assaciate Medical

-

Director, Medical

Medical Director
(1)

Concurrent Review
Coordinator/Medical

Director, Rural Services (1) See QM and EPSDT charts Management
Health (1) for staff under this position Coordinator (1)
]
Manager T ant Concurrent
Director, ) ’ ransplan — Review Nurse (8)
! H Behavior Health i
Pharmacy (1) ") Coordinator (1)
I . .
Behavioral Health M Pri FSk!:!?dsNurglr\Ig
Pharmacy Case Manager anager, Prior | Facility Specialist
- Authorization (1) (1)
Technician (4) 3)
|
Behavioral Health Prior Retrospective
Assistant (1) Authorization —| Review Nurse (1)
Dental Co- Technician (7)
Director (2)
Manager, Pri
! —  Matemal Child Authoriai | | Management
) uthorization Specialist (1)
Health (1) Nurse (4)
Manager, Oral T
Health Program OB Case ) ) Concurrent
(1) Manager (3) Notice of Action Ll Review Claims
' 9 Technician (4) Coordinator (1)

Dental Benefit
Specialist (2)

Maternal Child
Health Assistant
(1

Coordinator (1)

Case
Management

I

General Case
Managers (4)

CRS Specialist (2)

Supervisor, Prior
Authorization (1)

Prior
| Authorization
Trainer (1)

After Hours Prior
|1 Authorization
Technician (3)

N M

Care Coordinator
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Health Choice Arizona
Prior Authorization Staff

Chief Executive Officer (1)

Chief Medical Officer/
Medical Management
Coordinator (1)

'_l

Director, Medical
Services (1)

[

Manager, Prior
Authorization (1)

|

Prior
Authorization
Technician (7)

Prior
Authorization
Nurse (4)

1

Notice of Action
Technician (4)

L| Authorization (1)

Supervisor, Prior

Prior
L1  Authorization
Trainer (1)

After Hours Prior
4 Authorization
Technician (3)

Care Coordinator

] ()
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Health Choice Arizona
Grievance System Staff

Chief Executive Officer (1)

Compliance Officer/Contract
Compliance Officer (1)

Manager,

Grievance (1) Fraud & Abuse

Coordinator (1)

Grievance/
D|.spute 4 Department
Coordinators (5) Assistant (1)
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Health Choice Arizona
Network Provider Services Staff

Chief Executive Officer (1)

Director, Network Provider
Services (1)

I

Manager,
Manager, Oral )
Health Program Network Provider
() Services (1)
|
Dental Benefit Network Provider

Specialist (3)

Services Rep. (5)

Internal Network
Provider Services
Rep. (1)

Supervisor,
Contract
Administration (1)

Network Provider
Account Manager

M

Network Provider
Services
Rep. (3)

Pima Network
Provider Services
Supervisor (1)

Provider Claims
Educator (1)

Rural Network
Provider
Services Rep. (3)

1
Network Provider
Services | | Provider Data
Rep. (4) Analyst (1)
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Health Choice Arizona
Finance Staff

Chief Executive Officer (1)

Chief Financial Officer (1)

Manager,
Financial Analysis Controller (1)

(1)

|
Assistant

Financial Analyst Controller — HCA
(2 )

Manager, Audit
M

Accountant (1)

Payroll/AP
Coordinator (1)

Assistant
| Controller - HCG

(1
1

_\
J

C

Accountant (1)

Supervisor,
Reinsurance/
Recovery (1)

COB/TPL
Specialist (2)

Reinsurance/
Recovery
Specialist (1)

N
N

‘_ Claims Auditor (7)
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Health Choice Arizona
Claims Staff

Chief Executive Officer (1}

Chief Operating Officer (1)

Director, Claims (1)

[

Sr. Claims Quality
Analyst (1)

Claims Trainer (1)

Claims Supervisor

@

Claims Hospital
Provider Services
Coordinator (1)

Post Adjudication
Analyst (1)

| | Claims Processor

27)

Claims Resolution
Coordinator (7)

Claims Clerk (4)

File Clerk (3)
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Health Choice Arizona
Encounters Staff

Chief Executive Officer (1)

I

Chief Operating Officer (1)

I

Manager, IS
Operations (1)

Claims/Encounter
Analyst (1)

Director, Claims

()

Post Adjudication
Analyst (1)

Sr. Claims Quality
Analyst (1)

Claims Hospital
Provider Services
Coordinator (1)
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Health Choice Arizona
Information Systems Staff

Chief Executive Officer (1)

Chief Operating Officer (1)

Director of Information
Services (1)

Manager, IT/ BCP
Coordinator (1)

I

Manager, IS
Operations (1)

Project Manager/
8r. Programmer/ Security (1)
Analyst (1)
Web. Supervisor,
Programmer/ Network (1)
Analyst (1)
MS saL Network
Database Administrator (2)
Administrator (1)
SQL Developer PC Technician (1)
(1)
Database
Developer (1)

| | Business Analyst

2

| | Jr. Business
Analyst (1)

EDV/Quality
B Analyst {1)

Quality
Assurance (1)

Analyst (1)

|4 Claims/Encounter

Provider
Demographic
Coordinator (2)
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Health Choice Arizona
Member Services Staff

Chief Executive Officer (1)

Chief Operating Officer (1)

Director, Member Services

Member Services
Trainer (1)

IS Coordinator (1)

Member Services
Assistant (1)

Supervisor,
Member Services

@

Lead Member
Services Rep.

@

Member
Services Rep.
(34)

Retention Rep.

@

Plan Change
Coordinator (1)

-

Claims
Customer
Service Rep. (5)
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SANCTIONS

REQUIREMENT #6

Describe any sanctions levied against the Offeror, its parent corporation or any legally related corporate entity since January 1, 2008 that have been imposed by
AHCCCS, Medicaid programs in other states, Medicare or any state insurance regulatory body. Include the description of the sanction, the specific reason for the
sanction and the timeline to resolve or correct the deficiency. Indicate any sanctions that are currently in dispute. Sanctions are defined as any monetary and non-
monetary punitive actions taken by regulatory bodies.

Health Choice Arizona (HCA) works diligently to maintain the highest possible level of compliance with its
AHCCCS and CMS contracts, while providing quality and value to its members and providers. With comphance an
integral part of all core strategic processes and objectives, HCA has been able to achieve optimal operating
benchmarks, preventing sanctions levied from being significant enough to adversely affect the plan operationally or
financially.

Encounter Data Validation Studies

Encounter Data Validation sanctions are based on the results of the AHCCCS system-wide audit to match encounter
data with that of provider medical records. After challenges are reviewed, AHCCCS issues final results categorized
by errors and omissions that determine sanction liability. The sanction liability includes an amount that is to be taken
out of the health plan’s capitation payment and an amount that the health plan must exhaust to remediate the process
from which the errors occurred. Below is the detailed sanction activity since January 1, 2008. Regarding the amounts
to be spent by the health plan, HCA has utilized those funds to perform continuous education to providers through the
use of provider newsletters, area training meetings/seminars, and the Provider Claims Educator for more detailed one
on one provider training.

CYEO05 (10/01/05 to 9/30/06) Sanction amount:
$19,323 (levied November 2009)
$4,292 was taken from cap
$15,031 spent on Provider Education and Training

Encounter Sanctions

Encounter sanctions are assessed quarterly by AHCCCS for every health plan, calculated from the number of pended
encounters aged more than 120 days. After challenges are reviewed, AHCCCS issues final results. To date, HCA has
received notices of the following sanctions:

+ January — March 2008 — Sanction amount: Waived
o April - June 2008 — Sanction amount: Waived

» July — September 2008 — Sanction amount: $41,925
+  October — December 2008 — Sanction amount: $41,805
+ January — March 2009 — Sanction amount: $2,795

» April - June 2009 - Sanction amount: $1,430

o July - September 2009 - Sanction amount: $20

»  October — December 2009- Sanction amount: $0

o January — March 2010 — Sanction amount:

» April - June 2010 - Waived

» July — September 2010 — Sanction amount: $765

»  October - December 2010 — Sanction amount: $240

Against Health Choice Generations (Medicare MA/PDP/SNP plan)
None

Against IASIS Healthcare (parent company)
None
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CLAIMS

REQUIREMENT #7

Provide a detailed flowchart and narrative description of the claims adjudication process, addressing both paper and electronic claims submissions. Include in
the description the following: monitoring process for accurate and timely claim adjudication; how deficiencies are identified and resolved; timeliness standards
and cost avoidance/TPL activities; and how claim inquiries are handled. Include an actual sample of the remittance advice (front and back) or a written narrative
of the remittance advice. The submission requirement will be a maximum of four pages of narrative and an additional five pages of flowcharts.

Claims Operation

Monitoring Process For Accurate and Timely Adjudication and Deficiency Resolution

Claims processing is one of the most important operational requirements of a health plan. It impacts all areas of the
health plan including network management, financial management, medical management and contract compliance.
Health Choice Arizona’s (HCA) approach to claims adjudication is based on the following key objectives:

» Provide and promote the use of electronic billing through many methods including direct, clearinghouse,
and/or direct data entry.

o Continuously increase claims auto adjudication rate to increase accuracy and consistency

« Pay claims often, accurately, and leverage EFT to increase the speed at which payments are deposited into the
provider’s accounts

« Continuously monitor and audit the claims process to ensure timely, accurate payments

« Process encounters and submit to AHCCCS timely and reconcile encounters to paid claims

To ensure these objectives can be met, HCA has established a set of performance measures and monitoring techniques
to enable optimal claims adjudication and payment. The table below illustrates our recent performance against plan
and AHCCCS measures:

AHCCCS HCA Current
Measure Standard Standard Performance
Timeliness (% w/i 30days) 95.0% 98.0% 99.61%
Daily Inventory ‘Days Out’ N/A 11 Days 9 Davs
Payment Percentage N/A 97.5% 99.84%
Payment Accuracy N/A 97.5% 97.75%
Encounter Acceptance N/A 97.5% 99.48%
ECR Rate 60.0% 70.0% 72.18%
EFT Rate 60.0% 70.0% 71.98%
EDI Auto Processing Rate N/A 20% 22.15%
Total Claims Inventory N/A <130,000(65% of 110,799

Membership)

To effectively manage inventory and the claims adjudication operation, HCA utilizes data from all claim sources
(clearinghouse, electronic direct, imaging, and manual entry) to develop a real time Work in Progress (WIP) report.
This report includes claims volumes for each claim type and pend category, with associated age calculated in days.
This tool allows the claims management team, including the COO, to view possible inventory issues in real time and
solve those issues before they become acute and affect provider payment timelines. If an issue is identified, the root
cause is determined and a corrective action plan is developed for remediation. Progress is evaluated daily with
Executive Management and the Claims Leadership team.

In order to analyze monthly trends, HCA closely monitors the monthly Claims Dashboard. Fluctuations in volume of
claims receipts, pends, and denials are included in the Claims Dashboard. Problematic trends or deficiencies
identified via the Claims Dashboard are communicated immediately to all pertinent stakeholders including the
Provider Claims Educator, Network services, Medical Services and Claims Customer Service Call Center. Meetings
are then scheduled to develop and execute strategies and tactical remediation plans.

The Intemal Audit Unit in the Finance Department is the independent unit responsible for reviewing, tracking,
trending, and subsequently reporting on the accuracy of claims payment to management. Each week, the Audit Unit
develops detailed reports of claims audits that include, but are not limited to High Dollar (>$2,500), Electronic, and
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Performance (1% of Processor’s Production Volume). These audits include financial, procedural and payment
measures.

When internal benchmarks are not being met, the Claims Department assigns the necessary additional staff to cover
the claims that may be exceeding the timeliness threshold. Occasionally HCA has maintained timeliness by utilizing
solutions such as reassigning claims staff, offering overtime, and/or utilizing temporary help to assist with any
backlog, in order to ensure claims are processed in a timely manner.

The dashboard and audit reports are reviewed in the Provider Relations Improvement Committee. Claims trends,
denial rates, and adjudication error trends are reviewed in detail at the claim and provider level to ensure integrity and
accuracy of the claims process. These discussions and plans also drive agendas for provider coding seminars and
monthly JOC’s. The WIP report, Claims Dashboard, audit accuracy reports as well as interdisciplinary teams such as
the Provider Relations Improvement Committee are an effective tool set for continuously monitoring the claims
adjudication workflow.

Claims Adjudication Process

HCA has optimized the workflow for claim adjudication, and has implemented auto adjudication enhancements for
Med/MC that have significantly increased both claims processing timeliness and accuracy. Exhibit A presents the
claims adjudication workflow for electronic claims, and Exhibit B presents the claims adjudication workflow for
paper claims.

Claims Receipt

HCA accepts the standard CMS 1500, UB04, and ADA 2006 claim forms, and HIPAA compliant ANSI 837P, 8371,
837D 275 (Claims Attachment) and NCPDP electronic formats. HCA provides several, easy to use, claim submission
options, including the Emdeon Business Services (EBS) Clearinghouse, Direct Electronic submission via Secure FTP,
or as an upload through the HCA Provider Portal.

Batching and Data Conversion/Entry

Preparation/Batching: Paper claims are received at the HCA headquarters in Phoenix, Arizona and routed to the
claims file room. In the file room, the claims are sorted and grouped into specific claim types (i.e. CMS 1500’s, UB
inpatient. UB outpatient, SNF, etc.), batched in groups of 25, and sent to Emdeon Business Services (EBS) for
imaging and Optical Character Recognition (OCR). To ensure detailed tracking of those claims sent, each claim form
type is counted, logged, and reconciled with those that are received back and imaged by EBS.

EBS scans each claim and assigns a document control number. Each field must have a confidence interval of 100% to
be accepted. Any field below 100% will be sent to a field verify operator to verify the claim information and enter it
into the application. After the OCR and verification processes are complete, the claim is formatted into the ANSI
X12 837 format. These electronic claim files are placed on an FTP server where they are downloaded by HCA. EBS
contracted OCR response/turn around metrics are 50% within 24 hours, 99% within 48 hours, and 100% within 72
hours, while contracted accuracy is 99% at the field level.

Med/MC Claims Adjudication
Med/MC is the claims adjudication platform leveraged by Health Choice. The Med/MC adjudication workflow
includes the following high level processes:

Front End Edits The Med/MC electronic upload process leverages initial edits such as member eligibility that if
failed will result in a Front End Reject with a subsequent detailed letter of the reject reason being sent to the provider.
Once the initial edits are passed, the claims are associated with the matching provider record in the Med/MC Provider
Module. Claims that cannot be assigned a matching provider record are placed on an exception report to be worked
by the Provider Demographic Coordinator. Once the reason for the non-match is found and fixed, if applicable, the
file is reloaded in order to interface any claims for the impacted providers. Claims that do not interface at this stage
trigger a reject letter to be sent to the provider due to lack of AHCCCS registration or incorrect demographic
information.
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Claims Scrubbing
In order to proactively ensure encounter data accuracy, HCA has designed Med/MC to require appropriate provider
billing through system edits that include, but may not be limited to the following:

» Comparison of date of service to receipt date to ensure initial claim was received within 6 months from date
of service or eligibility posting

» Edit for comparison of date of service to receipt date when this exceeds 12 months

o Possible duplicate claim identification

+ Exact duplicate claims identification

o System alerts for members with other insurance coverage/TPL

o Alerts for members under case management

o+  Verification that prior authorization information matches date/type of service on claim

+  Alerts for members with Prior Period Coverage (PPC)

o Alerts for invalid or terminated procedure/diagnosis codes

» Edit for age limitations for CPT/Diagnosis codes

« Edit for frequency limitations on CPT/Diagnosis codes

» Confirmation that the provider is approved to render a particular service per AHCCCS guidelines

» Automatic calculation of anesthesia base and time unit maximums for anesthesia to ensure that HCA payment
is limited to the maximum allowable units per AHCCCS guidelines

o Edit check for bundling and unbundling of codes (CCI)

» Global Day Bundling

o Multi Channel Lab Test Bundling

e  Multiple Surgical Reductions

» Edit check for validity of diagnosis to CPT/HCPC code combinations.(CCI)

» Edits for NPI number validation '

« Edits for Occurrence codes and dates, Condition codes, and Value Codes and amounts on institutional claims

« Edits for valid field values on Admit/Discharge hour, Type, Source and Status

« Edits for Prior Authorization requirements that align with plan guidelines

« Edit for CPT to Modifier combinations

+  OPEFS logic using AHCCCS Reference tables

Additionally, HCA utilizes the medical coding and provider information supplied by AHCCCS from each ‘Refe’ file
cycle as well as multiple industry-standard coding tools such as Ingenix Data Files and Encoder Pro to confirm the
appropriateness and correctness of the services billed.

Adjudication

HCA has implemented enhancements in Med/MC to enable many claims to be auto adjudicated without the need for
claims processor review. Based on the complexity and expected adjudication result, HCA determincs whether cach
category of claim meets criteria for auto adjudication. All claims are adjudicated in accordance with AHCCCS rules
and regulations as well as HCA policies and procedures. If claims or claim lines are not approved, they are denied or
reduced, and appropriate reason codes are included with denied claims detail on the provider’s remittance advice.

Coordination of Benefits/Third Party Liability

HCA utilizes cost-avoidance processes to ensure it is payer of last resort, in accordance with AHCCCS rules, when it
is known that a third party will cover the service. Post-payment recovery or ‘pay and chase’ is utilized when it is not
known if a member has third party coverage at the time the claim was initially adjudicated. HCA will identify all
potentially liable third parties and pursue reimbursement, except in the circumstances defined by AHCCCS that
require referral to the Contractor by AHCCCS or AHCCCS® authorized representative. HCA subcontracts with
Recovery Management Services (RMS) to pursue third party recoverics and coordinate joint settlements with
AHCCCS’ authorized representative. Med/MC has strict COB edits and alerts the Claim Processors when it is known
that a member has other insurance. If the primary insurance covers the service(s) on the claim with no prior payment,
the claim will be denied. If an EOB is present with the claim, HCA limits any cost-sharing responsibilities for
applicable copayments, coinsurance, and deductibles as defined in the ALTCS contract and the AHCCCS Medicare
Cost Sharing Policy.
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Coordination of Benefits (COB) information may be identified through multiple sources including claims, EOBs,
hospital admission/face sheets as well as member or provider calls. HCA has established a workflow for third party
coverage verification and it is illustrated in Exhibit C. Any previously unconfirmed COB information is forwarded to
the COB/TPL Coordinator using a COB Referral Form. The COB/TPL Coordinator verifies that the proposed
insurance is in effect, and the Member Module of Med/MC is then updated accordingly. In a nightly batch process,
all new COB segments are sent to AHCCCS to provide the Agency with the responsible insurance entities. Any
previously paid claims without appropriate coordination with the appropriate insurer are then adjusted accordingly
within AHCCCS guidelines and A.R.S. 36-2923.

HCA follows industry standard practices for Third Party Liability. System edits have been put in place to prompt
during claims adjudication when there is possible primary insurance coverage. The Claims Department will notify the
recovery team about any claim submissions that include injuries that frequently indicate a potential Third Party
Liability (TPL) which include, but are not limited to: other primary insurance, accidents involving one or more motor
vehicles, assaults, violent crimes victims, multiple traumas, work related injuries, and other unnatural events. The
Recovery/Reinsurance Supervisor forwards the notifications of probable TPL cases for the TPL Contractor to review,
research and lien filing (see Exhibit D).

Provider Payment/Remittance Advice

Provider payments and remittances are produced twice weekly and reflect applicable provider transactions. The
remittance advice (also called the Explanation of Benefits, or EOB) for each claim includes: the member, procedure
code(s), diagnosis code(s), billed amount, paid amount and detailed reasons for denials, if any. A copy of the
remittance advice is included in Exhibit E.

Four files are created in the Payment cycle. The first, the ANSI X12 835 (EFT Segment Only) is sent to Bank of
America to perform the Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) the day following file receipt. The remaining 3 files: ANSI
X12 835 ERA, Paper Check and Paper EOB files are sent to HCA’s post adjudication clearinghouse, Emdeon
Business Services (EBS). EBS distributes the electronic remit, paper check, and/or paper EOB based on the provider’s
preference. HCA also provides a link from within the secure HCA Provider Portal to allow providers to download a
printable copy of the EOB. For providers that do not have systems capable of automatically posting payments via the
ANSI 835 ERA but want the quick payment afforded by the EFT, a downloadable remit serves as an ideal solution.

Provider Claims Inquiries

The Claims Customer Service (CCS) Unit handles provider claims inquiries. Specific functions and roles have been
segregated from the main queue to better serve large individual providers. These roles include Post Adjudication
Analysts and Provider IT Coordinator. The Post Adjudication Analysts work directly with facility providers to status
and work their aged claims on a daily basis. The Provider IT Coordinator is responsible for troubleshooting any
electronic claims or provider portal issue that the provider may be experiencing.

The CCS team uses the HCA Provider Inquiry Application to record, document and track provider inquiries. When
provider offices call to request information regarding electronic claims submission, claims adjudication, payment, or
any other issues, customer service representatives enter a description of the provider’s call into the application. If the
CCS Representative was able to resolve the issue or answer the inquiry, the call is closed out. If follow-up is required
by a claims subject matter expert or Provider Relations Representative, the call is assigned to the specific area for
follow-up. All inquiries are responded to within 3 days and resolved within 30 days. Reports are generated from the
Provider Inquiry Application and reviewed frequently by Administration and Operations personnel to identify trends
in provider issues as well as to ensure all inquiries were followed up on and resolved in a timely and satisfactory
manner. This allows HCA to remediate provider issues quickly and effectively, facilitating the growth of a strong
provider network to serve HCA members’ medical needs.

The Provider Claims Educator conducts weekly in service training with claims the HCA CCS personnel to ensure
they have the necessary tools to not only understand the provider’s issue, but also develop strong analytical and
problem solving skills to resolve the issue while the provider is still on the phone. The CCS Team works with claims
and IS on a day to day issues to quickly identify claims processor or system specific issues before they escalate. If the
provider wishes to file a dispute, the CCS Representative helps the provider understand the dispute procedures and if
requested, walk them through the proccss.
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Exhibit A:

Electronic Claim Processing

Fields on claim used for the

Pin Point Logic
«TIN,

ECR claims are
received
electronically via

WebMD or direct

Claim is reviewed
by Med/MC to
ensure all required
fields are
populated in place
for processing

lember ID is foun
and valid

A 4
Claim rejects and
letter is sent
informing provider
of specific reason
why claim was not
loaded into system

«Service address,

« Pay to address
« NPI

Provider Pin Point logic assigns
—» the claim to the provider on the
claim

identifying

Continues with Pin
Point Logic

addresses

billing

Yes

Is Provider TIN or NPI
from claim in Med/MC

Yes

/

No

Does billing Zip Code
on the claim match the
record in Med/MC

No

Assign claim to
matching location for

System witl assign
claim to first possible
location on providers
TIN and pend claim
MJ for location to be

selected by

processor

adjudication
IS PDM
coordinator loads
provider !
Claim data is
processed through
Med/MC with edits
for billing and
procedure
Rerun file accuracy
through ECR
process to
interface
claim

Can claim be
auto adjudicated

Yes

No——»

Remittance
and check is

Did C;a:er:")take Yes processed Proce?st|s
pay and mailed to complete
provider

Claim is pended
and sent for
manual processing

Remittance Denial notice S
and appeals
Claim is sent for notice is an appeal Process is
. > . W rights are
final edit mailed to . complete
! mailed to
provider
member
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Paper Claim Processing

C

N
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Claim received by
mail and workroom

Claim Processor

receives oldest

sorts and delivers
| claims to file room

P

Claims file room
sorts, batches and
stamps claims into
L categories

)

Selection of claims
are taken from
daily mail and
fedex’d to EBS

overnight.

Claims are
received and
k imaged at EBS

a

« ]

Receive 837 file
from EBS and
HCA retrieves file
\_| from FTP server

—

¥ b

HCA uploads file to
Med/MC. Claims that
cannot be auto
adjudicated are pended
for manual adjudication

Report/Work Queue
is generated from
which processors to
adjudicate claims
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Exhibit C:

julian date claims
for processing

Processor
reviews claim
information for
adjudication

Ctaim Paid

Claim Denied Claim internally

pended

If claim paid
amount is >$2,500
itis held in a Med/

MC work que for
audit

Claim drops check
and/or EOB

IS prepares bi-
weekly check
run process

Electronic/Paper
EOBs and Payment

are sent to provider
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Coordination Of Benefits / Cost Avoidance

Health Choice Arizona

]

Yes

Via 834 from AHCCCS, or
referral from other

Claims Processor
pays lesser of, or
denies for no
additional payment
required

departments
Other Insurance Coverage
(OIC) Reported
A A
Med/MC dlsplays Recoveries
alert for Claims .
researches paid
Processor to A
- claims for
mitigate overpayment
overpayments pay
A
Claim Courtesy letter
submitted with No sent to member’s

EOB?

PCP to facilitate
recovery of
overpayments
A
Claims Processor
denies requesting Recoupments

deducted from
future payments to

primary EOB

providers

Refund request
letters sent to
providers, if
necessary
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Exhibit D:

‘ Third Party Llablllty

Referrals for potential TPL

gathered by Finance

Finance transmits
referrals to
Recovery
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Exhibit E:

Exhibit 13-1 Sample Medical EOB
Health Choice Arizona, Inc,

410 N. 44" St., Ste 900
Phoenix, AZ 85008

Forwarding Service Requested

Hoalin.

CHOICE

A

ENV 2718

100F 13

PMTR02

IF you have any questions
Please call (480) 968-6866

=

NEW SMS 1500 FORM IS AVAILABLE ~ PLEASE SUBMIT
MEDCIAL CLAIMS ON THIS FORM

200801634 501

. Invoice # 1234586
?;‘;P;" P";‘ 'g“"’ MD Check no: 654321
T az%esszréz Provider TIN: 112223333
empe. Date: 1/03/08
Service Dates From To Service Code # Amount Exduded’ Not Allowed | C.O.B. Co-Pay Withhold | Paid Adjustment-
Units | Bitled Deductible Allowed Amount | Insurance Amount Amount Amount Reason/code
Member: SAMPLE PATIENT  Member #: A00002222 Claim #: 666555888
Provider: SAMPLE Account No: SAM21212 Plan: 2420
PROVIDER
10/24/07-10128/07 72110TC 1 175.00 0.00 137.57 37.43 29.94 0.00 0.00 749 Rl
10£2477-10¥24/67 7211026 1 40.00 0.50 2522 14.78 11.82 0.00 0.00 2.96 R1
LO24/07-10¢24/07 72170TC 1 85.00 .00 6537 19.63 1570 0.00 0.00 3.93 R1
10/24/07-10¢24/07 7217026 1 19.00 0.00 8.99 10.01 6.67 0.00 0.60 334 R1
10/24/07-10/24/07 99203 1 130.00 0.00 37.00 2.01 73.61 0.00 0.00 1840 R1
Claim Totals: 449.00 0.00 275.14 | 17386 137.74 0.00 6.00 36.12
Member: SAMPLE PATIENT Member # A00002222 Claim # 565555889
Provider: SAMPLE Account No: SAM21212 Plan: 2420
PROVIDER
10/1707-10/17/07 I 99212 1 54,00 0.00 17.30 36.70 29.36 0.00 0.00 7.34 R1
Claim Totals: 54.00 0.00 17.30 3670 29.36 0.90 0.00 7.34
Member: SAMPLE PATIENT  Member # A00002222 Claim# 555555890
Provider: SAMPLE Account No: SAM21212 Plan: 2420
PROVIDER
10/24/Q7-10v24/07 73590 i 99.00 0.00 70.65 2835 22.68 0.90 0.00 567 Rl
10:24/07-10:24/07 99212 1 54.00 0.00 17.30 36,70 29.36 0.00 0,00 734 Rl
Claim Totals: 153.60 0.00 87.95 65.05 52.04 0.00 0.00 13.01
Member: SAMPLE PATIENT Member # A00002222 Claim #  gg5555800
Provider: SAMPLE Account No: SAM21212 Plan: 2420
PROVIDER
11/08/07-11/08/07 L190sNU 1 120 0.00 120 2833 22.68 0.00 6.00 [ 14
11/08/07-11/08/07 73610 1 103 0.00 70.18 32.82 2036 0.00 0.00 32.82
Claim Totals: 223.00 0.00 190.18 3282 52.04 0.00 0.00 32.82
Ameount Exduded/ Not Altowed C.0.B. Co-pay Withheld
. Billed Deductible Allowed Amount, Insurance Amount Amount
Statement Totals: 879.00 0.00 $70.57 30843 219.14 0.00 0.00

Adjustment-Reason/code Descriptions

Ri REDUCED BY MEDICARE/UTHER INSURANCE
14 REQUIRES AUTHORIZATION

b "SEE GUR WEBSITE /@HealthchoiceAz.com FOR INFORMATION ON CLAIMS DISPUTE RESCLUTION"
. * HCA IS LIVE WITH EMDEON FOR ELECTRONIC CLAIMS. PAYOR I3 62179 PLEASE SUBMIT ALL CLAIMS ELECTRONICALLY. PLEASE SUBMIT ONLY THE 6

DIGIT
AHCCCS ID OR NPL
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REQUIREMENT #8

Describe what the Offeror will be doing to promote and advance electronic claims submissions and assist providers to accept electronic funds transfers.

Health Choice Arizona (HCA) has been diligent and determined in the promotion of Electronic Claims Receipt
(ECR) and Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) with its provider network. HCA has realized significant benefits in
improved claims processing and greater provider satisfaction as a result of these efforts. To promote and advance
electronic claims submissions and assist providers to accept electronic funds transfers, Health Choice has made the
subject mandatory for all claims inquiries calls. During a claim inquire call, the CCR is trained to look up the
provider profile to determine if the provider is currently sending electronic claims and or on EFT. If they are not, the
CCR has scripts to describe the benefits of both that include but are not limited to billing accuracy and faster payment.
Additionally, Health Choice Network Representative review the benefits with their providers during regularly
scheduled site visits. The benefits of ECR and EFT are presented at coding seminars and jointly sponsored provider
events with Emdeon Business Services, Health Choice’s Clearinghouse. Additionally, ECR and EFT is the subject of
a recurring article in the Health Choice Provider Newsletter.

For all new provider contract relationships and current provider contract renewals, Health Choice requires providers
to submit electronic claims and be paid electronically. This type of ‘Opt Out’ program has been key to Health Choice
raising its electronic rates to over 70% for both ECR and EFT.

Electronic Claims Submission Options

HCA provides several methods of claims submission to satisfy the varied capabilities and resources of its providers,
especially those in rural areas. For electronic claims submission, providers can submit through any clearinghouse
they currently work with, at no additional cost to the provider. The clearinghouse will transmit their claims to
Emdeon, HCA’s clearinghouse, which transfers them to HCA. In addition, HCA makes two direct submission
options available to providers. In the first option, IS infrastructure staff works directly with the provider’s staff to
enable a Virtual Private Network (VPN) connection. The VPN connection allows providers to securely send HIPAA
837 files via File Transfer Protocol (FTP), and saves the providers the transaction costs associated with a
clearinghouse. The second option, requiring less IT knowledge for the provider, allows them to upload HIPAA 837
files via a secure web session on the provider portal. To assist providers further in setting up and troubleshooting
electronic claims submissions, HCA maintains a full-time employee within the Claims Customer Service Department
as the Provider IT Coordinator.

HCA has heavily promoted its electronic claims submission options over paper claims submission, resulting in a
substantial increase in electronic claims, from 27% in 2007 to over 70% in 2011.

Electronic Remittance Advice and Electronic Payment by EFT

HCA makes an EFT payment option available to its providers. In each payment cycle, HCA forwards payment data to
its bank, Bank of America, to perform the Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) the day following file receipt. Providers
who participate in this program receive their payments directly into their designated bank that same day.

HCA has developed a number of payment options to make it easy for providers to advance toward greater automation.
Through Emdeon Business Services (EBS), providers have the ability to download electronic remittance advice for
each check run’s paid claims. In addition, HCA makes available a downloadable print file on the HCA provider
portal, enabling providers to securely access it directly. These options can make it easier and morc efficient for
provider office staff to manage paid and denied claims. In addition, providers who accept EFT, receive payment 2 3
days sooner and more reliability than through mailed payment checks.

As stated above, HCA uses all available communications channels to educate and inform providers of the array of
electronic services and self service capabilities which can strengthen the relationship between the provider and HCA.
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REQUIREMENT #9

Provide a description of the clinical edits and data related edits included in the claims adjudication process.

Health Choice Arizona (HCA) utilizes the Med/MC Claims Adjudication System (Med/MC) for claims adjudication
and payment. HCA has customized Med/MC to meet AHCCCS/Medicaid managed care functionality requirements.
Med/MC is a versatile system with flexible programming options enabling HCA to leverage claim edits to optimize
data integrity, correct coding, cost avoidance, timeliness, as well as enrollment, network and benefit adherence.

HCA has worked diligently to ensure AHCCCS clinical and data related edits are fully integrated with the Med/MC
claims adjudication logic. HCA utilizes the data from the Reference (‘Refe’), Eligibility (ANSI X12 834), and
Provider Profile Records to drive adjudication edit logic. This integrated approach enables the provider community to
maintain onc¢ sct of billing practices for both HCA and AHCCCS, reducing their administrative burden, while
increasing their focus on quality of care for our members. Standard CCI Edits and mandatory copays have been
integrated into the Med/MC claims payment process, in both auto-adjudicated and manually adjudicated workflows.

Claims edits logic maintenance 1s not a static project, but an evolutionary process that matures with industry standards
and best practices such as HIPAA taxonomy, the Correct Coding Initiative (CCI), and National Provider Identification
(NPI). HCA has developed a stable, flexible foundation with Med/MC that enables updated and new edits to be easily
created to apply AHCCCS and HCA policy as well as national initiatives and best practices.

Types of Edits
There are several categories of edits that are implemented in Med/MC:

» Validation Edits are applied to logically ensure that required data is present and syntactically correct. These
are simple data attribute edits that largely exist to catch data entry / interface edits and to validate complex
EDI data requirements.

» Relationship Edits compare data present on the claim with information which is on file in Med/MC.
Comprising the bulk of Med/MC edits, relationship edits are table driven and have been continuously refined
to meet both AHCCCS and HCA policy. Duplicate check edits are another type of relationship edit which
compares member/service date/and service code relationships across claims or internally on the same claim.
Another example of a relationship edit is Max Units and Benefit Counters. If a claim has a max benefit of 15
over a one year period, Med/MC will deny the 16™ occurrence or quantity of the specific code.

» Clinical Edits implement medical policy or medical practice standards as defined by an independent health
care reference authority, such as the American Medical Association for Current Procedure Terminology
(CPT) procedure codes, or CMS for HCPCS and Correct Coding Initiative edits. Many of these edits are
implemented based on information HCA has received from AHCCCS on reference files or in loading updates
files from AMA and CMS.

The following edits are part of the current claims adjudication module logic of Med/MC, against which claims are
scrubbed to ensure data integrity along with clinical adherence.

Member Eligibility and Benefit Verification Edits

As the claim is interfaced with Med/MC, the member is validated against the member module for an accurate member
ID number with an eligibility segment that intersects with the date of service. If a matching eligibility segment is not
found, the claim is denied for ‘Member Not Eligible on Date of Service’. If a matching eligibility segment is found,
the date of service from the claim is compared to Coordination of Benefit (COB) data in the member module. If an
active primary payer segment is found, the processor is alerted to coordinate the benefits appropriately.

At a more granular level, the rate code linked to the eligibility segment in which the date of service resides is
validated against the services billed. Each rate code is associated with a specific benefit package or compilation of
codes for which the member is eligible. If the code billed is not within the member’s benefit package upon the date of
service, or the service billed does not meet any of the other criteria, the corresponding line of the claim is denied with
a detailed reason code that is clearly marked on the EOB.

A specific AHCCCS Prior Period Coverage (PPC) edit exists so associated rate codes are not just tied to a specific
benefit package, but also allow reduced prior authorization requirements. The claim processing logic is driven by
place of service to automatically split the claim for purposes of reinsurance. The member module of Med/MC
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contains date sensitive alert codes from which claims adjudication logic is driven. Alert codes provide a pop up
dialogue box on the processor screen when a claim for a member with an associated alert code is being adjudicated.
These dialogue boxes provide the processor with detailed information on how to adjudicate the claim if it cannot be
adjudicated by the system. Current examples of alert code indicators include case management, maternal or
obstetrical care, prescription restrictions, catastrophic reinsurance, asthma, , dual eligible member, Head Start,
hospicc, transplant, and RBHA.

Provider Eligibility Edits

Rendering and billing service providers are validated against the provider module of Med/MC to ensure current
AHCCCS registration for the dates of service billed. This comparison is performed by a complex series of ‘pinpoint’
logic that includes National Provider Identification Number (NPI), Tax Identification Number (TIN), as well as
billing and service address data. If their registration has lapsed or is invalid, the claim is denied.

The provider eligibility or AHCCCS registration date segment is then queried to determine in/out of network
classification. Each classification has specific prior authorization and medical record criteria for services rendered. If
the criteria are not met, the claim is denied with a detailed reason code and communicated to the provider via an EOB.

If the AHCCCS registration is valid for the date(s) of service associated with the claim, the logic of Med/MC then
ensures that the services billed fall within the provider’s AHCCCS assigned Category of Service (COS). This is
possible because of the hierarchical adjudication logic within Med/MC. Each provider is assigned one to many COS,
which are linked to corresponding CPT and HCPCS codes. If the provider is not registered to provide the COS under
which the CPT or HCPCS reside, the associated claim lines are denied with detailed reason codes and communicated
to the provider via an EOB.

To administer custom provider contract terms that are especially prevalent in the rural counties, notes or indicators are
placed on the corresponding provider’s records in the Med/MC provider module. ‘Pop up’ boxes are activated for a
corresponding provider to alert claims processing, prior authorizations, or member PCP assignment staff of special
pricing methodologies, claim adjudication, and/or prior authorization instructions. These edits assist in reducing the
risk of incorrect adjudication and subsequent recoupment of erroneously paid claims.

Date Related Edits

To ensure the integrity of claims data, Med/MC has numerous edits that validate the interfaced or inputted provider,
member and claim information. Provider DEA and NPI numbers are validated against their national verification
algorithms to ensure accuracy.

To validate that claims and subsequently their encounters are received within the AHCCCS timeliness standards, two
date of service sensitive edits are run. The first edit verifies the claim has been received by HCA within 12 months
from the date of service. If this edit passes, a second edit validates the initial claim was received within 6 months
from the date of service or date the corresponding eligibility segment was posted by AHCCCS. Two tiers of
timeliness edits enables claims processors to verify any initial claim submissions within the six month timeframe.

Med/MC validates the accuracy and status of all codes billed. This verification is performed by comparing the codes
and date(s) of service on the claim with to those ICD-9, CDT, CPT, HCPCS, and/or Revenue codes obtained from
Ingenix, HCA’s reference information supplier. If the code does not match or is not active on the date of service, the
corresponding claim line(s) is denied with a detailed reason code communicated to the provider via an EOB.
Med/MC utilizes duplicate claim logic to ensure against paying the same claim more than once. For CMS 1500
forms, this duplicate logic yields positive if a comparison performed with another claim against member identification
number, provider identification number (AHCCCS ID or NPI), billed code, billed charges and date of service match.
This claim is subsequently denied for exact duplicate. For institutional claims, bill type and revenue code are
included. When adjudicating dental claims, tooth number and surface identifiers are a part of the logic. If only four
of the criteria match, a possible-duplicate edit will alert the processor to analyze the claim more closely to determine
if in fact the claim is a duplicate to a previous submission.

In addition to the edits referenced above, institutional claims are validated at the header level for valid
Admit/Discharge hour, Admit Type, Admit Source, Patient Status and Condition codes. The national values are
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downloaded from Ingenix and stored in Med/MC. Occurrence codes and their dates along with principal procedure
codes and their date combinations are edited to ensure they are billed when appropriate and valid when billed.

All institutional claims with outpatient places of service are edited against AHCCCS specific Outpatient Fee Schedule
(OPFS) methodology that is downloaded from the ‘Refe’ Files twice monthly. All AHCCCS OPES decision tree
logic has been emulated in Med/MC to review revenue codes, procedure codes, modifier applicability and pricing,
along with ER and Surgery bundling and unbundling logic. Furthermore, Med/MC is configured to pay the provider
the OPFS fee schedule at the appropriate provider peer group multiplier per the provider reference table. This
capability, while difficult to implement, has enabled HCA to auto adjudicate most outpatient claims.

Clinical Edits

Clinical edits are in place to ensure all billed services are in compliance with age restrictions, frequency limitations,
multiple surgery reductions, global day bundling, multi channel lab test bundling, National Correct Coding Initiatives
(NCC), Local Coverage Determinations (LCD or LMRP) and gender restrictions that are integrated into Med/MC.
NCCI and LCD or LMRP are utilized to determine mutually exclusive and/or comprehensive coding accuracy.
Med/MC’s Mutually Exclusive Edits check for codes billed together that cannot be billed on the same date of service.
Two procedures representing two different methods to accomplish the same therapeutic result may have been
employed and only the successful procedure need be reported. The alternative procedure will be denied by Med/MC.
Column1/Column 2 Edits — Formerly known as Comprehensive and component codes, are unbundled pairs that
should be part of the same service. An example of this would be billing a surgeon billing for amputation of an arm
and wound therapy with instructions for home care. Med/MC edits will deny for these inappropriate billings.

Multiple Surgery Reductions are automated, the first is paid at 100%, and the rest of the surgeries (not inclusive of the
first) will be paid at 50%, unless there is a bi lateral modifier which pays at 150% of the AHCCCS fee schedule.

Global day bundling edits are in place to catch those additional or follow-up claims that should have been included in
services that were previously billed. For major procedures the edit is 90 days and for minor procedures the edit is 10
days from the date of the original procedure.

Multiple channel lab test bundling is the billing for multiple, individual lab tests that are included in or a part of a
comprehensive lab. Med/MC currently edits for and denies these multiple lab tests as included in the comprehensive
lab test fee. Additionally, the validity of diagnosis to CPT/HCPCS combinations is automatically reviewed against
the Arizona specific LCD/LMRPs to distinguish medical reasonableness of the coding.

For dental procedures, tooth number and surface count are verified. If a modifier is billed with a HCPCS or CPT
code, the modifier is reviewed for status, applicability, and percent of fee schedule change to be applied. The values
utilized to validate this information are downloaded directly from the AHCCCS ‘Refe’ files twice monthly.

In conjunction with the edits above, logic exists within Med/MC to trigger medical review for claims that meet
specific criteria. Claims triggered for Medical Review are routed to the HCA Medical Services Department for
review by clinical staff. Claims reviewed by clinical staff include those with a condition code 61 which meet the
statewide outlier threshold, inpatient claims on which concurrent review authorization does not match the claim
billed, claims on which associated prior authorization is in a “hold” or “review” status, claims for which services
incurred are during the member’s PPC eligibility segment, claims billed with a generic or non-descript code, such as
CPT or HCPCS codes ending in “-99”, and claims comprised of code(s) whose corresponding payment are denoted
“by report” (BR). These medical review criteria are analyzed quarterly to ensure they are a value added requirement
of the HCA claims adjudication process. Over the past year, several requirements have been relaxed.

Claims Edits and Effective Provider Network Management

HCA believes that edits are only part of the job of ensuring that services rendered to AHCCCS members are
medically effective, covered Medicaid services and are performed subject to program limitations and sound practice.
These strong edits coupled with vigorous and detailed provider communication channels including the HCA Provider
Portal, Remittance Advice (RA), coding seminars, newsletters, claims call center inbound/outbound correspondence,
as well as onsite one-on-one claim issue education. These efforts ensure that providers understand what benefits are
covered before the patient is treated, so that services rendered can be reimbursed accurately and promptly, resulting in
a high level of provider satisfaction with HCA.
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ENCOUNTERS

REQUIREMENT #10

Submit a description of the Offeror’s encounter submissions process including, but not limited to, how accuracy, timeliness and completeness are ensured, how
data is extracted from the system and the remediation process when AHCCCS standards are not met. The description should include the tracking, trending,
reporting, process improvement, and monitoring submissions of encounters and encounter revisions. Include any feedback mechanisms to the encounter process
that improves encounter accuracy, timeliness and completeness. The submission requirement will be a maximum of four pages and four pages of flowcharts.

Health Choice Arizona (HCA) understands the significance of providing accurate and timely encounter data, as this
data is the cornerstone from which some of the most important AHCCCS processes and measures are based. HCA
understands that excellent encounter data is a key measure of excellent health plan performance, and has committed
the organization to a process of continuous quality improvement to encounter data processing.

Encounter Quality Begins with Accurate Provider Billing

HCA has honed a special cooperative relationship with the providers in its provider network. HCA has established
claim submission time limits and requirements that are communicated to providers via the HCA Provider Manual,
HCA Provider Portal, site-visits, coding seminars and the Claims Customer Service Call Center. In addition Health
Choice has leamed that providers who use electronic claim submission methods have higher claims adjudication rates,
and benefit from faster payment, and fewer rebills. HCA has heavily promoted its electronic claims submission
options over paper claims submission, resulting in a substantial increase in electronic claims, from 27% in 2007 to
over 70% in 2011, '

HCA Reference Files are aligned with AHCCCS Reference Files

HCA utilizes the medical service codes, ASC Fee Schedules, Outpaticnt Fee Schedules, and provider information
supplied by AHCCCS from each ‘refe’ file cycle as well as multiple industry-standard coding tools to confirm the
appropriateness and correctness of the services billed. This routine process keeps HCA plan data in synch with
AHCCCS data in PMMIS that is used for Encounter Data Processing. When a discrepancy is found between national
standards and AHCCCS determinations on code coverage and limitations, HCA’s Chief Medical Officer and the
Claims Manager coordinate with AHCCCS medical and operations staff to resolve the issue(s) and subsequently
update the provider community through outreach and education if necessary.

ANSI 834 Files for Daily and Monthly Enrollment Notification, Potential Transition Listing, Active Care Listing,
Prior Plan Listing, Members with Choice, Review, and Third Party Liability are all continuously processed and
loaded into the Member Master in Med/MC, and forwarded to ESI as applicable for pharmacy claims processing.

Med/MC Processing Accuracy

In order to proactively ensure encounter data accuracy, HCA has designed Med/MC to require appropriate provider
billing through system edits that includes at a minimum that same edits that AHCCCS applies to encounter
processing. HCA has refined its claims adjudication system over 15 years of continuous operations our edits include:

o Comparison of date of service to receipt date to ensure initial claim was received within 6 months from date
of service or eligibility postingEdit for comparison of date of service to receipt date when this exceeds 12
months

» Possible duplicate claim identification

» Exact duplicate claims identification

« System alerts for members with other insurance coverage/TPL

o  Alerts for members under case management

+ Verification that prior authorization information matches date/type of service on claim

»  Alerts for members with Prior Period Coverage (PPC)

o Alerts for invalid or terminated procedure/diagnosis codes

+ Edit for age limitations for CPT/Diagnosis codes

 Edit for frequency limitations on CPT/Diagnosis codes :

Confirmation that the provider is approved to provide a particular service per AHCCCS guidelines

« Automatic calculation of anesthesia base and time unit maximums for epidural anesthesia to ensure that HCA
payment 1s limited to the maximum allowable units per AHCCCS guidelines

» Edit check for bundling and unbundling of codes (CCI)

» Global Day Bundling
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o  Multi Channel Lab Test Bundling

o Multiple Surgical Reductions

« Edit check for validity of diagnosis to CPT/HCPC code combinations.(CCI)Edits for NPI number validation
o Edits for Occurrence codes and dates, Condition codes, and Value Codes and amounts on institutional claims
«  Edits for valid field values on Admit/Discharge hour, Type, Source and Status

« Edits for Prior Authorization requirements that align with plan guidelines

» Edit for CPT to Modifier combinations

o OPFS logic using AHCCCS Reference tables

Encounter Data Submission Processing

Med/MC, the claims adjudication engine that is leveraged by Health Choice has a native encounters module to
generate encounter data files for all paid and denied/non covered claims, claims adjustments, and claim voids which
are processed. These data files are in HIPAA compliant ANSI 837, P.I, and D and NCPDP formats ready for
submission to AHCCCS and include billed and paid units and charges. Encounters are submitted for all covered
services rendered by AHCCCS registered providers, including those services provided during Prior Period Coverage
(PPC). HCA ensures adherence to AHCCCS encounter timeliness guidelines by submitting encounters to AHCCCS
within 240 days from the end of the 6 months of service, or the date of enrollment, whichever is later.

Exhibit F is a flowchart which depicts the steps in the HCA Encounter Data Submission Process. HCA adheres to the
AHCCCS Technical Interface Guidelines and the AHCCCS Encounter Reporting User Manual for the submission of
all encounter data to AHCCCS.

Five days prior to the close of the twice monthly AHCCCS encounters cycle, the HCA Claims/Encounter Analyst
generates distinct encounter files for CMS-1500 claims (837P), Universal Billing (UB 04) claims (8371), dental
claims (837D), pharmacy claims (NCPDP) and Pended Encounter Corrections. Each filc contains all claims that were
paid or denied, as well as all encounter pends that were corrected since the previous submission (Replacement and
Voids). All encounter transactions are transferred to the AHCCCS FTP server via a secure FTP connection. To
ensure all adjudicated claims were exported to an AHCCCS encounter file, the Claims/Encounter Analyst runs a
reconciliation job within Med/MC that compares successfully adjudicated claims (Paid and Denied) to those on the
encounter file. If there are exceptions, those claims are then exported to be included within the encounter files to be
submitted to AHCCCS.

After submission, Transaction Insight (TI) is leveraged to track and trend throughput rates as well as rejected
encounter reasons. This trending of detailed encounter issues is reviewed by Med/MC business analysts as well as
claims management staff to refine claims policies and procedures as well as claims processor education materials.
Additionally, the claims and IS teams develop enhancements to the Med/MC claims engine logic to further reduce
encounter rejects and pends. Furthermore, TI is a streamlined resource leveraged by HCA to identify file syntax
errors not otherwise caught in Med/MC or Claredi, the mainstream ANSI X12 transaction editing software used by
HCA for validation.

The Healthcare Payer Unsolicited Claims Status Transaction (U277) is generated by AHCCCS and sent to the plans
as notification of status for current, distinct encounters that have been adjudicated by AHCCCS during the most recent
cycle. Once the U277 is received by Health Choice from AHCCCS, it is processed by Med/MC, updating the
appropriate claim records. One of the reasons HCA has achieved success in encounter processing is Med/MC’s ability
to natively manage both the claims processing and encounter submission process, without the need for a separate
system or service. The encounter information as well as the claim adjudication results are housed within the same
module and set of screens.

If a claim encounter is pended by AHCCCS due to the result of a subcontracted relationship requiring specific
payment rules outside normal operating guidelines, HCA provides the subcontract and/or medical record information
to the encounters unit to resolve the pended claims quickly.

Once the encounters team receives the pended and denied encounters for the cycle in a Med/MC work queue, the

oldest encounters are reviewed and fixed first. For cach corrected claim/encounter, replacement or voided
encounters will be sent to AHCCCS during the next available cycle to reflect the appropriate change.
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When HCA must delete a pended encounter, HCA documents the deletion in the delete log with the associated Claims
Reference Number (CRN) and reason for the deletion. These are also viewed by management and the IS business
analysts to develop process and system configuration changes to avoid their future occurrence.

Although the AHCCCS benchmark for aged encounters is sct at 120 days, the Health Choice internal standard is to fix
all claims within 30 days to ensure plenty of time to resubmit and process. Within the past 12 months, Health Choice
has been able to reduce those encounters aged over 120 days to below 40.

Tracking and Trending to Continuously Improve Encounter Data Quality

Because the successful submission and adjudication of encounters is a strategic core process, HCA maintains several
tracking and trending reports to ensure its success. First and foremost, HCA utilizes the Encounter Submission
Tracking Report (ESTR) to record by submission month and form type: the number of claims encountered,
adjudicated, pended, and resolved. In addition, the TA1, 997 and 824 transaction reports gencrated by AHCCCS are
utilized to track and reconcile the transfer process. Deleted encounters are documented in the encounter deletion log.
Encounter per member months trends are also reviewed to ensure there are no macro fluctuations to the number of
encounters being submitted per claim type. Exhibit G depicts the encounter data monitoring and reconciliation
processes used by HCA to ensure that each encounter record is processed. In the event a file transfer fails, the
information is recorded with the error being corrected and the file being resubmitted to AHCCCS within the required
submission timeframe.

To monitor the encounter submission process, HCA has developed 3 additional auditing tools to validate that all
adjudicated claims are accurately submitted as encounters to AHCCCS and that a response is received from AHCCCS
for each encounter.

o Encounter Omission Tool The first tool is utilized to trap encounter omissions. Found omissions are
consequently resent to AHCCCS during the following cycle and a root cause analysis is performed to
understand and ultimately fix the issue that resulted in the encounter or response not to be transmitted.

+ Encounter Reconciliation Tool The second tool queries Med/MC for any claims that have been finalized
(adjudication plus final edits), but do not indicate as being sent to AHCCCS as an encounter. This tool uses
logic that performs a comparison of the claim events in Med/MC with all AHCCCS cncounter responses.
Encounters, to which a response has not been received, are resubmitted to AHCCCS and a root cause analysis
1s performed to determine the source of and ultimately develop a solution for the issue.

» Financial Reconciliation Tool The third tool encompasses a monthly comparison between the adjudicated
encounter’s financial fields and the financial fields within Med/MC to ensure that the amount being paid to
the provider mirrors the amount being encountered. This reconciliation process enables HCA to accurately
forecast and balance expenses and encounter submission accuracy while ensuring AHCCCS actuarics receive
an accuratc rcflection of the expensc incurred to cover the benefit package for which HCA is responsible.

Feedback Mechanisms

An additional source of process improvement is quarterly AHCCCS Encounters and Reinsurance one-on-one
meetings. In these meetings, AHCCCS personnel from the encounters and reinsurance units discuss trends in
encounter issues. What is valuable about these meetings is that the AHCCCS personnel not only relay the issues, but
help problem solve with the plan as to why the issue may be occurring. This process has resulted in many encounter
areas of opportunity being fixed before acute issues arose. '

As stated earlier, Health Choice encounter analysts work with Claims and IS Management after each encounters cycle
to track and trend denial, pend and reject rates and reasons. These are then translated into either system configuration
changes, enhanced system logic/edits, and/or manual process changes that can be made on the claims adjudication
floor to reduce these trends and ultimately increase throughput and adjudication accuracy.
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Exhibit F:
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Exhibit G:
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Requirement #11




INFORMATION SYSTEMS

REQUIREMENT #11

Describe the structure (internal and external) of the Offeror’s information system and the hardware and software that supports or will support the ALTCS line of
business, including a diagram of the information system and data processing flow with all existing or planned interfaces. If not a current ALTCS Contractor, the
Offeror must include a detailed plan for ensuring that all IS requirements will be met prior 1o the contract start date. The submission requirement will be a

maximum of ten pages, plus flowcharts.

Health Choice Arizona (HCA) is a health plan that places a high priority on serving the needs of its members, who are
Medicaid and Medicare beneficiaries with unique health needs and health care access challenges. To ensure that
members’ needs are met, clinical, administrative and financial information is maintained in an accurate and accessible
format to support decision making and health plan operations. An information-driven organization, HCA places a
high prionty on Information Systems, which are located in the HCA headquarters in Phoenix, Arizona.

Information Systems Organization

The HCA IS Department is organized functionally into three teams: opcrational support/business analysis, software
development, and infrastructure. The Director of Information Systems oversees the operational and technical
components of the IS organization. The Director is responsible for deploying IS resources, as required by state and
federal agencics, senior leadership, and the nceds of the business units. The Director works closely with
Administration, Medical Management and Operations leadership in order to define short and long term needs of the
organization.

The Director provides training and leadership to the IS Department, plans long term initiatives, and ensures a strong
customer focus among all IS staff. In addition, the Director serves as the primary liaison with outside vendors on both
new implementations and continuing projects.

Operations and Business Analysis Team

The IS Operations Manager oversees the operational support team. The operations team consists of Business
Analysts, Quality Analysts, Provider Demographics Coordinators and a Claims/Encounters Analyst. The Business
and Quality Analysts are primarily responsible for all design, maintenance, documentation and quality assurance for
HCA’s software environment, which includes the Med/MC Claims Adjudication System (Med/MC), CareRadius
Medical Management System, and proprietary web applications and business intelligence components.

+ Business Analysts are well versed in HCA’s core strategic business processes and continuously educated
regarding Medicaid regulations and requirements as set forth in the current contract and agency updates.

+ Quality Analysts are tasked with verification and validation of software updates, enhancements, bug fixes,
and NET Framework application modules. This process along with the disparate system environments of
development, test, staging and production, allows HCA to thoroughly assess system updates and changes
before deployment to the business users.

+ Provider Demographic Coordinators are responsible for the accurate and timely input of provider
demographic and contract payment data into Med/MC. These positions are located within the IT department
to ensure segregation of duties between individuals negotiating and executing the provider agreements and
those inputting those agreements into Med/MC.

» Claims/Encounter Analysts are responsible for daily file exchanges, provider check runs, and processing of
EDI files into Med/MC. In addition to these daily processes, the Claims/Encounter Analyst receives and
transmits file requests with HCA’s business partners such as Emdeon Business Services (EBS) and Express
Scripts Incorporated (ESI). The Claims/Encounter Analyst not only performs the computer operator
functions, but audits for validation and troubleshoots file errors.

System Development Team

The development team consists of Web Developers, Database Developers, Report Analysts and a Database
Administrator. The Director of IS works closely with the system development team to make architectural decisions,
implement suitable technologies for HCA’s business needs, and guide the development of web applications.

+  Web Developers are responsible for the development and maintenance of NET Framework applications
written in C#, as well as the maintenance of the HCA internet, intranet and extranet.
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» Database Administrator is responsible for data architecture and data management including performance
tuning, optimization, and support of the development and production database environments for all
application projects.

7N » Report Analysts are responsible for fulfilling report requests based upon business needs. The Report Analyst

\__ uses a robust set of tools provided by Microsoft Visual Studio and SQL Server in conjunction with web based
reporting tools. These reports are designed with multiple user-defined parameters for input, allowing
management to sort and filter critical business data as their needs change.

Infrastructure Team

Infrastructure support is performed by a Network Supervisor, 2 System Administrators and a PC Technician. These
roles maintain the integrity/security and overall appropriate working order of all networked devices by establishing
and maintaining LAN security, workstation and network performance, troubleshooting network issues, maintaining
technical knowledge, cvaluating softwarc, and maintaining documecntation. The Network Supervisor is also
responsible for business continuity plan testing, and training new employees on HIPAA security.

The combination of these three units enables the IS organization to achieve optimal alignment with core strategic
functions of the health plan as well as the Medicaid Program as a whole. It is this combination on inward focus and
outside orientation that enables IS to be so effective in support of HCA.

HCA Software Environment

HCA’s business process understanding serves as the model on which its technical foundation rests. Using technology
to propel, rather than steer the business, HCA has built internal and extemal facing capabilitics that complement
tailored third party software applications that are integrated and operated as a multifaceted systems environment
supporting both transaction processing and analytical business needs. The HCA software environment is composed of
best of breed components which are tailored to the business needs of HCA.

Overview of HCA Software Environment
The HCA software environment is designed around a heterogeneous operational environment that enables HCA to
N fully integrate and interoperate across different systems and to communicate effectively with internal and external
\_ data sources in real time (see Exhibit H). HCA has taken an evolutionary approach to its systems capabilitics, and has
built upon the core elements of its claims processing system, Med/MC, and Care Management System, CareRadius,
which serves as the central application for all HCA Medical Management activities. What makes the environment
distinctive and innovative is the creative use of the newest information technology to support unique HCA
information needs for provider data management, data warehouse and analytical reporting, quality managcment, and
web portal access. In addition, HCA contracts with Emdeon to provide data acquisition and fulfillment services,
enabling HCA to operate in a nearly paperless environment.

Med/MC

Med/MC is the claims adjudication software that is leveraged by Health Choice. Med/MC was developed and is
currently supported by CPU Medical Management Systems (CPU). It was developed utilizing CL, RPG, and ILE
languages, and IBM’s DB/2 database. Med/MC provides HCA with a comprehensive and cost effective solution for
managing its member’s claims. The robust Med/MC solution integrates member and provider data with claims
adjudication and provider payment functionality. Mcd/MC cnables both auto-adjudication and manual adjudication of
paper and electronic claims, and readily supports both fee-for-service and capitation payment functionality.

The Med/MC electronic upload process leverages initial edits such as member eligibility that if failed will result in a
Front End Reject with a subsequent detailed letter of the reject reason being sent to the provider. Once the initial edits
are passed, the claims are associated with the matching provider record in the Med/MC Provider Module. Claims that
cannot be assigned a matching provider record are placed on an exception report to be worked by the Provider
Demographic Coordinator. Once the reason for the non-match is found and fixed, if applicable, the file is reloaded in
order to interfacc any claims for the impacted providers. Claims that do not interface at this stage trigger a reject
letter to be sent to the provider due to lack of AHCCCS registration or incorrect demographic information.

/ ™ Claims Scrubbing

~..~ In order to proactively ensure claims and encounter data accuracy, HCA has designed Med/MC to require appropriate
provider billing through system edits that include, but may not be limited to the following:
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The Med/MC claims adjudication system allows HCA access to multiple years of claims history. In addition to
claims adjudication, other principal components of the Med/MC software enable HCA to maintain core information
related to benefit plans, members, claims, providers, medical procedure coding and prior authorization. The Med/MC
claims processing system receives claims in ANSI 837 or NCPDP formats and completes the claims adjudication and
payment processes to generate both ANSI 835 and EFT payments and checks. Mcd/MC contains numerous clinical
and relationship edits for claims adjudication These edits include member eligibility, provider verification, and
clinical edits, as well as strong data validation processes.

+ Validation Edits are applied to logically ensure that required data is present and syntactically correct. These
are simple data attribute edits that largely exist to catch data entry edits and to validate complex EDI data
requirements.

+ Relationship Edits compare data present on the claim with information which is on file in Med/MC.
Comprising the bulk of Med/MC edits, relationship edits are table driven and have been continuously refined
to meet both AHCCCS and HCA policy. Duplicate check edits are another type of relationship edit which
compares member/service date/and service code relationships across claims or internally on the same claim.

+ Clinical Edits implement medical policy or medical practice standards as defined by an independent health
care reference authority, such as the American Medical Association for Current Procedure Terminology
(CPT) procedure codes, or CMS for HCPCS and Correct Coding Initiative edits. Many of these edits are
implemented based on information HCA has received from AHCCCS on reference files or in loading updates
from AMA and CMS.

More specifically, these edits include:

»  Comparison of date of service to receipt date to ensure initial claim was received within 6 months from date
of service or eligibility posting

+ Edit for comparison of date of service to receipt date when this exceeds 12 months

» Possible duplicate claim identification

+ Exact duplicate claims identification

» System alerts for members with other insurance coverage/TPL

o  Alerts for members under case management

+ Verification that prior authorization information matches date/type of service on claim

» Alerts for members with Prior Period Coverage (PPC)

» Alerts for invalid or terminated procedure/diagnosis codes

+ Edit for age limitations for CPT/Diagnosis codes

» Edit for frequency limitations on CPT/Diagnosis codes

» Confirmation that the provider is approved to render a particular service per AHCCCS guidelines

+ Automatic calculation of anesthesia base and time unit maximums for anesthesia to ensure that HCA payment
1s limited to the maximum allowable units per AHCCCS guidelines

» Edit check for bundling and unbundling of codes (CCI)

»  Edit check for validity of diagnosis to CPT/HCPC code combinations.(CCI)

»  Edits for NPI number validation

» Edits for Occurrence codes and dates, Condition codes, and Valuc Codes and amounts on institutional claims

+  Edits for valid field values on Admit/Discharge hour, Type, Source and Status

» Edits for Prior Authorization requirements that align with plan guidelines

+  Edit for CPT to Modificr combinations

»  OPFS logic using AHCCCS Reference tables

Additionally, HCA utilizes the medical coding and provider information supplied by AHCCCS from each ‘Refe’ file
cycle as well as multiple industry-standard coding tools such as Ingenix Data Files and Encoder Pro to confirm the
appropriateness and correctness of the services billed.

Information Hub and Data Exchange Med/MC is HCA’s primary data store on which our members’ and providers’
PHI is securely maintained. Daily transfers as well as reports are generated from the data residing in Med/MC.
Med/MC has been designed to fully integrate all AHCCCS Technical Interfaces. ANSI 834 Files related to Daily and
Monthly Enrollment Notification, Potential Transition Listing, Active Care Listing, Prior Plan Listing, Members with
Choice, Review, and Third Party Liability are loaded into the Member Master in Med/MC. Processing of the ANSI
834 files results in the generation of automated reports, which are reviewed by HCA’s Member Services Department.
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Member Services reviews the eligibility data loaded to Med/MC and ensures that valid dates and rate codes are
displayed for new members. ANSI 820 Capitation files, Daily and Monthly Rate Code Summaries, and Reinsurance
reports are also loaded to Med/MC for analysis by the HCA Finance Department. IS operations staff load Reference
files from AHCCCS to ensure that current service codes, ASC Group Bundling, and Outpatient Fee Schedules are
applied accurately for claims adjudication. Med/MC also creates encounter files in HIPAA 837 and NCPDP formats,
for weekly transmission to Medicaid. Pended encounter files and response files are processed and displayed by
Med/MC. HCA integrates its provider data through bi-directional data feeds with AHCCCS, in order to maintain up-
to-date provider registration information. When HCA loads the Provider File from AHCCCS, the IS Department
generates the resultant reports with Network Services. These reports are reviewed to ensure data quality, such as to
validate date fields.

Member Management Med/MC contains a proven member services module for supporting HCA membership. This
module contains member demographics, plan history, eligibility data, and links directly to the primary care physician
record. Each member’s record allows for easy access to all claims for services rendered for the member, including
labs, PCP, and spccialist visits. Member call tracking is conducted through the member services module as well,
giving HCA staff the ability to effectively view a snapshot of any member’s call history, and related support
documentation. Member letters can also be produced from this module, simplifying integrated outreach to members
regarding enrollment, plan changes, disease management, case management, and health and wellness programs.

Provider Payment Med/MC provides efficient, accurate payments to providers for fee-for-service and capitation
payment methodologies. The capitation features enabled by Med/MC are varied and flexible, supporting a wide array
of provider contracting options. This is critical in working with HCA’s large rural provider network. The capitation
module can apply varied fee schedules based on county, zip codes, and member rate codes, and allows for flat-rate
payments based on assigned members, which is often used for ancillary or intuitional care providers. For more
complex contracts, Med/MC can house capitation fee schedules with specific procedure code carve-outs to be paid
using a fee-for-service methodology.

CareRadius Medical and Care Management System

CareRadius is the medical management software that supports HCA’s Medicaid and Medicare Special Needs Plans.
Landacorp, a division of SHPS, is the firm that developed CareRadius. CarcRadius is an enterprise-level care
management workflow solution, developed using state-of-the-art technology. CareRadius provides HCA with a single
platform for managing all medical management activities. The architecture of the CareRadius software suite is
extremely flexible, allowing for detailed workflow customizations, multiple data source integration, complex
reporting, and comprehensive clinical decision support tools.

Long Term Care Functionality CareRadius provides a fully featured suite of workflow tools that is uniquely
targeted to meeting the varied needs of a Long Term Care population. Due to its configurable assessment capabilities,
CareRadius can casily be used as the platform for the standard ALTCS Universal Assessment Tool (UAT). Once a
case manager enters answers for a member’s UAT, CareRadius will analyze the member’s diagnoses, and through the
use of industry standard clinical criteria (McKesson’s InterQual Coordinated Care Content), a targeted Individualized
Service Plan (ISP) will be created for the Case Manager to then edit and tailor to the specific needs of the member.
Once an ISP is saved for the member, CareRadius will trigger follow-up tasks for other members of the
interdisciplinary care team. For example, if the member is diabetic, a task would be sent to a diabetic case
manager/educator to review the member’s history, and depending on the severity of the case, recurring tasks could be
generated on a set schedule.

Care Management CarcRadius has enabled HCA’s Medical Management leadership team to operationatize its broad
medical management strategy, focusing on high-risk case management and improving health outcomes for members.
This is especially important in managing special needs and ALTCS members. The member risk profiling functionality
in CareRadius examines claims history for each member, and calculates risk metrics, such as likelihood of a hospital
admission and overall risk score. These risk metrics, when combined with the specific diagnoses of each member,
triggers enrollment in case management (CM) and disease management (DM) programs. HCA has created targeted,
flexible care plans for its CM and DM programs in order to treat conditions such as congestive heart failure, diabetes,
and cancer. Each of these CM and DM programs has an associated workflow in CareRadius, which enables
streamlined care coordination between members of the interdisciplinary care team. Following these care plans, HCA
clinical staff engages in written and telephonic communication with members enrolled in these programs, offering
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assistance tailored to each member’s needs. Outreach activity is prompted through workflow triggers and actions are
logged within CareRadius, as part of the holistic member profile, which is available to all pertinent HCA staff.

Utilization Management CareRadius also contains robust utilization management (UM) and prior authorization (PA)
modules. The primary feature of the UM module is a daily inpatient census report/work queue. HCA enlists a team
of nurses that coordinate care for members in the inpatient setting, and work closely with each hospital’s case
managers to ensure that lengths of stay are in line with industry standards, as defined by McKesson’s InterQual
product. CareRadius tightly integrates the InterQual guidelines within the inpatient authorization user interface in
order to determine a proper authorization end date. Reporting of re-admits and discharges are readily available within
the UM reporting features as well. Upon admit or re-admit, Care Radius send notifications to both the concurrent
review nurse as well as the case manager to collaborate and coordinate care. CareRadius also supports HCA’s
transition-of-care planning, enabling case managers to provide care plans for members being discharged from an acute
hospital inpatient stay to a nursing facility or group home. In addition, all notes and InterQual responses are saved in
the member’s inpatient UM case within CareRadius, allowing for efficient retro review processes.

Prior Authorization The PA module of CarcRadius allows integration of faxed authorization requests and
streamlined provider portal entry by provider staff.. The medical record contained in the fax request or web-based
request allows efficient processing based on HCA clinical guidelines. Workflows for various scenarios have been
defined within the application, including outpatient surgery, specialist visits, radiology and durable medical
equipment. Each workflow contains the ability to approve, deny, downgrade from expedited to standard, reduce
approved units, or cancel the PA request, depending on the situation. In scenarios where the request clearly meets
HCA’s clinical criteria, the authorization can be automatically approved. Once a PA request is finalized, the assigned
staff member generates the required notifications in CareRadius. These include member and provider letters, and
faxed responses to the requesting provider offices.

In order to support claims payment, authorization data is exchanged between CareRadius and Med/MC. Each
authorized service or group of services is made available to the claims system, along with the procedure codes,
diagnosis codes, referring physician, referred to physician, and PA notes. In designing the exchange with Med/MC,
great care was employed to-ensure the proper grouping of procedures within authorization types. By creating groups
of codes, HCA prevents overburdening providers with the need to request each specific procedure or revenue code to
be billed, while continuing to manage care and ensure fiscal responsibility.

HCA Software Applications

The HCA software environment contains an array of internally developed modules that integrate with Med/MC and
CareRadius. Applying the Microsoft SQL database tools and .NET development framework, these modules form a
cohesive unit that supports all critical operations within HCA, including reporting, outreach, and external
communications with providers and members.

Technical Overview HCA has built internal and external Web Services, Web applications, and reporting services on
current Microsoft .NET platforms, utilizing industry-specific patterns and practices. Standardizing on Windows
servers, SQL Server data stores, and Visual Studio development environments, HCA focuses its efforts within the
wide array of .NET frameworks and tools.

HCA applies Data Transfer Systems and SQL Server Integration Services automation to create reports and share key
business data. Applying these toolsets to its data allows HCA to reorganize and restructure information to support
efficient and independent internal data consumption, while assuring the highest data integrity. Internal services and
Intranet applications are closely integrated to the core Med/MC data structures to present claims and adjudication data
clearly and precisely targeted for the intended audience and business use. Using this approach, HCA can display the
most critical aspects of claims, authorization, member, and provider data to serve the unique needs of groups such as
medical management, case management, disease management and utilization review.

Microsoft Internet Information Services (IIS) web applications are deployed within secure firewalls, using time-tested
data exchange protocols, and built upon the trusted software architecture and component-driven development
available via the growing and highly-respected Windows .NET framework. Using SOA, HCA can integrate with
business partners quickly and securely at a business process level as the need arises. SOA allows business processes
to be packaged as services, and securely exchanged with other applications or platforms without the need for a tight
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coupling at the data level. The ultimate result of an SOA approach is increased interoperability with varied
stakeholders.

HCA Recoupment Application The HCA Recoupment Application streamlines the business processes for the
Recoveries Department. The application contains functionality for tracking of all recoupment activities,
reconciliation with claims data from Med/MC, and reporting of outstanding and processed provider refunds. In
addition, provider notifications are generated, tracked, and reported via the application. Any potential recoupments
aged more than one year or in excess of $50,000 are reported by the Recoupment Application for HCA to request
approval from AHCCCS.

HCA Pharmacy Benefit Administration Pharmacy data is integrated with Med/MC using a comprehensive set of
tools from ESI, the HCA Pharmacy Benefit Administrator. HCA’s pharmacy prior authorization and medical
management incorporate ESI portal tools to house eligibility information, track pharmacy benefits, and manage the
HCA formulary. Prior authorizations for HCA member prescriptions are tracked within the ESI web-based tools. A
valuable reporting application Ttend Central allows the Pharmacy Director to identify utilization trends. When the
prescription is dispensed, ESI’s Anchor Adjudication System applies the relevant payment methodology at the point of
sale to ensure a seamless transaction for the member.

HCA Quality Management The Quality Management (QM) Application maintains AHCCCS-mandated QM metrics
and member grievance reporting related to availability of services, denial of covered benefits, effectiveness of care,
fraud, and member rights. All quality of care issues, statuses, and interventions are tracked via the QM Application.
The application also produces reports of open QM cases as well as monthly and quarterly internal and external
reports.

HCA EPSDT Tracking HCA has developed an Early Prevention, Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment (EPSDT)
tracking system designed to facilitate the review process of the 5,000 EPSDT forms received each month and to better
organize data collection. EPSDT forms are reviewed on a daily basis by Unit Specialists and the information is
entered into the HCA EPSDT Tracking where it is analyzed by provider or lab services ordered, requested referrals,
and for complementary care need indicated by age-appropriate screenings. This information is utilized to identify
trends, and to provide outreach and education.

HCA Childhood Immunization The Childhood Immunization Application is yet another QM tool, which provides
progressive tracking of childhood immunizations. The application tracks and reports immunization data for HCA
members’, including Med/MC claims data and data from the Arizona State Immunization Information System
(ASIIS). The Childhood Immunization Application efficiently manages all aspects of member and provider outreach
and monitoring, and assists HCA to identify specific issues and barriers associated with childhood immunization
rates. EPSDT Specialists review immunization status and proactively initiate member outreach beforc key age
milestones of 9 months, 15 months, 18 months and 24 months.

HCA Credentialing The Credentialing Application is a vital part of HCA’s integrated software environment. This
application stores and tracks a wide range of data on the HCA provider network, including board certifications,
specialty codes, languages spoken, and provider demographics. The application creates advanced reporting by
provider specialty and location, PCP panel reporting, and audits for appointment availability. It also produces mailing
lists and outreach notifications for providers that are nearing their re-credentialing period. The Credentialing
Application assists the Network Services department to re-credential providers within required timeframes, reducing
potential hassle factor for providers, and ensuring that HCA maintain a high-quality network of physicians across the
state of Arizona.

HCA Provider Demographic Maintenance (PDM) PDM is a key component for the Network Services department
at HCA. This application allows for the timely input, storage, display, and reporting of provider contracts and
demographic data. Closely integrated with Med/MC, PDM extends functionality to allow the Audit department to
verify that contracts are loaded correctly to assure timely and accurate claims payment. The application maintains a
full audit trail of all provider changes, and once verified for accuracy, the data is posted back to the Med/MC provider
database.
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HCA Site Visit To manage the Network Services Department’s required outreach to providers, the IS Department has
built and deployed a Site Visit Application. The Site Visit Application serves as a common gateway for the Network
staff to input and search provider data, and generate reports. Network representatives are all equipped with laptops to
securely VPN into the HCA network and log visits into the Site Visit Application. A call log form is integrated into
the application as well, to allow tracking of call history to each provider.

HCA Provider Inquiry In order to quickly identify any provider issues, HCA has developed a Provider Inquiry
Application. When provider offices call to request information regarding electronic claims submission, claims
adjudication, payment, or any other issues, customer service representatives enter a description of the provider’s call
into the application. Reports are generated from this application, and reviewed frequently by Administration and
Operations personnel to identify trends in provider issues. This allows HCA to remediate provider issues quickly and
effectively, facilitating the growth of a strong provider network to serve HCA members’ medical needs.

HCA Provider Portal HCA’s software environment makes a wealth of tools available in support of the diverse needs
of its provider network and community. The primary electronic tool used by HCA providers is the Provider Portal,
available via secure login to the HCA website. The Provider Portal provides functionality to view and search claims
status, member eligibility, and prior authorizations. Providers can also upload HIPAA 837 files via a secure web
session on the provider portal. The HCA website also includes information regarding billing requirement changes,
formulary updates, clinical criteria, links to commonly used referral/prior authorization forms, and the most recent
provider manual.

HCA Member Portal In support of members’ needs for timely information and access to services, the HCA data
integrates closely with the external HCA website http://www.healthchoiceaz.com. The member portion of the site
contains a number of member-centric tools including a dynamic, searchable provider directory. The directory allows
searches by provider name, specialty, sub-specialty, zip code, county, and language spoken. All AHCCCS-required
information is available on the website, including drug formulary, member handbook, performance measure results,
and provider listing. Members are guided to make healthier life choices in areas including prenatal care, oral health,
diabetes care, and other preventive measures. The member portal also includes information on how to obtain
transportation and detailed descriptions of the member rights and responsibilities, and HCA’s partnerships with
community-based organizations.

HCA Transportation Tracking (AAA) HCA has built an application to automatically import key data from AAA
Cab Service on an hourly basis. The application integrates with AAA’s trip tracking system, and makes reservation
and availability information accessible by the HCA Member Services department in its Phoenix. Through the AAA
Application, HCA can ensure both the highest quality customer service by staffing the function internally, and the
timeliest access to transportation information needed by its members. The end result of this application is fewer
missed trips and greater access to care for the member, while improving call center service metrics for the Member
Services department.

HCA Data Warehouse The data sources within the software environment are aggregated into a data warehouse using
multidimensional Online Analytical Processing (OLAP) cubes, designed in SQL Server 2008 Analysis Services. The
data warehouse consists of three main tiers. Data is extracted from Med/MC and the other sources and placed in a
staging area, where error trapping and data cleansing take place. From there, the data presentation layer is built,
consisting of dimensional data marts that correspond to specific business processes. The final layer consists of data
access tools. The data access tools include web-based tools for report generation, and Microsoft Excel for display of
complex data via pivot tables and standard grid views.

HCA Data Warehouse provides management with both aggregate and drill-down views of utilization data. Subsets of
data are defined based on the types of reports end users need. The HCA Data Warehouse produces critical reports that
analyze member and provider utilization, claims and financial data. Examples of these reports include HEDIS
measures, EPSDT measures, HCA Provider Profile and the Quarterly Quality Management reports. In addition to
these standard reports, HCA creates reports on an ad hoc basis as questions arise during the normal course of
business.
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Information Systems Environment and Interfaces

HCA employs rigorous hardware and data processing standards to maintain the highest possible level of performance
and security for all internal and external stakeholders. A schematic illustrating the HCA systems environment is
included as Exhibit L.

Data Center All hardware is housed in HCA'’s state-of-the-art data center, which is a fully secured and controlled
environment facilitating the highest levels of reliability and performance. The data center is secured through a
combination of RF proximity access card, biometric scanning, and 24/7 video surveillance. The data center contains
redundant air conditioning units which maintain proper air temperature and control humidity and static buildup to
ensure optimal operation of equipment. Fire suppression is handled by an automated deployment system to deliver
the waterless FM-200 fire suppressant. All servers in the datacenter boast dual power supplies, connected to
independent electrical circuits, with each circuit protected by its own enterprise level uninterruptible power supply
(UPS). The UPS is supplemented by a refillable diesel generator that can indefinitely provide power to the data
center. This quadruple redundancy of system power allows for 24/7 uptime even during major equipment failure or
prolonged utility power outages.

Hardware The hardware environment is comprised of a proven, IBM iSeries server hosting Med/MC, state-of-the-art
virtual servers hosting the CareRadius Care and Medical Management system, and high performance Microsoft
Windows servers deployed across multiple redundancy technologies. IBM iSeries provides unified management of a
set of integrated hardware and software technologies. This system supports development, testing, production, and file
transfer functionality within an integrated platform. The iSeries server is fully capable of supporting HCA’s growing
business, both at the Phoenix headquarters and satellite locations.

HCA utilizes server virtualization using VMWare vSphere. HCA is able to save power and consolidate its data center
footprint, with an unparalleled level of system reliability and uptime. VMWare allows HCA to fully test environment
changes before implementing them into production, and to maintain entirely separate development, testing, and
production environments for the CareRadius and HCA applications. Network management and support servers are
virtualized whenever feasible in order to take advantage of the many management, performance, and reliability
advantages of server virtualization.

HCA utilizes clustering technology for its database, file/print, and virtual server environments. This ensures
uninterrupted performance in the event of server hardware outage and all but eliminates the need for maintenance
outages. HCA’s Internet sites and web applications are hosted on load-balancing clusters to ensure optimal access for
its employees, provider network, and members.

All virtual servers and clustered environments are hosted on high performance blade servers. The optimized platform
of the blade architecture allows the server environment to be cohesively managed and easily expandable. The blade
architecture provides a high standard of connectivity and optimal performance for HCA’s data systems.

Data Storage is satisfied through the implementation of IBM System Storage DS3400 disk systems, which are
designed to provide storage area network (SAN) infrastructure, enabling optimum levels of performance and
reliability. Utilizing high-speed serial attached disks with dual controller and fiber channels the IBM SAN allows
HCA to achieve the right balance of capacity and performance for its storage environment. In its current
configuration, the SAN has a twelve terabyte (12TB) capacity. The SAN hardware is highly scalable, and the hot-
swappable disk architecture enables HCA to respond quickly to changing storage needs and future growth without
compromising performance.

Data Recovery

The IBM iSeries runs automated off-site backups to a remote storage facility twice a day. These ensure that the most
recent data possible is available at any time, and recoverable to alternate facilities or back to the main Health Choice
facility in case of catastrophic system or building issues. In the event of an outage necessitating recovery of data from
off-site, an emergency contact at the remote storage unit will facilitate recovery to failover to an iSeries failover
partition housed at their backup data center. For Windows, file backups run every day except Sunday. File backups
include the System State of each server and any data drives in their entirety. Full backups commence Friday evening
and run through Saturday. Monday through Thursday. evening a differential backup is run, backing up any files
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changed since the last full backup. SQL backups run every morning except Saturday, as the full file backup is still
running. SQL backups are flat file backups of the prior night’s backup generated by Microsoft SQL Server. All SQL
backups are full backups.

Data Communications In case of hardware failures in the infrastructure, connectivity to multiple entities (stack
switches) eliminates the risk of a single point of failure. The Cisco Adaptive Security Appliance 5520 (ASA) firewall
comprehensively protects the network from being compromised by ensuring all the security features are integrated
into every possible element of the network. The ASA device includes firewall, voice over IP security, and intrusion
prevention services. To improve network resiliency, HCA uses two Cisco firewalls in an active/active configuration
with integrated VPN to provide email and FTP real time protection. HCA employs versatile Site-to-Site VPN and
remote user access through Secure Socket Layer and IP security technologies to provide effective protection for
business partners and provider network staff in rural areas. Access to the network for the Tucson satellite office is via
a secure Point-to-Point T1 data connection, secured by Cisco routers. Together, the network hardware and firewalls
are vital to ensuring that remote users, providers, and third party vendors have uninterrupted secure access to
efficiently transfer data to and from HCA.

Voice Communications HCA has the most current hardware in place to support HCA phone operations, including
call center, fax, and intra-office lines, the NEC NEAX2400 IPX PBX. This is the latest version of the system, and
enables both digital and internet protocol (IP) expansion. The NEC PBX is highly stable, maintaining uptimes of
99.999%. Dual CPU units, inherent software stability, makes the NEC switch highly available and crash resistant.
Due to the mission criticality of the HCA call center, network technicians maintain a stock of redundant PBX
hardware, and are fully trained to be able to support a phone outage caused by a failure at the PBX level, with
recovery time measured in minutes.

The IP system offered by the PBX allows cxpansion via media gateways so that remote offices can be attached to the
main system, and still run independently in the occurrence of line contact loss or even catastrophic failures at the
central location. This feature is especially important in supporting phone operations for HCA’s Tucson office. Direct
hand-off of IP conversations has been implemented as well, so that once initiated, the voice traffic is passed directly
from phone to phone, thus saving PBX processing power. The current phone switch is configured to simultaneously
support up to 70 local calls and 94 long-distance or 800-number calls. Even at peak call volumes for all inbound and
outbound calls including prior authorization and member services, utilization of the available 164 lines in the PBX is
less than 50 percent. The PRI lines for calls from/to the PBX are backed up by a secondary voice setup in which voice
traffic can be routed over one of several internet connections in cases of emergency, or even fail over to a temporary
off-site backup system via our emergency support vendor. Even in the case of catastrophic building or system loss,
calls can be routed and answered by staff remotely.

Key Interfaces Supporting HCA

HCA has implemented a broad spectrum of interfaces with external business partners and with AHCCCS to support
health plan operations. HCA has achieved the highest level of performance as a result of the effective and frequent
exchange of data. A schematic illustrating the HCA systems interfaces is included as Exhibit J.

Major Data Processing Functional Workflows

HCA uses contemporary data processing techniques to integrate the elements of the software environment to meet
critical health plan processing activities. This section presents a series of functional workflows for major health plan
functions. The workflows are presented in Exhibits K through P below.

Implementation of the ALTCS Line of Business

HCA maintains the full array of system capabilities necessary to support ALTCS. HCA’s approach is to define a new
set of benefit plans that correspond to each of the set of benefits appropriate to ALTCS members, which varies based
on their care setting, Medicare arrangement (FFS or MA), and AHCCCS eligibility. HCA has developed a
preliminary implementation plan that is included as Exhibit Q.
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Exhibit H: HCA Software Environment
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Exhibit I
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Exhibit J: Technical Interfaces
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Exhibit K: Member Eligibility and Roster Processing
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Exhibit L: Medical Management Processing
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Exhibit M: Claims and Payment

@,

'

N

Electronic Claim Processing

e
Fields on claim used for the
Pin Point Logic
«TIN,
«Service address,
¢ Pay to address
* NPI
ECTGEZEZ are ProviderlPin Point logic as;igns
electronically via —» the c_lalm to the gpproprlate
EBS or direct provider record in Med/MC
A 4
Claim is reviewed
by Med/MC to
ensure all required
fields are
populated in place
for processing

Is Provider TIN or NPI
from claim in Med/MC,

ember ID is foun
and valid

Continues with Pin
Point Logic
identifying billing
addresses

No

1S POM
coordinator loads
provider

Does billing Zip Code
on the claim match the
record in Med/MC

Claim rejects and
letter is sent
informing provider
of specific reason
why claim was not
loaded into system

Yes No
Rerun file
through ECR
process to System will assign
interface claim to first possible
claim Assign claim to location on providers
matching location for TIN and pend claim
adjudication MJ for location to be
selected by
processor
Claim data is
processed through
Med/MC with edits ne‘ffp‘:ge
for billing and
procedure
accuracy

109



Continued
from page
1

Claim is pended
No——» and sent for
manual processing

Can claim be
auto adjudicated

-

Yes
¢ Remittance
and check is
. . processed .
Did cal‘alrr:er;ake | Yes—p! and sent Procelsstls
pay electronically complete
or mailed to
l provider
No
¢ Electronic or
paper . -
Remittance Dg:lgl nc;gtl:e
Claim is sent for and appeals N app Process is
- b rights are P
final edit notice is . complete
. mailed to
mailed to
. member
provider

‘/"\

110



Exhibit N: Encounter Processing
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Exhibit O: Provider Data Exchange
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Exhibit P: Capitation Processing
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Exhibit Q: Implementation Plan
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REQUIREMENT #12

Describe the Offeror’s information system change order and software modification processes, the date of the last major version update, and indicate if there is a
planned system conversion within the contract period (five years). If yes, indicate which subsystems were/will be affected and describe the planning and system
implementation process.

Health Choice Arizona (HCA) has developed and implemented a detailed and stringent set of change controls within
its software configuration management program. Information system changes are driven by changes in business
requirements, and organizationally impact all aspects of health plan operations. Effective policies and procedures are
used to guide the change and configuration management processes, consistent with all other health plan areas. The
HCA Policy Application Controls — Med/MC Change Management, C 4.174.00 details the change management
process for the software environment, including the Med/MC Claims Adjudication System and the CareRadius
Medical Management System, and other HCA softwareapplications. The policy governs all areas responsible for a
secure and standardized method of developing and promoting new application enhancements into the HCA
Production Environments.

These processes have been thoroughly reviewed and audited by Emst and Young (E&Y). E&Y determined that these
change control processes meet Sarbanes-Oxley (SOx) guidelines, and satisfy best practices for controls of internally
developed and vendor-managed software applications. This audit occurs on an annual basis and results have been
consistent, with no negative findings.

HCA Change Request Process

HCA utilizes an electronic change request system for end users to request system modifications. Through the HCA
intranet, end users can submit an IS Service Request (SR) to request an enhancement. The request is reviewed by the
IS Director and/or the IS Operations Manager and approved if a system modification is necessary to implement the
business requirement. Senior management is then briefed on proposed enhancement and estimated cost, and the Chief
Operating Officer makes a final determination to approve the request and set its priority based on workload or
regulatory deadlines. If a request cannot be approved, it may be deferred, or returned for further analysis and
justification.

Once the enhancement has been approved, the IS Operations Manager assigns an IS Business Analyst to work with
the business unit to develop the specification. The IS Business Analyst documents the request, the business needs,
return on investment (if applicable), and works with the users to define the function and requirements of the software
change. During this process, all information is electronically stored in the OnTime software application that is
utilized as the IS project management and task tracking application. Supplemental development artifacts and
documentation for each task is attached to the OnTime task folder throughout the process, allowing for centralized
and secure storage of pertinent data related to the enhancements.

Testing of Modifications

The Application Controls policy states that each enhancement will be adequately tested in both test and staging
environments by relevant HCA stakeholders. IS staff save all testing documentation in the corresponding task folder,
along with stakeholder approvals of business requirements, specifications and promotions from test to staging and
production. All enhancements are created and tested in the test environment. Primary application data is refreshed
into the HCA staging environments on a regular basis to ensure that testing is performed on valid, recent data. The
System Administrator ensures the data defined in the Application Controls — Med/MC Data Refresh Policies &
Procedures has been refreshed appropriately. .

At this time, additional data/files are identified via the Med/MC Application Enhancement Form and refreshed by the
System Administrator, if required, for full and complete testing of the enhancement.

Change Management Coordination with System Vendors

HCA has an established set of protocols that have been developed with each system vendor. For example, CPU
creates two sets of instructions for each enhancement to Med/MC. The first set of instructions details the commands
necessary to move the enhancement from the test environment to the staging environment. The second set of
instructions details the commands necessary to move the enhancement from the staging environments to the
production environments. Each set of instructions only references the objects specifically defined in each
enhancement task description.
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Med/MC enhancements are coded and tested by CPU, however, the responsibility for migrating enhanced programs
lies with the HCA System Administrator to provide proper separation of duties. The System Administrator moves the
enhancement from the test environment to the staging environment and from the staging environment to the
production environment. The IS Operations Manager/IS Business Analyst manages each enhancement task to ensure
each responsible internal party has signed and dated the Med/MC application enhancement form when they have
completed the activity for which they are accountable.

System down time involved with implementing new application enhancements is kept to a minimum and conducted
outside normal hours of operation. Security access is restricted to only those users that require the necessary
permissions, in order to limit unwarranted access to programs and data. Within this policy, the process of regression
testing and promotion from our test, staging to production software environments is documented in the OnTime task,
along with the end user acceptance signature before software changes are promoted into production.

Implementing System Modifications in Production

IS Operations Manager/IS Business Analysts email all HCA users describing the logic of the implemented
enhancement and the effects/changes on the Med/MC application. Prior to the promotion to production, the IS
Business Analyst invites all affected users to the IS Training Room to review the upcoming changes in functionality,
and test results, in the Staging Environment. If issues are identified at this session, the enhancement is pulled from
the move schedule, and sent to be reworked. At the end of each week the IS Security Specialist validates the
Med/MC Application enhancement forms to ensure each step has been documented and completed appropriately. All
documentation relating to each task are stored in a secure location within the electronic change request system, with
PDF copies of paper forms serving as backup to show signatures of the stakeholders involved.

After working closely with AHCCCS, HCA successfully implemented a major revision of Med/MC in September
2010 in order to satisfy mandatory copays for TMA and TWG acute care populations. The set of enhancements
comprising the version change included logic to properly adjudicate claims using copays submitted on claims or
deducting copays from the final payment if providers did not collect.
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REQUIREMENT #13

Indicate how many years the Offeror’s IT organization or software vendor has supported the current or proposed information system software version currently
operated by the Offeror. If Offeror s software is vendor supported, include vendor name(s), address, contact person and version(s) being used.

The Health Choice Arizona (HCA) Health Plan Information System includes two core components that support
managed care and care management capabilities.

Med/MC

HCA utilizes CPU Medical Management System’s (CPU) Med/MC Managed Care Information System (Med/MC) to
support provider, benefit plan, reference, claims adjudication, payment and member management functionality.
Med/MC has been utilized as HCA’s claims adjudication system since October 1994 and has been continuously
supported by the software vendor for maintenance as well as system enhancements from 1994 to present. Currently
HCA has implemented Med/MC Version 7.0, which is the current production release of Med/MC.

The following is the contact information for the Vice President of the Managed Care Division at CPU:

Duane Findling

CPU Medical Management Systems
9235 Activity Road, Suite 104

San Diego, CA 92126-4440

(800) 597-0875 Ext. 248

CareRadius Medical Management System

CareRadius is the medical management software that supports HCA’s Medicaid and Medicare Special Needs Plans.
Landacorp/SHPS developed CareRadius. CareRadius is an enterprise-level expert driven care management workflow
solution. CareRadius provides HCA with a single platform for managing all medical management activities,
including, care management, utilization management and prior authorization processing. Landacorp is the developer
of CareRadius and has continuously supported the application since it was introduced in 2009.

HCA implemented CareRadius Version 1.5 in 2011, and is supported by the software vendor for maintenance as well
as system enhancements. It is the current production release of CareRadius.

HCA considers its software vendors to be business associates and trusted partners. It is our expressed policy to
contract for system support and customized enhancements with each vendor.

The following is the contact information for the General Manager at Landacorp/SHPS:

Jay Dunlap

Landacorp, a division of SHPS
2080 East 20" Street, Suite 170
Chico, CA 95928

Tel 530.891.0853
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REQUIREMENT #14

Describe the Offeror’s plans and ability to support current and future IT Federal Mandates.

As new transaction formats and technology initiatives have been introduced and required by regulatory entities,
Health Choice Arizona (HCA) has assumed a leadership role among the AHCCCS Managed Care Organizations
(MCOs) to ensure functional and technical criteria of the AHCCCS program is met. Specific examples of this
leadership in technology adoption over this past are;

o First MCO to accept and process an 834 Eligibility Transaction

o First, if not one of the first MCO’s to pass all testing requirements and go live with the AHCCCS OPFS
Methodology

¢ Key Member of the ANSI X12 835 Workgroup, as well as the National Provider Identifier (NPI) and HIPAA
Consortiums

o Implemented new claim form types: CMS 1500, UB04, in addition to NPI within Federally mandated
timelines that allowed lagging providers the flexibility to submit legacy form types and ID’s without
mterrupting claim adjudication and payments.

»  Advisor to the Rural Health Grant Program of Arizona Government Information Technology Agency (GITA)

Today, a nising tide of change is sweeping over the health care industry, federal mandates are driving health care to
new, coordinated and information driven processes, that are based on evidence based standards of practice and greater
accountability. Both the 2009 American Recovery and Reinvestment Act and the 2010 Affordable Care Act have
numerous provisions that impact the Medicaid program, change state Medicaid agency requirements, and specify
changes in health insurance coverage, provider reporting, and payment reform.

At the state level, AHCCCS faces difficult budget constraints while the demand for services grows in the economic
downtumn. The Arizona legislature is likely to mandate additional changes in AHCCCS policy to keep Arizona
solvent. HCA is prepared to adapt and change its coverage and policy in sync with AHCCCS.

HIPAA Administrative Simplification Provisions

HCA will utilize this same proven approach of collaboration along with functional and tcchnical expertise to support
and provide leadership to the AHCCCS Program for all future HIPAA as well as other HIT initiatives. Subsequently,
HCA has already commenced development of the ANSI X12 5010 versions of HIPAA transaction and code sets for
implementation in 2012,

HCA is also preparing for the nationwide adoption of new diagnosis and institutional procedure codes with the
implementation of ICD10-CM that substantially increases the level of specificity for diagnosis codes, and enables a
much finer definition of hospital procedures.

At the state level, HCA is preparing for the adoption of the UB billing for long term care services as AHCCCS has
specified for later in 2011. In addition HCA 1s planning for replacement of Roster billing for HCBS services in 2013.
While not a federal mandate, it represents an adoption of national standards to make billing more uniform across all of
health care.

HCA currently supports all HIPAA transactions including, but not limited to the ANSI X12: 270/271 (Eligibility
Verification and Response), 276/277 (Claims Status Request and Response), 278 (Prior Authorization), 834
(Enrollment), 835 (Remittance Advice), 820 (Capitation), 837(claims/encounters: Professional, Institutional, and
Dental), U277 (Unsolicited Encounter Status), as well as the NCPDP 3.2 and 5.1 (Pharmacy Claims) transactions.
Additionally, HCA 1is audited annually by an external party, Emst & Young, to ensure the regulatory requirements of
HIPAA and Sarbanes Oxley are met. Several HCA technical and operational employees, including the Director of
Information Systems and IS Operations Manager, actively participate in HIPAA related consortiums and workgroups
in conjunction with AHCCCS and other AHCCCS contractors to guarantce the plan understands all transaction
requirements and their potential impacts.

ARRA HITECH ACT Provisions

HCA has a particular focus on assisting small rural providers in adapting to change and continuing to serve the
AHCCCS population and HCA members. At the state level, HCA senior management participate in the Health-¢
Connection Legal Working Group as well as play a critical role in GITA’s Rural Healthcare Information Technology
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Adoption (RHITA) Program, which includes our recent RHITA Grant partnership with LaPaz Regional Hospital.
HCA supports the efforts of the Arizona Regional Extension Center for Health Information Technology (REC) the
Arizona Health ¢ Connection AzHeC, as they assist providers in adopting electronic health record systems, often with
federal incentives available from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. HCA believes this involvement provides the
leadership, support, and expertise that is necessary for HIT initiatives to garner the support and momentum required to
achieve successful sustainability.

These efforts and involvements ensure HCA'’s internal technology infrastructure is designed and deployed well within
the timeframes necessary to meet the requirements of the aggressive Arizona e-Health roadmap. Furthermore, to
ensure seamless operational success when transaction and code sets are implemented and/or updated, HCA’s internal
stakeholders that include, but are not limited to the COO, CFO, Provider Services Director, Provider Claims Educator,
Director of IS, IS Operations Manager, Claims Manager, Audit Director, and Claims Customer Service Call Center
Director develop a detailed project plan with associated communication matrix to ensure all AHCCCS and HCA
requirements are met, if not exceeded. This planning methodology encompasses an iterative or agile approach to the
project development life cycle in order to incorporate the stakeholder learning curve with regard to new Health
Information Technology (HIT) initiatives. It is this detailed approach to project planning and communication that
enables HCA personnel to mitigate project risks while exceeding the proposed benefits and returns such as reduced
cost and provider hassle factor reduction.

Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act Provisions

The PPACA of 2010 (commonly known as ACA) contains numerous provisions that impact increased regulatory
requirements for privacy and security, new health insurance transparency and medical expense ratio threshold
requirements that impact all health plans including HCA.

HCA is actively studying the ACA in order to develop a strategic approach that enables HCA to adapt and prosper
from new requirements that can broaden Medicaid coverage and provide additional coverage opportunities through
the health insurance exchanges.

HCA is also analyzing other significant Medicaid requirements that apply new program integrity requirements on
health plans, additional provider and health plan enumeration provisions and new administrative standardization
provisions that will establish truly uniform claims data element definitions.

As detailed above, HCA is an organization dedicated to the technological advancement of healthcare. To this end,
HCA recognizes that our staff, with the required software and hardware resources, needs to anticipate as well as adapt
to the ever-changing healthcare industry. As leaders in the industry, HCA must educate not only ourselves and our
personnel, but ensure that we educate our strategic business partners such as our contracted providers and community-
based organization partners on HIT and health reform that, when implemented, will positively impact the quality of
care for our member population while reducing system cost. This leadership begins with a managed approach to
learning and understanding the forms and character of the data utilized that is provided by health care providers and
other public information sources.
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GRIEVANCE SYSTEM

REQUIREMENT #15

Provide a flowchart and comprehensive written description of the Offeror’s grievance system. At a minimum, the description should include the member grievance
and appeal process, and the provider and subcontractor claim dispute process. Include in the description how data resulting from the grievance system is used to
improve the operational performance of the Offeror. The submission requirement will be a maximum of four pages of narrative with a maximum of three pages of
Sflowcharts.

Since effectively accepting and managing member inquires and complaints increases member access to care and
member satisfaction, and is the information from which its operation can effectuate improvement initiatives and
performance measures, these competencies are considered strategic core processes of Health Choice Arizona (HCA).
Regardless of the HCA staff member’s position, they are trained to recognize the difference between an inquiry, a
grievance and an appeal. HCA provides all new employees with New Hire Orientation (NEO) within 30 days of hire.
NEO includes an overview of HCA internal processes for member inquiries, grievances and appeals.  An annual
refresher class is required of every HCA employee.

Member Grievances

The majority of member grievances are taken in by the Member Services Department at HCA, although all employees
are trained to recognize a member grievance and to document it accordingly. Members may file their grievance
verbally or in writing. A Member can report a grievance at any time, compliant with ALTCS and AHCCCS
requirements. When a member contacts Member Services with a grievance, the MSR fills out the Grievance Form,
which is subsequently submitted to and reviewed for completion by the Member Services management team. Once
the form is deemed complete, the Member Services management team immediately routes the form to the QM Unit.
Once received in QM, the grievance is reviewed by the clinical staff to determine the medical consequences of the
grievance. The grievance is logged into the QM application module of Care Radius and a file is opened for
investigation by a QM Specialist to determine all issues. A written acknowledgement letter is issued to the grievance
within 5 business days of original receipt. Both medical and operational issues are researched by the QM Specialist.

For medical issues, the QM Specialist, under the direction of the QM Director and Medical Director, will initiate
investigation of the quality of care concerns, including requesting information from providers, HCA staff and facilities.
The provider has 10 working days in which to respond to requests for information. If no response is received, the
request will be repeated. The provider will be given 5 additional days to respond. If there is still no response, the quality
of care concern will be reviewed with the Chief Medical Officer/Medical Director who will either contact the provider
directly or determine an alternative course of action. For operational issues, the QM Specialist will communicate with
the applicable department manager to gather information. Internal staff has 10 working days in which to respond to the
request for information. Depending on the severity of the issue(s), department managers may meet to discuss the issue in
a more formal forum. The minutes to these meetings along with the before mentioned questions and their responses are
documented in the corresponding QM file for reference.

All complaints regarding quality of care are trended and those that indicate serious quality, utilization or risk
management issues are addressed through HCA’s formalized peer review process. To identify clinical quality of care
concerns, the QM process includes: assessing the level of severity of the issue; taking action (documenting,
interventions as appropriate, monitoring the success of the interventions, incorporating the interventions into the QM
Plan, as appropriate, assigning new interventions (when necessary); review by the QM department, Quality of Care
(QOC), and QM Committee when appropriate; referring/reporting the issue to the appropriate regulatory agency for
further review/action; notifying the appropriate licensing board or regulatory agency when a QOC involves suspension
or termination of a provider from the network; documentation of the criteria and process for closure of the review.

All cases referred to the QM Unit are reviewed at weekly QM department meetings to assess the level of severity. Cases
in which criteria is met are presented during the bi-monthly QOC meeting where action plans are further developed and
the decision is made to present the case to the QM Committee. Cases that do not reveal a potential quality of care
concern will be closed and maintained in the QM Application as well as being placed in the provider’s file for tracking.
The QM staff is trained to monitor for outlier trends. When an issue reaches this threshold based upon on risk and/or
volume, the information is immediately conveyed to the appropriate HCA staff for assessment and resolution. -
Following a review by the QM Department, if it is found that the grievance, both quality and/or non-quality, is
substantiated, a request for corrective action will be made of the provider involved in the complaint. The provider is
given 10 business days to provide HCA with a plan of action. Depending on the severity level and nature of the issue,
the QM staff may request provider and provider staff education by an appropriate representative of HCA,
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development and implementation by the provider of a corrective action plan addressing the specific issues necessary
to improve the quality of care provided, and policy and procedure development or revision by the provider.

£ At the end of the investigation and within the required timeframes, a closure letter is sent to the member outlining the

resolution of the grievance, identifying actions to be taken by HCA, and clarifying follow-up that must be completed
by the member. In addition, HCA identifies a contact person/phone number within the QM Department as well as the
Member Services Department phone number in the event the member needs further assistance with their Medical
home. The internal benchmark for resolving these grievances is 30 days. The majority of the more complex medical
cases that exceed 30 days are resolved in less than 60 days, but no later than 90 days from receipt of the grievance.
The average number of days to process a complaint during the previous contract year (CYE 2010) was 25.90 days.
QM staff is trained to monitor for outlier trends. When an issue becomes an outlier based on risk, volume or being
problem prone, the information is immediately conveyed to the appropriate HCA staff for assessment and resolution. At
the end of the investigation, a closure letter is sent to the member.

Standard Member Appeals
Member appeals are handled in the Medical Services Department, under the direction of the Dispute & Appeal
Manager. Appeals are handled by a qualified, trained Member Appeals Coordinator (MAC). Medical issues are
reviewed by appropriately qualified medical staff, and as required by 42 CFR 438.2. Members have the right to file
an appeal in response to an action taken by the health plan. An action may include, but is not limited to, Notice of
Action (NOA), denial for a plan change, and denial for coverage of provided services. A member may file a formal
appeal either verbally or in writing. If a member wishes to appeal verbally, he or she may call HCA’s toll-free phone
number and speak with either a Member Services Representative (MSR) or an Appeal Coordinator. If an MSR
receives a verbal appeal, the MSR documents the appeal on an HCA Member Appeal Form and sends it to the Appeal
Coordinator via email, which is accessible by the Appeal Coordinators and the Dispute & Appeal Manager.
Both the HCA Member Handbook and the member section of the HCA website provide members with information
regarding their rights to file an appeal. Additionally, every written NOA or denial letter that is sent to a member
includes information regarding appeal rights. Members may also be given verbal notification of the right to file a
N grievance or an appeal. If the member speaks a language othf:r than English, appeal correspondence will be translated
©into the member’s preferred language. Other accommodations are considered, as requested. A member can also
appoint a representative to handle the appeal process on his/her behalf. In order to ensure proper legal rights and
HIPAA protection, HCA requires that the member appoint his/her representative in writing or another verifiable way.
If a representative is appointed, the representative becomes the primary contact; however, the member is copied on all
HCA correspondence simultaneously.

If a member has received an NOA to reduce, suspend or terminate an existing service, the NOA provides written
instructions on how to request that services be continued during the appeal process. The requesting doctor may
request continuation of services and the member may also request continuation of services within 10 days from the
date of the denial. If the member does request continuation of services timely, the MAC informs the member that
arrangements for the continuation of services will be made and that if the appeal and/or hearing is not favorable to the
member, he/she may be liable for the costs associated with the services that have been continued. The MAC then
communicates with the HCA Medical Services dcpartment and/or the provider of service to arrange for the
continuation of services during the appeal process. The member has 60 days from the date of the NOA or from the
date of the adverse action (if the action is not related to a medical service request) to file the appeal.
Member appeals are tracked in the appeals application module of Care Radius. A physical file is created to hold all
documentation received from the member, all documentation issued by HCA, and documents collected from research.
Upon receipt of the appeal, a written acknowledgement is mailed to the member within 5 calendar days. If the appeal
was taken by someone other than the MAC working the file, the MAC will contact the member to ensure that all
information is in the appeal file for review and that their request is clearly understood. If the appeal is in regards to a
requested medical service, the MAC will issue a written questionnaire to the requesting provider and to any other
appropriate provider. The questionnaire allows the requesting provider to provide HCA any other information, facts,
opinions or explanation as to why the service was requested to ensure that medical review is thorough. If the provider
~ does not respond within the requested deadline, a second request is sent; however, if no response is received, the
», medical review will be done without the additional information.
A

HCA resolves all appeals no later than 30 days from the date HCA receives the appeal, unless an extension is in

effect. The resolution timeframe for the appeal decision may be extended up to 14 calendar days if the member
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requests an extension, or if HCA establishes a need for additional information and such a delay is in the member’s
best interest. HCA notifies the member of the extension both verbally and in writing. The appeal decision is issued in
writing. The decision is sent through the United States Postal Service. If the decision is not fully in the member’s
favor, the decision is sent using the Certified Mail process. The decision letter includes the following: Member’s
name and ID, assigned appeal number, date the appeal was received, summary of the issue presented in the appeal,
summary of the research that was done, the results of the resolution, reference to legal citations or authorities
supporting the determination process, date the decision was issued, statement of right to file for a State Fair Hearing,
instructions on how to request a State Fair Hearing, information on how to contact HCA for any questions. After the
decision is issued, if the decision was to overturn any or all of the plan’s original decision, the MAC is responsible for
communicating with applicable parties to effectuate the appeal decision.

Expedited Member Appeals

A member has a right to expedite the appeal process in specific circumstances. If HCA issues an NOA to deny or to
limit, reduce or terminate a requested medical service, and it is determined that waiting the standard 30 days to
process an appeal would seriously jeopardize the member’s life or health or ability to attain, maintain or regain
maximum function, HCA will process the appeal within 3 working days of receiving the appeal. All processes for an
expedited process are the same as the standard process, with the exceptions noted below. When a member requests the
expedited process, the MAC immediately takes the file to the Medical Director for confirmation. If the Medical
Director disagrees that the member’s condition warrants the expedited process, the member is notified both verbally
and in writing, and the file is handled through the standard process. If the requesting doctor requests the expedited
process, the file is handled through the expedited process. The acknowledgment letter is issued within 1 day, and an
attempt to acknowledge verbally is made. The final decision is issued within 3 business days, and an attempt to
provide the decision verbally is made. If an extension is needed, as described above, a maximum of 14 calendar days
is added to the 3 business days for the final decision.

Provider Complaint Process

The point of intake for provider complaints is typically from the Claims Customer Service Call Center or Network
Department, although complaints may also be identified through the Claim Dispute process or even through a call to
Prior Authorization staff in Medical Services. A complaint may be in writing or verbal. Regardless of the point of
intake, all complaints are entered into the Provider Inquiry and Complaint module of Care Radius. Data in this
module is monitored and reviewed by the Provider Claims Educator and the Network Director so that issues can be
prioritized by severity and provider impact. In addition to the review of inquires and complaints, the Network
Director receives various reports from other HCA departments that show trending of provider issues within those
departments. Information derived from both the Inquiry and Complaint module and the reports is reviewed and
analyzed by the Provider Relations Improvement Committee to assign priorities to the issues. Escalated issues are
taken to Executive Management for review and resolution.

Provider Claim Dispute Process

The Provider Claim Dispute process is a formal process where providers can address specific issues involving claims.
The dispute must be submitted to the health plan in writing. Provider Disputes are tracked in the disputes application
module of Care Radius. This disputes application module is protected by role-based settings so only the Disputes
Department staff has authority to enter and make changes to it. The disputes application module holds data such as
member’s name and ID, provider name and ID, and a brief description of the dispute. It also tracks all timelines such
as date appeal received, date acknowledged, date decision issued, and if an extension was in place. Hearing
information is tracked on the same file; the hearing process is described in the section below. The disputes
application module tracks information such as type of dispute, decision made, reason if original plan decision was
overturned; this information is used to identify trends and create reports.

A physical file is created to hold all documentation received from the provider, all documentation issued by HCA, and
documents collected from research. All documentation received from the provider is date stamped. All
documentation created and/or issued by HCA is dated. Upon receipt of the dispute, a written acknowledgement is
issued within 5 calendar days. The acknowledgement letter is sent to the provider.

HCA resolves all disputes no later than 30 days from the date HCA received the dispute, unless an agreed-upon
extension is in effect. The resolution timeframe for the dispute decision may be extended up to 30 calendar days if
HCA establishes a need for additional information. HCA notifies the provider in writing of the extension. The dispute
decision is issued in writing. The decision is sent through the United States Postal Service; decisions which are not
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entirely in the provider’s favor are sent using the Certified Mail process,. The decision letter includes the following:
claim information, including member name and ID, assigned dispute number, date the dispute was received, summary
of the issue presented in the dispute, summary of the research that was done, the results of the resolution, reference to
legal citations or authorities supporting the determination process, date the decision was issued, statement of right to
file for a State Fair Hearing, instructions on how to request a State Fair Hearing, information on how to contact HCA
for any questions. A copy of the decision letter is kept in the physical appeal file. The dispute file also contains the
provider’s dispute, a copy of the acknowledgement letter, documentation of research and medical reviews, and
documentation of any contact between HCA and the provider. If a request for hearing is made, all hearing
documentation is kept in this same dispute file. After the decision is issued, if the decision was to overturn any or all
of the plan’s original decision, the dispute coordinator is responsible for communicating with applicable parties to
effectuate the appeal decision.

Hearing Process

Members have the right to request a State Fair Hearing in response to HCA’s appeal decision, and providers have the
right to request a State Fair Hearing in response to HCA’s dispute decision. The members have a right to appoint a
representative, including legal representation, to handle their hearing process, as well as the right to view the HCA
appeal file. The member has the right to request that previously terminated, reduced or suspended medical services
continue during the hearing process as long as the member has timely requested the same during the appeal process.
For the purposes of this response, this explanation of the hearing process applies to both the member appeals and the
provider dispute process from this point forward. For ease of reading, the term “complainant” will be used to indicate
either member or provider, in regards to the member appeals or the provider dispute process.

The complainant must request the State Fair Hearing, in writing, within 30 days from the date of HCA’s decision.
The HCA decision letter, regardless of the decision, always contains information on how to request a hearing. Upon
receipt of the request for hearing, the file is pulled, the application is updated to reflect the request, and the hearing
coordinator prepares the file. A complete copy of the file is sent along with a transmission cover letter. The packet is
then sent to AHCCCS Office of Legal Assistance (OLA) within 5 days from receipt of the request for hearing. The
AHCCCS OLA is responsible for forwarding the file to the State of Arizona Office of Administrative Hearings
(OAH) and setting the hearing date. HCA receives the Notice of Hearing information simultaneous to the
complainant receiving the information. The hearing coordinator arranges for health plan witnesses to appear, prepares
for the case presentation and presents the case in person at hearing. If the Director’s Decision requires HCA to take
action, the hearing coordinator effectuates that decision as required immediately; if the health plan is ordered to pay a
claim, the claim will be paid within 15 calendar days. The Dispute & Appeal Manager receives a copy of all Final
Decisions and notifies the appropriate management staff of the decision so that policies or procedures can be changed
to better conform to the expectations of the agency.

Reports and Trending

As required by AHCCCS, HCA submits a monthly Grievance report to AHCCCS. Information is collected in the
Appeal and Dispute application so that accurate information is reported. The report is generated by the Dispute &
Appeal Manager and submitted to the Contracts Compliance Officer to be submitted along with the Member
Grievance Report and the Prior Authorization Report.

HCA has added other fields to the Appeal application, which are not required by AHCCCS. At least quarterly, the
Dispute & Appeal Manager prepares a trending report for presentation to the HCA UM/QM Committee. This
committee consists of the HCA Medical Directors, the Quality Management Director, and a committee of doctors who
work in the community. The committee’s purpose is to provide direction to HCA for optimum medical care to its
members. The information gathered from trending member appeals provides valuable insight into the issues that are
important to health plan members.

Dispute and Appeal coordinators are encouraged to identify trends they uncover in their file research. The Dispute &
Appeal Manager reviews various reports on a routine basis to identify other trends and root cause issues in order to
provide valuable information back to key department managers, in an effort to continue improving the process for
providers and for improving health plan performance.
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Member Appeals (Expedited) Flow Chart
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Member Appeals (Standard) Flow Chart
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CORPORATE COMPLIANCE

REQUIREMENT #16

Describe the Offeror’'s Corporate Compliance Program including the Compliance Officer’s levels of authority and reporting relationships. Include an
organizational chart of staff involved in compliance along with staff levels of authority. (The submission requirement will be a maximum of three pages of
narrative plus one organizational chart)

Offeror’s Corporate Compliance Program

Health Choice Arizona (HCA) has implemented a Corporate Compliance Program, which is overseen by the
Compliance Officer and within the Compliance Department. The Compliance Program is further enforced by HCA’s
parent company, IASIS, which provides the structure for Code of Conduct and guidance in applicable regulations of
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA).

Compliance Officer’s level of authority and reporting relationships
The Compliance Officer is a member of the Health Choice Arizona (HCA) senior management. In addition to the
duties of implementing and overseeing the Compliance Plan, the Compliance Officer is authorized to

« Independently report suspected cases of fraud and abuse to AHCCCS OPI,

o Assess records of the health plan,

« Call committee meetings immediately or as necessary,

« Have access to other senior management and legal counsel,

« Attend AHCCCS Compliance Officer Network Group (CONG) meetings, and
« Carry out the requirements of the Compliance Plan

The Compliance Officer reports directly to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of HCA, and regularly interacts with
all members of the HCA management team. HCA intertwines the HCA Compliance Program with the IASIS
Compliance Program. The HCA Compliance Officer interacts and meets with the IASIS Compliance Officer as
needed in order to administer the compliance plans uniformly. The HCA Compliance Officer, attends the AHCCCS
Compliance Officer Network Group (CONG) meetings, and reports meeting information back to senior staff, and
other staff, as necessary. To support the compliance mission, the Compliance Officer has the authority to call together
ad hoc committee to discuss cases. Having the flexibility to call meetings as needed and to invite other staff as
needed gives the compliance program the quick response, which is required by the contract and the applicable laws.
Regardless of the use of committees, the Compliance Officer has the authority to independently make referrals to OPI.

Intake and Processing of Referrals

In accordance with ARS 36-2918.01 and the AHCCCS Contractor Operation Manual, Chapter 100, HCA has a
process in place to ensure that suspected cases of fraud and abuse are efficiently identified and referred to AHCCCS
Office of Program Integrity (OPI) in the required timeframe of 10 business days. Referrals are taken from sources
that include but are not limited to internal staff, members, and providers (both contracted and non-contracted).
Referrers can use the HCA Referral form or they can report verbally or in via email directly to the Compliance
Officer. This variety in reporting options reduces the barriers to reporting and makes the reporting process more
accessible. All referrals are logged into the Compliance Review tracking system. Referrals are reviewed to collect
necessary information and/or documentation to understand the nature of the situation. The Compliance Officer does
final review of all referrals and makes the determination for action, which shall include referral to OPI when
appropriate. Referrals to OPI are submitted on the AHCCCS Referral For Preliminary Investigation form or via the
AHCCCS website. Supporting documentation is supplied as applicable.

Training, Education and Outreach - Staff

As required by applicable laws, training is provided to all employees. The Compliance Officer or a designee provides
training to new employees within 30 days of hire. Employees are required to sign in for this training. The training
incorporates the corporate compliance training, which covers HIPAA, Code of Conduct and disciplinary policies.
Each year, all employees are required to take refresher courses and to pass the tests provided at the end of the courses.
Both the new employee training and the annual training consist of information gathered by both the AHCCCS
Compliance requirements and the Deficit Reduction Act. To further make the lines of communication more efficicnt,
HCA is using the HCA Intranct as a way to providc information to employees on the identification of fraud and abuse
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and the DRA requirements. To further reduce the barriers to referrals, employees are provided with a list of numbers
for reporting. In the event that an employee wishes to remain anonymous and/or not report to the Compliance
Officer, they have the option of using external/confidential hotlines such as the IASIS Compliance Help-line, the
AHCCCS Fraud/Abuse Member Hotline, AHCCCS Fraud/Abuse Provider Hotline, and the DHHS/Office of Inspector
General number.

Training, Education and Outreach - Providers

As required by AHCCCS, the DRA and other applicable laws, education is provided to HCA subcontractors to ensure
that providers are educated on all health plan and AHCCCS policies, and in a manner to reduce probability of fraud
and abuse. In the HCA Provider Manual, which is available to both contracted and non-contracted providers, there is
a section devoted to Compliance, Fraud and Abuse and the DRA. All new and existing HCA providers are briefed on
the contents of the provider manual and informed about its availability on the HCA website. The HCA website also
includes two links to the AHCCCS website where the provider can view the State’s FWA training, which contains all
the required elements of the DRA. The HCA contract also requires that subcontractors meet the requirements of the
DRA by providing training to their employees, if applicable. Furthermore, HCA educates the subcontracts on their
obligation to ensure they do not employ Excluded Providers by using the U.S. Department of Health & Human
Services Office of Inspector General’s List of Excluded Individuals/Entities List as part of their hiring process.

Training, Education and Outreach - Members

The HCA Member Handbook has a section devoted to Fraud and Abuse. Examples of fraud and abuse are given as
well as recommendations to prevent fraud and abuse. Member Service staff is trained to listen for fraud indicators
when a member calls in. For example, if the member calls in to change doctors, and the Member Service
Representative (MSR) hears the member explain a situation where fraud of the provider is suspected, the MSR can
rclay the member’s information to the Compliance Officer without the member having to taken any further action.
This is another way to reduce the barrier to referrals.

Other elements of the Compliance Plan

The HCA Compliance Program is documented in health plan policy. The supporting requirements for Code of
Conduct and other elements of the IASIS Corporate Compliance Plan are documented in IASIS policy. Policies are
available to all employees through the shared computer network. HCA policies are updatcd as needed or at least
annually. If there is suspicion of fraud that requires HCA to reduce, suspend or terminate an existing authorization of
services to a member, HCA will issue a written Notice of Action not sooner than 5 days from the date the
authorization is to end. In addition to sending referrals to AHCCCS OPI, there are occasions when AHCCCS OPI or
other authorized agencies require information provided to them from HCA. Those requests are processed through the
Compliance Department and logged into the Compliance Review tracking system. Authorized requests are responded
to in a timely and thorough manner. HCA will act upon direction of AHCCCS OPIL. In the event AHCCCS OPI
requires payments to a provider be put on hold, the Compliance Officer has the authority to authorize the monics be
held by HCA. In the event an AHCCCS OPI investigation requires monies to be recouped by the health plan, the
Compliance Officer has the authority to authorize those recoupments. HCA will cooperate with the AHCCCS OPI for
any onsite audit activities, whether the audit is planned or without prior notice.

Activities to prevent Fraud

The HCA claims system has a robust claims editing function that prevents various inappropriate payments. One of
the most common edits is the duplicate claim edit. This prevents claims from being paid more than once. The
system is loaded with the Correct Coding Initiative (CCI) edits which prevents payments for things such as unbundled
services and inappropriate modifiers which may unnecessarily increase payment or issue payment when payment is
not warranted. Other edits watch for quantity and unit overages. Many CPT codes have limitations, whether lifetime,
annual, monthly, weekly or daily. For example, if a claim comes in for an appendectomy but our system indicates
that an appendectomy has already been paid for before, the second will not be paid because it’s medically impossible.
To support the edits in the claims system is the encounter system. All claims encounters are sent to AHCCCS on a
regular basis. The AHCCCS encounter system runs all encounters through another varicty of edits. For those edits,
HCA has a department of highly trained claims processors who review these edits on a daily basis for reconciliation.
If the conflict cannot be supported or explained, the claim is promptly sent for recoupment. In the event that an edit
becomes prevalent, the Claims Manager has the authority to place front end edits in the claims system to prevent
claims from paying.
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In addition to the encounter department, HCA also has a Claims Audit department. The Audit department routinely
conducts a variety of claims audits which are designed to prevent incorrect payments from going out and to catch
trends by both claims processors and providers. The Audit Department uses tools such as CCI edits, AHCCCS Rules,
the HCA Claims Processing Manual, certified coder reviews and medical reviews to ensure the integrity of the claims
adjudication process.

A common fraud scheme is for a provider to collect full payment from more than one payer in the case where the
member may have coverage from more than one payer. HCA uses the AHCCCS member eligibility file to watch for
indications of other insurance coverage. This edit will stop a claim from paying until the processor can verify that an
Explanation of Benefits (EOB) has been provided with the claim so that benefits can be properly coordinated. If an
EOB is not present and the service is not known to be non-covered by that payer, then the claim is denied. The
reverse is also true; if an EOB is present but the system shows no indication of that coverage, the claims processor
will create a referral to the Recoveries department to verify coverage. Once Recoveries has verified coverage, they
will enter the information into our member system so that no new claims will be paid without an EOB. They will also
notify AHCCCS within 5 days of discovery so that the AHCCCS system can also be updated.

To prevent providers from getting paid for services not rendered due to the member not being eligible, such as
services after a member’s date of death, HCA loads the member eligibility file from AHCCCS on a daily basis. The
member’s date of death also appears on this file; the claims system edits are set up to be date sensitive to the periods
of eligibility. This also prevents HCA from paying for a claim when the member was actually enrolled with another
AHCCCS health plan so that the provider gets paid only once for a single service.

In some national fraud schemes, people have found ways to bill for services and receive reimbursement when they are
not actually a valid provider. To mitigate this happening at HCA, we require that members use our known network of
contracted providers whenever possible. To establish a provider into our network, their request to contract is put
through the Contracting Committee. For most provider types, credentialing by HCA is required and done before a
contract is extended. Once contracted, the network rep does on onsite visit and provides education on the AHCCCS
and HCA rules and provides a Provider Manual. By having contact with providers and doing the onsite visit, this
mitigates the chances of an inappropriate provider being added to our network. In the cases where a member must sce
a non-contracted provider, either because it is a category for which we do not typically contract (i.e., anesthesiologist,
lab readings, cmergency services) or the member has gone outside of the service area for emergency services, it is not
possible to know these providers prior to services being rendered. In that case, we use a process of verification to
ensure the provider has at least minimum credentials before any payment is issued. The HCA claims system will not
allow a payment to be issued unless the provider is set up in the provider section of the system. Once an unidentified
provider submits a claim to HCA, the claims processor will pend the claim and send it for validation. The provider’s
information is queried in the AHCCCS PMMIS provider registration system. If found, the information is entered into
the HCA system and the claim is returned for further processing. If the provider is not found, the claim is returned for
appropriate denial until such time that the provider can obtain a valid provider registration with the State of Arizona.

As required by federal law, HCA is not allowed to pay funds to any provider who has been excluded by the
Department of Health and Human Services Office of Inspector General. Providers and entities who appear on the
exclusion list are termed by AHCCCS in the Provider Registration system; a notice is sent to the health plans. When
HCA receives such notices, the provider is terminated in the HCA system. This is done either through the normal
process of updating the provider files from AHCCCS or, if not already done, a manual request to end date a provider
upon receipt of the written notice from AHCCCS. Additionally, our contracted Pharmacy Benefits Manager (PBM) is
required to watch the exclusion list and keep their provider database updated. If an excluded provider writes a script,
the PBM system will prohibit the script from going through. HCA educates the network of their obligation to check
the exclusion lists (List of Excluded Individuals / Entities and the Excluded Party List System) before hiring
clinicians. In addition to excluded providers, the State of Arizona may place restrictions on providers. These notices
also come from AHCCCS. Once received, HCA Network reviews the notice and takes appropriate action such as
placing those restrictions in the providers file so that the provider cannot be authorized for those service or cannot
receive payment for those services, or the provider may be terminated from the HCA network.
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FINANCE AND LIABILITY MANAGEMENT
REQUIREMENT #17

Submit the organization’s three most recent audited financial statements and the related parent company financial
statements if applicable. (The Offeror may exceed the three-page limit.)

Note: The organization refers to the separate corporation established for the purposes of this contract. If no separate
corporation currently exists, the Offeror should submit audited financial statements for the line of business most like

the services provided under this contract.
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Health Choice Arizona

(A Division of Health Choice Arizona, Inc.)
Year Ended September 30, 2008

With Report of Independent Auditors
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
Health Choice Arizona
(A Division of Health Choice Arizona, Inc.)

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Health Choice Arizona (the Plan), a division of
Health Choice Arizona, Inc., which is a wholly owned subsidiary of IASIS Healthcare LLC, as of
September 30, 2008 and the related statements of earnings, changes in equity of Parent and cash
flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Plan’s
management. OQur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not
engaged to perform an audit of the Plan’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audit includes
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures

P that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

\_ effectiveness of the Plan’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statcments, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Health Choice Arizona at September 30, 2008, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The details of the attached schedules of other financial information are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information, except for that portion marked “unaudited,” on which we express no opinion, has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

éAMfMLL?
/’\

January 15, 2009
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Health Choice Arizona
(A Division of Health Choice Arizona, Inc.)

Balance Sheet

September 30, 2008

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
AHCCCS receivables, net
Due from affiliates
Other current assets

Total current assets

Furniture and equipment, net of accumulated

depreciation of $1,848,716

Other intangible assets, net of accumulated
amortization of $12,000,000

Goodwill

Total assets

Liabilities and equity of Parent

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Medical claims payable

Total current liabilities

Equity:
Equity of Parent
Total liabilities and equity of Parent

See accompanying notes.

0812-1014357
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$ 5,000,000
30,261,417
142,651,458
1,160,680

179,073,555

1,690,076

33,000,000
5,756,914

$219,520,545

$ 1,858,164
89,402,010

91,260,174

128,260,371

$219,520,545




VR Health Choice Arizona
N (A Division of Health Choice Arizona, Inc.)

Statement of Earnings

Year Ended September 30, 2008

Revenues:
Capitation premiums $452,796,011
Hospital supplemental premiums 9,800,045
Delivery supplemental premiums 35,473,285
HIV-AIDS supplemental premiums 1,340,070
Total revenues 499,409,411
Medical expenses:
Hospitalization, net 143,585,990
Medical compensation 113,597,810
Other medical, net 174,459,837
Total medical expenses 431,643,637
~
C-/, Administrative expenses 36,767,731
Total expenses 468,411,368
Earnings before income taxes 30,998,043
Income taxes 12,274,862
Net earnings $ 18,723,181
See accompanying notes.
N
N
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Health Choice Arizona

(A Division of Health Choice Arizona, Inc.)

Statement of Changes in Equity of Parent

Balance at September 30, 2007
Net earnings
Balance at September 30, 2008

See accompanying notes.

0812-1014357

Contributed Retained
Capital Earnings Totals

$ 85875813 § 23,661,377 §$ 109,537,190
- 18,723,181 18,723,181

$ 85875813 § 42,384,558 § 128,260,371

Page 4 of 31
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N Health Choice Arizona
(/’ (A Division of Health Choice Arizona, Inc.)

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended September 30, 2008

Cash flows from operating activities
Net earnings $ 18,723,181
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by

operating activities:

Depreciation 737,884
Amortization 3,000,000
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
AHCCCS receivables (16,263,318)
Other current assets (262,140)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 115,548
Medical claims payable 16,536,000
Net cash provided by operating activities 22,587,155
C Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of furniture and equipment (990,249)
Net cash used in investing activities (990,249)

Cash flows from financing activities
Change in due from affiliates (21,596,906)
Net cash used in financing activities (21,596,906)

Change in cash and cash equivalents -
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 5,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 5,000,000

See accompanying notes.

N
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Health Choice Arizona
(A Division of Health Choice Arizona, Inc.)

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2008

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation

Health Choice Arizona (the Plan) is a division of Health Choice Arizona, Inc. (the Parent), which
is a wholly owned subsidiary of IASIS Healthcare LLC (IASIS). IASIS is a hospital
management company that also owns and operates 15 acute care hospital facilities and one
behavioral health hospital facility in six states. The Plan is a prepaid Medicaid managed health
plan that derives substantially all of its revenue through a contract with the Arizona Health Care
Cost Containment System (AHCCCS) to provide specified healthcare services to qualified
Medicaid enrollees through contracts with providers. AHCCCS is the state agency that
administers Arizona’s Medicaid program. The contract requires the Plan to arrange for
healthcare services for enrolled Medicaid patients in exchange for fixed monthly premiums,
based on negotiated per capita member rates, and supplemental payments from AHCCCS. These
services are provided regardless of the actual costs incurred to provide these services. The Plan
receives reinsurance and other supplemental payments from AHCCCS to cover certain costs of
healthcare services that exceed certain thresholds.

On May 14, 2008, Health Choice was awarded a new contract with AHCCCS that provides for a
three-year term commencing October 1, 2008, with AHCCCS having the option to renew for two
additional one-year periods. The contract is terminable without cause on 90 days’ written notice
or for cause upon written notice if the Company fails to comply with any term or condition of the
contract or fails to take corrective action as required to comply with the terms of the contract.
Additionally, AHCCCS can terminate the contract in the event of the unavailability of state or
federal funding.

Under the new contract, the Plan subcontracts with hospitals, physicians and other medical
providers within Arizona and surrounding states to provide services to its enrollees in Apache,
Coconino, Maricopa, Mohave, Navajo, Pima, Yuma, LaPaz and Santa Cruz counties.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Plan considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less
when purchased to be cash equivalents.

0812-1014357 Page 6 of 31
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Health Choice Arizona
(A Division of Health Choice Arizona, Inc.)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Due from Affiliates

Due from affiliates represents the net excess of funds transferred to the centralized cash
management account of IASIS over funds transferred to or paid on behalf of the Plan. Due from
affiliates balances are readily available to the Plan for settlement of the Plan’s current liabilities
as they become due. Generally, this balance is decreased by automatic cash transfers from the
account to reimburse the Plan’s bank accounts for operating expenses and to pay for fees and
services provided by IASIS, including information systems services, and other operating
expenses, such as payroll and insurance. Generally, the balance is increased through daily cash
deposits by the Plan to the centralized cash management account of IASIS. Management fees
totaling $552,000, which represent an allocation of corporate office expenses of IASIS, were
recognized during the year ended September 30, 2008, and are included within administrative
expenses in the accompanying statement of earnings. Interest income is not earned on
outstanding balances due from affiliates.

Furniture and Equipment

Furniture and equipment is stated at cost. The Plan uses the straight-line method of depreciation
over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, which generally range from 3 to 15 years.
Depreciation expense totaling $737,884 was recognized during the year ended September 30,
2008, and is included within administrative expenses in the accompanying statement of earnings.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, goodwill is
not amortized but is subject to annual impairment reviews or more often if events or
circumstances indicate it may be impaired. An impairment loss is recorded to the extent that the
carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. The Plan has completed its annual
impairment test for the 2008 fiscal year, which resulted in no impairment.

Intangiblc asscts consists solely of the Plan’s contract with AHCCCS and is amortized over a
period of 15 years, which approximates the contract’s estimated useful life, including assumed
renewal periods. Amortization of intangible assets totaled $3,000,000 for the year ended
September 30, 2008, and is included in administrative expenses in the accompanying statement
of earnings.

0812-1014357 Page 7 of 31
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Health Choice Arizona
(A Division of Health Choice Arizona, Inc.)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

When events, circumstances or operating results indicate that the carrying values of certain long-
lived assets and related identifiable intangible assets (excluding goodwill) that are expected to be
held and used might be impaired, the Plan considers the recoverability of assets to be held and
used by comparing the carrying amount of the assets to the undiscounted value of future net cash
flows expected to be generated by the assets. If the assets are identified as impaired, the
impairment is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the
fair value of the assets as determined by independent appraisals or estimates of discounted future
cash flows.

Revenue Recognition

Capitation premiums are recognized as revenue in the month that members are entitled to
healthcare services. Certain other supplemental payments, such as reimbursement of healthcare
services provided to AHCCCS eligible beneficiaries prior to enrollment into the Plan (prior
period coverage or PPC), are recognized as revenue as services are provided, including estimates
at the end of each accounting period. Included in capitation premiums in the accompanying
Statement of Earnings for the year ended September 30, 2008, is PPC reconciliation settlement
revenue totaling $7,893,254, Title XIX Waiver Group reconciliation settlement revenue totaling
$7,266,479, Social Security Disabled Income —~ Temporary Medical Coverage settlement revenue
totaling $1,547,440 and Rural Hospital pass-through revenue totalling $37,059.

Delivery supplemental premiums are payments received per newborn delivery and are intended
by AHCCCS to cover the cost of maternity care for qualified pregnant women. Such premiums
are billed and recognized in the month that delivery occurs.

Hospital supplemental premiums are one-time payments for members who enroll with the Plan
while in an inpatient setting. These supplemental payments are intended to help defray the cost
of inpatient services provided to the member, prior to the Plan’s ability to manage the member’s
health care. Such premiums are recognized in the month that the member’s enrollment and
related inpatient stay is identified by the Plan.

HIV-AIDS supplemental premiums are payments received for eligible members receiving

approved HIV-AIDS medications to help defray the cost of their treatment for HIV-AIDS. Such
premiums are recognized in the month that services occur.

0812-1014357 Page 8 of 31
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Health Choice Arizona
(A Division of Health Choice Arizona, Inc.)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Medical Expenses

Monthly capitation payments to primary care physicians and other healthcare providers are
expensed in the month services are contracted to be performed. Claims expense for non-capitated
arrangements is accrued as services are rendered by hospitals, physicians and other healthcare
providers during the year.

Medical claims payable includes claims received but not paid and an estimate of claims incurred
but not reported. Incurred but not reported claims are estimated using a combination of historical
claims experience (including severity and payment lag time) and other actuarial analysis
including number of enrollees, age of enrollees and certain enrollee health indicators to predict
the cost of healthcare services provided to enrollees during any given period. While management
believes that its estimation methodology effectively captures trends in medical claims costs,
actual payments could differ significantly from estimates given changes in the healthcare cost
structure or adverse experience. During the year ended September 30, 2008, the Plan received
independent actuary analysis resulting in an increase to medical expenses of approximately
$286,000 related to estimates for prior years.

Contracts between the Plan and primary care physicians contain incentives to encourage
physicians to practice preventive healthcare. These incentives, which are based on annual
performance, are estimated monthly and recorded in medical claims payable in the
accompanying balance sheet. Actual incentives are paid periodically throughout the year.

Reinsurance

Contractually, the Plan is reimbursed by AHCCCS for healthcare costs that exceed stated
amounts at a rate ranging from 75% to 100% of qualified healthcare costs in excess of stated
levels of up to $50,000, depending on the eligibility classification of the member. Qualified costs
must be incurred during the contract year and are the lesser of the amount paid by the Plan or the
AHCCCS fee schedule. Amounts are recognized under the contract, with AHCCCS when
healthcare costs exceed stated amounts as provided under the contract, including estimates of
such costs at the end of each accounting period. In the event that AHCCCS is unable to honor its
reinsurance commitment, the Plan may be responsible for excess costs incurred. Reinsurance
recoveries totaling $28,917,616 were recognized during the year ended September 30, 2008, and
are included as a reduction of hospital medical expenses in the accompanying statement of
earnings.

0812-1014357 Pagé 9 of 31
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Health Choice Arizona
(A Division of Health Choice Arizona, Inc.)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Administrative Expenses

The Plan shares its property leases and employees with Health Choice Generations (HCG),
another division of the Parent. Administrative costs are shared between the Plan and HCG based
on the revenue earned by each plan. Except for certain costs that are specific to one plan or the
other, all administrative expenses are paid by the Plan and allocated to HCG according to HCG’s
percentage of the total combined revenue of the Parent. Costs pertaining only to the Plan, such as
premium tax, are not allocated. Costs that can be specifically identified as pertaining to HCG
only, such as the HCC Life Insurance Company (HCC) reinsurance premiums and certain data
processing and marketing costs, are directly charged to HCG.

Income Taxes

IASIS files consolidated Federal and state income tax returns, which include the operating
results of the Plan. IASIS allocates taxes to the Plan pursuant to the asset and liability method, as
if the Plan were a separate taxpayer. For balance sheet purposes, such allocations are included in
due from affiliates in the accompanying balance sheet.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash and cash equivalents, AHCCCS receivables, due from affiliates, accounts payable and
accrued expenses, and medical claims payable represent financial instruments as defined by
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107, Disclosures About Fair Value of
Financial Instruments. The carrying value of these financial instruments approximates their fair
market value due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requircs management to make estimates and assumptions that

affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.
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Health Choice Arizona
(A Division of Health Choice Arizona, Inc.)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Transactions with Affiliates

The Plan remitted fee-for-service payments totaling $11,711,321 during the year ended

September 30, 2008, to facilities which are owned and operated by IASIS.
4. AHCCCS Receivables

The AHCCCS receivables consist of the following at September 30, 2008:

Reinsurance, net $ 8,041,164
Hospital supplement 267,809
Delivery supplement 720,388
HIV-AIDS supplement 676,346
Capitation receivable 1,215,436
TWG, PPC and SSDI-TMC reconciliation settlements 19,340,274

$ 30,261,417

5. Leases

The Plan leases its office facilities under various operating lease agreements. The following is a
schedule of the future minimum lease payments required under noncancelable leases with initial

or remaining terms in excess of one year at September 30, 2008:

Fiscal year 2009 $ 1,187,652
2010 1,206,770

2011 1,226,835

2012 1,258,367

2013 1,275,565

Thereafter 1,472,740

$ 7,627,929

Rental expense totaled $1,086,014 for the year ended September 30, 2008, and is included within

administrative expenses in the accompanying statement of earnings.

0812-1014357 Page 11 of 31
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Health Choice Arizona
(A Davision of Health Choice Arizona, Inc.)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Commitments and Contingencies
Professional, General and Other Liability Insurance

The Plan is subject to claims and lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of business, including,
but not limited to, injuries arising from patient treatment and denials thereof. The Plan believes
that its liability for damages resulting from such claims and lawsuits is adequately covered by
insurance or is adequately provided for in its financial statements.

The Plan’s contract with AHCCCS requires the Plan to maintain professional liability insurance,
comprehensive general insurance, and automobile liability insurance coverage of at least
$1,000,000 for each occurrence. During the year ended September 30, 2008, the Plan was
covered under IASIS’ umbrella policy. IASIS, on behalf of the Plan, carries professional and
general liability insurance, as well as workers’ compensation insurance, in excess of self-insured
retentions through an unrelated commercial insurance carrier in amounts that IASIS believes to
be sufficient for the Plan, although some claims may exceed the scope of coverage in effect.
IASIS maintains reserves for professional and general liability and workers’ compensation
claims. Accordingly, no reserve for liability risks are recorded on the accompanying balance
sheet. The cost for the year ended September 30, 2008, totaled $88,927 and $169,828 for
professional and general liability and workers’ compensation, respectively, and is included
within administrative expenses in the accompanying statement of earnings. The Plan is currently
not a party to any such proceedings that, in the Plan’s opinion, would have a material adverse
effect on the Plan’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

Employee Benefit Insurance Risks

The Plan participates in a self-insured program for health insurance and other medical benefit
programs administered by [ASIS. The cost of employee health and other medical benefits is
allocated by IASIS based on total covered employees and dependents. The cost allocated to the
Plan, net of employee premiums, totaled $1,721,252 for the year ended September 30, 2008, and
is included within administrative expenses in the accompanying statement of earnings.

0812-1014357 Page 12 of 31
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Health Choice Arizona
(A Division of Health Choice Arizona, Inc.)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)
Performance Guarantee

If the Plan fails to effectively manage healthcare costs, these costs may exceed the premiums
received by the Plan. The Plan believes the capitated premiums, together with reinsurance and
other supplemental premiums, are sufficient to pay for the services the Plan is obligated to
deliver. Pursuant to its contract with AHCCCS, the Plan is required annually to provide
performance bonds or letters of credit, in an acceptable form, to guarantee performance of the
Plan’s obligations under its contract to provide and pay for the healthcare services. The amount
of the performance guaranty that AHCCCS requires is generally based upon the membership in
the Plan and the related capitation paid to the Plan. As of September 30, 2008, the Plan provided
performance guarantees in the form of a $20,577,306 irrevocable standby letter of credit for the
benefit of AHCCCS and maintained a cash balance of $5,000,000. As of October 1, 2008, in
connection with the new contract with AHCCCS and related performance guarantce
requirements, the Plan increased its letter of credit to $36,651,654.

State and Federal Laws and Regulations

The Plan is subject to state and federal laws and regulations. The Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Secrvices and AHCCCS have the right to audit the Plan to determine the Plan’s
compliance with such standards. The Plan is required to file periodic reports with AHCCCS and
to meet certain financial viability standards. The Plan must also provide its enrollees with certain
mandated benefits and must meet certain quality assurance and improvement requirements. The
Plan believes it is in compliance with these AHCCCS requirements. The Plan must also comply
with the electronic transactions regulations and privacy standards of the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA). The Plan believes it is in compliance with the
HIPAA security standards as set forth in 45 CFR Part 164. The Plan has also complied with the
requirements for health plans defined in 45 CFR Part 162.

0812-1014357 Page 13 of 31
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Health Choice Arizona
(A Division of Health Choice Arizona, Inc.)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)
Other

On March 31, 2008, the United States District Court for the District of Arizona (the “District
Court”) dismissed with prejudice the qui tam complaint against IASIS Healthcare Corporation
(TIAS), parent company of IASIS. The qui tam action sought monetary damages and civil
penalties under the federal False Claims Act (“ FCA”) and included allegations that certain
business practices related to physician relationships and the medical necessity of certain
procedures resulted in the submission of claims for reimbursement in violation of the FCA. The
case dates back to March 2005 and became the subject of a subpoena by the Office of Inspector
General (“OIG”) in September 2005. In August 2007, the case was unsealed and became a
private lawsuit after the Department of Justice declined to intervene. The United States District
Judge dismissed the case from the bench at the conclusion of oral arguments on IAS’ motion to
dismiss. On April 21, 2008, the court issued a written order dismissing the case with prejudice
and entering formal judgment for IAS. On May 7, 2008, the qui fam relator’s counsel filed a
Notice of Appeal to the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit to appeal the
District Court’s dismissal of the case. On May 21, 2008, IAS filed a Notice of Cross-Appeal to
the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit from a portion of the April 21, 2008
Order and, on July 22, 2008, IAS filed a Motion to Disqualify relator’s counsel related to their
misappropriation of information subject to a claim of attorney-client privilege by IAS. On
August 21, 2008, the court issued a written order denying IAS’ Motion to Disqualify and
resetting the briefing schedule associated with the Ninth Circuit appellate proceedings. On
October 21, 2008, the relator filed his appeal brief with the United States Court of Appeals for
the Ninth Circuit. IAS’ cross-appeal brief is due on January 20, 2009. Currently, the appeals
process is expected to take one to two years to complete. If the appeal of the order dismissing the
qui tam action with prejudice was to be resolved in a manner unfavorable to IAS, it could have a
material adverse effect on the business, financial condition and results of operations of IAS and
the Plan, including exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

0812-1014357 Page 14 of 31
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Health Choice Arizona
(A Division of Health Choice Arizona, Inc.)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

7. Retirement Plan

Substantially all employees of the Plan, upon qualification, are eligible to participate in IASIS’
defined contribution 401(k) plan. Employees who elect to participate generally make
contributions from 1% to 20% of their eligible compensation and TASIS matches, at its
discretion, such contributions on behalf of the Plan up to a maximum percentage. Generally,
employees immediately vest 100% in their own contributions and vest in the employer portion of
contributions over a period not to exceed five years. Defined contribution expense totaled
$110,820 for the year ended September 30, 2008, and is included within administrative expenses
in the accompanying statement of earnings.

0812-1014357 Page 15 of 31

148



0
N

0812-1014357

Other Financial Information

149



LSEVIOI-TI8O
181 teL 6t |9cab9r by Fboensll 008 ST 2% 4L Py 06 Ly 12iShi v ICOOVIOE) 260 DAbe | U0 BOZY 9Be1IE 1157608 SGLB4E ZOvEDS R (ve6 507 S0 INOONTLAN
cia'sszior |- - - €18'652'0L  {OvZ'vIS L19's 0zL'SLY'E 912'506 199'82€'L  §02'12Z€ pie'loL's SEQ'VIE Zev'soy 0/6'V8S'L  8G6'62S'L  6LE'EZ'L SOXE} WNIWald
zo8'vi2'2L | 65Z'9€C | 060'9EZ 69l cog'sso'zh  |lzhi'ge) 619'21 121°G09'F 662'08E'L  ¥20'282 2i5's28 $69'196'v L27°0L€ 118'68% 651682V LAb'SEP'Z  L20'22E s@Xe} sWoou}
9L6'EST IV s8g'06¢'L [916'G6E°L 696 1£0'258'6E 99Y'¥89'L)  L51L°09 BEL'VTE'BL TBL'ILYY'O  (B66'€00C)  GER'GYO'E | 615'69Z'VL 800°268 098'L08't 8y L4T'E Leg'ses’s  (¥09's82'L) s9xe} 210j8q ($50|) U}
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (sso1) ou| Bunesado-uoN
oKe'esz' Iy | 598'96¢'L [ 9OL6'S6ETL 696 1€0'268'6€  [(9ov'v89'L)  £S51°09 BEL'PZE'EL  ZBLIPY'O  (BGG'E00T)  6e8'6YO't | 625'69Z'WL [ LLD'z68 659'108'L  €8F'/PZ'E  LE8'B8S'6  (509'69Z'L) suoneiado wos (501} ou|
Gey sy 6P| 1Z€ 058 181008 et VLI SOL LSy |CUZGIE 6L 6Cu00y LIl Pac G0l 9DEEarOs  ervyvyD  BovvLL L) JOYCORLOZE J IOV IOBEL VA0 UOOLE LG ULL (A POLL6CED  HLOOLE L9 SaSNadXd TViOL
S = = BEE Ve 8 | e vav L . EIee 062 ve 9 CILFOE L LI PEYE AXH NINGY Y101
1e8°6y0'IEp 1176088 181658 OBL o6z e, 0ch VIOVEEL2Z OLZ00L €8y o00e6 /8168t BaLveBeiz 12lt 1506  COR MRS OL  BoGEl0Z  CILopE0s Blvessug <XAIVOIGAW LANIVIOL
(z1v'96v"1) - - - lziv'e6y'l)  [86v'S: 895t .G 9Z}'LS. (6s0°159) G9G'GS, ¥60'89Z. 06E'LLE. 801 liqer Aued piyL zpy
(191'921) - - - (L91'9ZL) - - (0z5'90+} (1y9'61L) - - - - - - - - QouRINSUIgY-Odd |¥¥
(ssv'162'82) |- - - (ssv'v62'92)  [(169'102) - (eee'see'vl)  (Lv0'280'%)  (0S'ese'y)  (900'262)  [(szg'evs's)  [(v15'09) (v8g'221)  {257'058'))  (628'20%)  (vb9'zOL'E) SoUBINSUBY O
1589
GELA50TaF | LIE 048 187668 DAL VAL 0L 1P | 0GVOrG 42 69300L  DOBZZ0FLL  (OOEIEEE UB0'TPI il FOSUBLIEIE JUSPIGLEl (B0 489l OLe 75t b9  Zreds6 89 19y 90 Lo 3 TYIIARN TV.LOL
GOE 956541, | 619°0VE Zveve. OBt WG9 Z0LGLL JEVEPiGs  £0L 08 GSiIiasy  CLviBLy . SIvIIGer 185 LvG v JOraslvon | LiLetl'9  CIEELL§_ GvO VLGt LOOBESLE  LVLGLLL EDIpoN N0 EW).
¥06'725'6 - - - $06'9L5'6 voI'8LY - €89%50'Y 912'68'L  ¥89¥0Z 166'06 9L1°028'T VECTET 682 ey S24'862'L  0L5'9¥L 802'064 124I0-Odd 8Et
22¢'820'e - - - zze'8L0't o9r'zL - 606'S19 6h2'be €1LL129 21€'029 $0Z'980't 14€'09 Y 950°262 952'059 5e€'sz sasuadX] |eDipaly SNOBUR(IBISIN 9EP
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - s9sUadx3 1004 NSIY JBUID vEY
015'v81L'Z - - - 915'¥8L'Z $29'%L - 165'924 [1d%44 508'822 065'65 oLLTLE ¥96' L2t 640'8rL 601°26E 0¥5'907 ¥80'EET Adesayl jeatsAud zev
98£'€66'0 - - - 98€'066'9 L26°EY - 0Lr'8Y0'e 892'925 €65'9¥6'}  L46'SBS 1810v8 9zL'18Z 651'2s €28'¢82 S¥Z'08 824241 @180 yjleeH swoH ‘Aived BulsiNN 0gp
£66'268'%1 | 02€'L Lig'L € €L9'968%E 1592428 Spi'L S80'LEL'E 81€'1T TPV 6V9'LES 661'€2€'L S62'0YE ¥16'292 €L6'G0E'7  LESTOK'T  OKO'92V'L uonepodsues] §Zy
€96'L21'4 |- - - €96'22L'2L |10zt - 182'692 996'5S €0¥'66¢ 207’554 86E1Ls'sh | ore'eL 66£'9LL'L  092'006°L  91¥'89¥'ZL  L€5°9 |eweq 9z
£29'899'% YoL ¥0L - 614°299'Y 211601 4] 850°€0L'} 086'7L 580°2€6 €22°551 $S1'L622 608'LEL S10'$0€ ¥LL'¥89 184'296 SEL'PLE swdinbg [eopsy 8(qeing vZv
evv'sszor |- - - evp'ssz'oy | oer'esst  e€TvL 6I6'6Z9°0L  BSE'LLG TOS'PLY'9  LLE'BSH L | vAV'IBY'EL | 8YS'VES'L  SOL'GES 1SZ'228'8  Z99'PZ9S  BYZ'0E9't Ay weneding zey
eva'ec0'0z | 12t 718 - zi9'6e0'0z | 090'62L's 2204 150'66.4'S £58'81E 0L0'9EL's  165'042 rL0'seo's S69'9V6 £20'SvL 211°Z88'Y  OEV'OZY'L  6V.'VEQ BujBew) [eoipe B ‘Aei-X ‘geT 0Zh
zov'zvo'se | Biv'ove lET'OVT  L81 YrO'96LLE | v2¥ZLY 005°'5€ 2SE'E6HLL  vO8'09Y 686'so¥'0L  9€1'SZE eorzoe'vh | 1zz'ese’s  ses'eor’'z 292'098's  ove'9s0'y  S26'M6L Aoewseud git
vee'zoL'er |- - - $66'201'6L | 665°05H ors's 9cL'eEL'Y L12'202 6zz'se6’t  aiE'ee 1we'e2zzh | 9ss'voc SYE'6L0'L  BBLZTLL'Y  OLL'SZE'Y  2Z0L'006'L saopeg fousbiowz gie
— $8sUadx3 Jedipe JaUI0
oin'269'eLL frav'y /Y - pre'eee’sle 300N R goray Zet'zea vy LOLAOR'E  gpiLiviel  810J08%¢  Yerr'veson Yeec'@ize 1e0'2ee  e20'06z'6L  veL'Seusi  ZTi'oeeidl _diiby (eoibem #10L
86°€6Y'L - - - 86£°E6Y'L ¥52'962 - 669'068'2 9/€224'  686'0Fk Lov'0z €25'720C v8R'221 089°2ve 162'6€9 98 Lbp 29¢'695 SA3UNIAG UBISAYL -~ Odd ¥LY
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - sasuadxg [00d ysIy ueIsAiud ZLy
109'291'1. |- - - L9291 1L Jozo'ort's  e8'e LSLVEV'SL  ZLOGKK'L  LST'SAL'OL  tRG'YBLT | whl'seL'te | €S8'ME'T  SLVOLVET PEE'SIE'EL  v2L2.2'8 089'€€E’L ueIsAud €19y 0Ly
L18'0s6've | zav'y 8y - eze'zeeve [ 2ro'ons €85'LE 0£E"2LE'S £v2'582 Z04'60'C  £60°204 9E0'VBL'YZ | 965'8LL 8ES°ELZ'E  BEB'BEE'S  ¥BE'696'6  080'EEP'L uepisiyg a1ep Aewid 90v
uonesuadwo) |esipap
M 94T I65 - otcuoe bLr 1ivatoo vl = Z0vG95 Ly I8V 698yl ZIV IS Or 16veest I ZGL VIV el Ieecoslt 190240 BECoc0@r  SOGCELO VoI var et GOREEeYds0R [610),
£89°EZV 6€ - - £89'ETV'6E | OOE'WIO'L - T89'968'EL  990'809'6  8LZ/S6'L  OLL'PYS 8BL'COVZE | 515285 66€°GEV'L  OLE'LL8C  cLELS9'L  299'SS8'S Wsledu| feydsoH-Ddd 90v
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - sasuadxg j00d YsiY [eNdsoH +0t
cze'eL0'esl |ozzizes | oszzes - wo'zer'zel | ivveozel - cz/'LI9'6Z  TEC'090'S  66L'pZ9'LZ  lze'spl't | 696'802'65  |iEp'Ell'e 950'0v9'Z  6Z6'PZZ'OL  £6S'YO0'S  ZS6'86G'ZE jueiedu) eydsoH 2ot
uoneziendsop
| I N SISNIAXI
TIV G0N 66F | DSC ZvEC | L60GYe e BaLL GELeaL 16y | Z61€e5 i 08060l LIGBLLTer  GrGVBOLZ  COPOVP 20 L6 Vo0 Gl lGLEBICOPE |ZLv LOL VL EPGOVGL  BGC WG T SBOSBE L OLE 12668 SINNIATHE TVIOL
66v'ves'L (2N 650°2€ 243 - S88°€ 0EY'E zors) (1gl'or) 018y - - 0’0} - 99.°0¢ SWODU| JAYID 0EE
= = - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - AWOJU| WBWISBAUL GZC
PST'e68'L - - - $ST'e68'L 8Z1'SYS - LEL'99E'Y L9G'9EY'T  (P18°9)) (008" 1E) ZPLItes 651°22) £+0'602 (695'z¢1) (L82'12) PLL'09S WBWBNES Odd 22E
08p'992'L - - - 08p'992°L - - STE'PLE'Y §51'256 - - - - - - - - ewenes OML 1ZE
690°0VE'} - - - 690'0¥€' 102V - 9rE'9L9 00¥'8Z €€ 1LY (€91'v9) 90'vZT YOL'2 258'¢5 984'50L 0eZ'st v29'€l wawalddng SAIV-AIH 0Z€
osz'eip'se |- - - 9pz'eiv’se | 1ve'voctor - 10r'699 ee'z) 6EV'LIO £86°24 eco'tog'sr |- - eco'log'el - - wawa|ddng vy80S SiE
$60'009's - - - $$0'008'6 - - - St0'008'6 - - - - - - - - wawaiddng jeudsoH zLe
sei'zeo'ey |- - - seL'Ze0'ty | €L9'288 - OLL'60E'ZZ  9¥O'LPS'S  LOL'E00'L  2S8'L0Z 808'880'ct | 810°288 90L'19L'L  BKZ'6OV'Y  BEEELIT  BEN'ZIL'E uonepdad Odd 0LE
£v9'6L0's6E | 918'660 | 159'969  6SLL 128'61E'Z6€ | H25'82L'S 089691 202'6€8'68  820'02€'8  920'C.€'09  MpE'SSE'SL |viv'ie9ziz |evb'668'EL  ZvZnAE'LL  LIE'YOL'OS  ¥G9'98G'69  8IE'H0D'SS vojeyded §0€
S3NNIAIN
€1£°829'1 [ €09 L 60L°249'L LL10E - 6.8°€2C eLThh 6568 692°58 €20°222°1 €6L°2€ €99'821 2L1'8LT S6€229 00v'60F SUMA "9 Ddd B '90.d
z£0'625'L v09 £09 L 8z¥'aLs'L 0ee'9z 1406 286'86) 1618 099'98 L0E'v6 3342383 697'SE 0.9'64) 0L1'65Z Z90+E9 ov0'90L SUIN "IN Sdd  “S0Id
09E'489'} 08 €09 3 952'989'L LLHOE 1006 618'€CC ELT 76568 692'S6 £20'12Z'} £6L'48 £99'824 2LL'82 S6£ZL9 00r'60L SUIUOW JoqUON (BI0L
$85°695+ vo9 €09 B 18€°695"} 0EzT'9 = 29686 1608 099'98 X s 69v'5E 049641 041°65C 790 VES 0v0'90L siuow sequioyy “s0.d
822'801 - - - 82¢'804 L¥6'E - 268'%2 9U¥'T ¥E6'2 a9r'L z9'zL y2e'z €66'8 209'64 cee'se 09¢'e UL 18qWBN Odd
0'6 - - - 2%0'6 - 90'6 - - - - - - - - - - SUIN JAWIW Sdd VHEOS
SYIUOW Joquiep
S3SNIdX3 B INNIAIY
[Z0YY 1e101 pew Pal leloL SWoW | Bujuueld asw [ET]] Pel Pe lejoL +5Y W vl 4 r-vi AW ELL WL > 88)JUNOY |BJOL
pueis 1ass N0 yum yim XIX V4808 Apwey - uoN no yum yim dANVL INVL dANv1 ANVL ANVL ANV 8002 Buppu3 Jea) [eosid
QWL-IASS [DWNL-10SS eyl Hg0s 1SS 1SS -oU| 'BUOZIIY 931049 YitedH)
- B \ Ay
pauy N
/ dnoi9 XSty -alliqelyord // \

150

Page 16 of 31



LSEPTOT-ZIRD

151

BEWZOE L ] 69C £ 63Z2'€9 - 691'6v1'1 JOvB'SZ €521 GL20LY 90562 218612 ZPOGE] 9ELOVE 008 28 1§97 0L 12926t BLE 26 {69Z°€2L) S50} AIWOONI 13N
Yor'vZh - - - vor'vZi ¥o8'LL 05 €26'L¢ SLo'y 66¢'ZL 09€'t £eT'6s reg'y [%4: 18¢'12 L'l 8L0'LL soXE) WNWaid
626'6EC SLLLL SHLLE - vi8'sze [4%:7 60€ €99'66 zOL'LL LI6'zL 152°12 854'26 wi'e vOs‘L 15995 1ee'TEe (220'61) soxe} ewoou|
1€8°999°L | v8E'Y9 $8E'Y9 - Lyp'Z09°'L | 8eE'TLl (4L 198 LY €29'SY 12619 659'9v) 12Y'TEE 18Z'ES z60'92 659042 £99'evL (892°LEL) S8XE) 910j9q (S50]) 2U|
_ - — — - - - - - - - - - - - - - (ss0() ou Bunesado-uoN
1€8999°L | v8E'Y9 $8E'79 - Lvp'209'y | 8EE'TLY (4T 198'L¥S £29'sy 126'19¢ 659'9%1 1ZY'T6E 18Z'€8 260'9Z 659'0L2 €99'evlL (892°1E1) suopesado woy (sso)) u)
CCLICI Y | 618 E G/2e = BIZESTY | 2260v% GEL CECRLE | 1ol ve 1 A7d LEL'8G aig'969'e [ Gr20/E PLOOLY 906 67/ $O¢ 186 189t p0 SHSNIINY 1VLOL
(%44 - = - BeE Cet GLiHE BC) ©645 28 $88'4 1 986°1¢ L0 11 08E'E8L 9BV L2 0L 061 58 9RY'9E L8982 dXH NINAY TV10L
VZavery | 9i8¢ Gi8'e - 86 0EY'Yy 1 Z08ViY 809 20L G971 06222 G52 881 gye oy BEVZ04 ¢ | BAL 602 188 0Ly VLY 760 TLLVLG BI0610
(s8s's) - - - (s8s's) - - - - - (69) (a15°s) - - (oge'e) {099°1) -
s GRRYa L) = : S asuRnee G |

(cee642). . ) m : T = Sra e e S {oaaTl R e lcine Siman {gitg) #

euany

Lacront
76 zel

989
Blo g
g6z
G0i6

coubnn
Bl

Jeaer

Seveny

(670/9)
hL

S EBRZL

biscaaia
e A

BLEpy

BeEOL

SHEE

e
SO0
begy

47

foso

kPR

Gt

lgsg e
lopaip

Lae:

LaE

Zen
seglie
wesl

EennL

PELE

evath

tgg

ji

it

e

vy
90
il
80008
sopLy

on oy

s

Hirig
i
iy
evee

i50%

conanl
aiGie

Zeievl . gorsl

098I uvibie

Hees

B e

iErEE

1062

L zeohr

vere

g el
BeLlg
Libeay

AP0 Oeld

sy Baipay snosUEleDSIN

soslatxg 0od S IBuin

Adeiayl poBAuL

iR an suiny nped Busing

uonEcdin
e

jusdinhy ieoibon Sie g
L Ruiged weneding

DuiBEL] [Eipen g el e o

e Kowiiioiyg
: saninions Asiebisiug
e5sunde 3 BB DU

SahiAIGS DeldisAld = a4
basuad 00y HSid LEDEAU

tesd edinjoy

UBISSAL BIES Al
HogEsuatiuo s whnan
it .

el s g
SESUBNC (004 518 1B1Ida0L)

fuenedul jeudson

ineziedson;
SHENTdxXH

o s
Buloollf Wewisaal

MOGELIE

BB sl

- wswadng sy Al

Waladdne v

Jsmeddas pudang

wanBlides 9y

usnepdes

Page 17 of 31

teE el vt i o LI HE Vg Wig 8ei S0h s pEZL 1o SR w6l TBYEG V86 SUWN I da 9 seig
L9€°LL i 143 - €6E°LL 2cs 9%V’ €0L 188 vZe't S68'LL 95 890°C 86T 88€'s 156 SNIN I Sdd B 'S0id
£25'8L i )45 - 605'81 V.S L64°2 9ZL 506 1S€E'1 0£9'Z4 359 961'C 160°C 8vL's 86 SYIuoW Jequiely jejol
SEZ'LL vi vl - Lzz' z28 - 96¥'2 €0L g8 vZe'l G68'LE 9GS 890'2 8L6Z 88E'S 156 SYILOW 1equisly ‘SCId
oSt - - - oSt 2s - g6z €2 ¥z 22 seL 14 x4} €Ll 09¢ 2 syluoy tequiew ddd
zeL - - - zeL - F4 - - - - - - - - - - SUIN Jqui Sdd VYE0S
SYIUOW Jequiapy
S3ISNIdX3 ? ANNIAI
1ejo) lejoL [T PelN 20l swop [Buuueid] Q3w REI] 7] (7] lejoL +Sp WEt-vl | dvipL Nk AW L > Auno) ayoedy|
puein 1ass no yum ynm XIX wvyg0s | Anwey - UoN o ypm unm 4ANVL ANVL ANVL ANVL 4ANVL ANVL 800Z Buipug Jea) jeasiy
DWL-1aSS |[DNL-10SS dL wigos ISS 1SS ‘3] 'BUOZ)Y 9210YD Yl|edH)
s N.\ h
pen il
~ dnoig ysl qelyold AN




LSEPIOI-TIRO

079625 b 629'5% 64952 - 196°C05' ) Yy's 000y YOL'€06 948'V5E iz e 85Y'09 Z8y'L9T £Z1 ) SOL'LSE 5984 ¥1 VBE'ELL 955°%6) 1SS0 FIWOONI LAN
86¥'50E - - - 86v'50¢ 210'6) Jiqs Ly¥'901 0z8'41 85€'s2 1] £66'621 vi8'8 8821 €02y L00'vE 18¢'2e sexe] wnwalg
$00'009 vib'y ({184 - 168'665 glz'ot 266 9re'zie evs've (ee2'2) 256'8L sco'seL |21 0zELY 286'98 609'65 989'2 SOXe} ey
€ZM'sev's | e6L'6T | e6L'6C - oge'sor'z | scoy 6EL'S 165°22E"} 6€6'95% (969'69) 9z1'98 0ss‘29s  |(Lz€'se) €12'502 oze'ore 100202 (€19'vS) sexe} 810j8q ($50|) ou|
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (ss0]) our Buesedo-uoN
£TL'SEV'T e62'6T | ees'6T - 0£E'S0Y'Z SL9'LYy 6EL'S £68'22€'}L 8€6'95F (969'69) 9z1'98 055'295 (12€'G€) £12's0z oze'ore 100'202 (€19'vS) suoneJado wouy ($s0)) ou|
€80 ¥ZSCh {96642 | 96612 = 280'255°2, | 965°i¥e vil'} €67 6E9°C 125°€22 625052 ¢ c9Z62¢ 201°898°5 | £61°05% 2222 €ISVEL'L €85 vab L £BG¥69'E S3SN3dXd IVLOL
BV060L - - - 919'68. ToL ey 64¢ 240612 LL0°9Y 0EP'GY e Li 205°98¢ 926 2¢ G40'€E 089 801 $49°/8 90v'e8 dX3 NINGY TV10)
Z0v'¥8LLL | 96612 | 86612 — (XL B2 G6E'L 122 798'E by 229 660°C81'L 216112 Ve’ | 1LEiey 2SH60% 120°685'1  GOZ'96E'L ED dX3 1VOIGSN LaN 1VLOL
(ci6'c1) - - - (cre‘ct) - - {0006} {rzo'l) (121°9) - (zL1L) - - zun - - Ruiqen Aved piyL zvv
z9v'c - - - 9t'e - - FAT AN §90'Z - - - - - - - - SOURINSUIBY-Odd Lbp
{81'v86)} - - - (81t'v86) - - (08z'8L8) (g25's01) (5v9'22) - (0ze'222) - ~ (9g9'621) (66£°2Y) (so8'soL) esueinsulRY Obp
110 |
OtC 622¢) 196612 | 966 1C = ovt'isszl | esvess S6EL ¥B0°0¥6'C 965 28L 1Z6ELZ L 2611 Z16'808'S | 1iZ2v 25 HE0Y CEE'SLE' L 801 6%t PO LI2 L dX3 V103N 1V.LOL
eze vy fvese  |pboe - veL'ecay [ 7Rl 26v Z6'9L6"] cLeest oLE'099 95Y'S0L €6Y°220'z [ 008'06L 97a8'e6t 20v'267 3290 £z8'781 [Bpa 1010 104
96'LEY - = - v96'LEY 0sL'gL - LGZ'v6L 659'26 €EE'T 682'Z 290'5Z1 064'Z1 666'0L S00'tS $82°97 £89'pL 1BN0-Odd 8ty
280'vS - - - 180'0G 88Z - 1682'¢ oe 10E'9L 6216 9Ey've 1£6 [-74: 48 218'6 L09°LL 951 uadx3 |eoIpaiy SNOBURIBISIN 9L
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - sasuadx3 j00d ¥Sid 1BN0 vEY
8£5'26 - - - 8£5°46 gLl - 2iz'sz LeL'L L0Z'9 v6L'S zz9'Ls £L6'2 isr'e 2612 Ses'y Leg'z Adeiayy [eassAud zev
299002 - - - 299'00Z 1z - 662'L6 966'z2 SL6'e9 L£9'ZL ¥E6's b2€£'Z see 946't - 6v2'2 uieaH swoH ‘Awnoed BuisinN oY
09t'LL5 € 13 - £2¥'146 s12'e - vrR'6LZ 80Z‘LL evi'o8 09612 1R9'8ZZ pI8'ZL [-14-74 090'9 662'vL 56€'LS uoneyodsues) gzy
§6Z'cLE - - - ssz'ele A - vzs'2L £09'L 8Le'tL 922'y 692'vee 82'¢ 19922 €0e'2e z10'012 00S [ewsqa 9zv
80G'c0L 14} 14 - PeP'E0L 818t - 908°ce 8.€'2 €EL'G 2€0'e 2Z8'eS 9243 S80°01 Si9'8L 869'21 BS9'E wawdinb3 |eoipay 21qINA HZY
602°2€6 - - - 602'2€6 12Zr'Le - $99°2L€ z8L'vL 166'28L £80'42 851PLY 699'LS 06822 YEO'PEZ y62'2L 122'82 Auoed waneding 22y
SILELY - - - SLL'ELY 1681 b 662'691 £9L'6 LIz'sy 068'6 v9'v6l 965'82 sp'st 216504 298'92 z28'LL BuiBew) jeaipay g ‘Ae)-x 'qe7 0zt
ori'e8s cev'e £6b'8 - 199'08L 128'01 844 zzL'ere 881k €E1L'8E2 186'% 652992 65€°2S 661'GE 929'£0L $£9'09 LEY'0L Aoeuneud gLy
0£8'648 - - - 0ce'619 8rE'SL - 9r6'861 S0l 185'59 sy 10452 0£2'SH 890°L€ 28€'6Z4 ¥29'86 162'0S sao1neg Aousbialug 9Lt
— - . sasuadxy [eoIpsjy J8UI0
SOELILE |- - = SeSIILE  {ececor _ tvo Z6C828____ Z2045% toges:  005) B9v'z10% | vev'Ze Z6BZZL__ 159°68Y 767 087 896 L9% —_dUios [991DON 19101
€60'ZLY - - - €60°ZLY €96°G - 226'¥S1 vi6'vel X7 sy 20021 104'L LN 192'9¢ 16522 990'8% S80IAIS UBIOISAUd - Ddd bLb
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - basuadx3 (004 dsi uedisAud ZLy
epL'9ss’t |- - - evi‘eoss't | sse'eee 90z 192'0LS ze9'4e Lzo'ze £98'79 908P6L 18€°ZS 206's8 €0ELIE see'slL 568'651 uepisiud [euaey OLb
0SE'SHE - - - 0EE'EV6 sl6'8l 181 viz'est 926 682'SY 6ELLL 099°c69 ove'Le selLe 182'9EL SiE'8v2 128652 uenisiyd a1en Alewud 80y
uonesusdwoy [esipay
ZSYEL  {2SEL - 066 900'S 18E'¥0p - £97'008 1 VLY LEy 8v0'viE 2LEHE G00501'C | ZEC 6L YEL 28 9EL ¥ES 196'62E GEE'/60'L uopez|jendsoy [e101
- - - 08'0Ly'L | e6v'e - 9rt'v29 699262 016LS ecLLl 05112% 508'6 698'6Z vL0'SEL £5£°09 SPO'061 Jusnedul [eNdSoH-Odd 90%
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - sasuadxg [00d %Sy [ENASOH 0T
6£9'609'c | zev'eL | esv'eL - egi'oes'e | o800t - L1€'9L6 Zri'vrl 8EL'ZIE (244 658'2pL'L | 9zT'6EL $99'99 290'66€ ¥19'592 062'L48 jusiedu) [edsoH Zoy
uoneze)dsop
S3SN3dX3
902°600°S) | 68215 o818 - PRI B £L6'0 068°'L96'Y ogv'oet’y £E8'08L'} 16£'GLE 259'82y'9 | 9zg'viv oyyive £E8'PE0'T BG'L69'L r46'6E8°} SANNIAIY TVLOL
LV 98e'2¢ [ 988's€ - 1£2'ee EEAl - 85%'Z ey €19 /T 9r0'zZ - - oLL'e - ECE BWOdU[ JBYIO OEE
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - BLUODU| JUBWISBAU| GZE
9Z1'106 - - - 9ZL°106 (pv8'LL) - 610'0EY 168'¥02 (586'6) (eov'2) 805962  |(s96't) v69'9y 916'Ly §69'v6 891L'604 ewemes Odd ZzZE
(g88's2¢€) - - - (B88'sze) - - (pLL'vor) 9zg'gE} - - - - - - - - UBWANRS DML 12€
siv's - - - Siv'e - - oL’ - - - LIg'e - - L1€'9 - - weswaddng sAIV-AIH 0Z£
161996 - - - 161996 1ZL'vp9 - 8v9'8¢ - 144°] - §16'9.¢ - - §16'9.2 - - Juswieiddng vy80S SLE
€16'LL2 - - - £€16'21L2 - - - £16'LL2 - - - - - - - - uswaiddng [endsoH ZLE
8Z9'v6L't - - - 8zo'veL's | evo'oe - ¥88'580'1 Z64°10E 0zLzZe 8'2 260'9EE 14808 26425 ¥81'SZL 260°25 821'sL uoneyden Ddd OLE
vrO'60€'LL | €06'El | COE'EL - Lpe's6Z'LL | 9s0'6L2 €169 16t'298'C 2£9'252 PO'LSL'L §28'L08 0BL'06t's | 156'58 $56'L5 261695t 161051 LbE2oP'L uopeyded soe
SANNIAIY
SEL'ED zi zh - %13 0L = 2253 [1%3 788'L 110 €95'8Z 40 985°€ 1202 16k 998°¢ SUIN 49N Ddd B "SOXd
££0°0Y z L - Lzo'oy ol6 e8¢ 2L6'L Lz 162t 6202 $59'92 660"t ole'e 008'9 8E0EH 192'2 SUIN “JAN Sdd 2 $01d
€25ty 14} 43 - Lis'sy 8r0't 88¢ [44%) 154 288'L 1102 £95'82 gzl 985'€ 120 L16°E} 998'2 SYIOH JoqUIs (E10L
3 [ [ - €£9'6E 016 = 6L 753 162t 620 +59°92 620"t [X%3 0059 8EO'EH 191°T SYIUoW Joquisy “soid
06v'E - - - o6v'e 8El - 0Li'} vel 16 54 606°L 4] 9.2 [91:] 6.8 86 SUOW J9quweW Idd
g8g - - - 8sc - gge - - - - - - - - - - SUIN JTWN Sdd YHEOS
SYjuopy Jaquiay
S3ISNIdX3 B INNIAIY
1®j0) lejol P3N PaN €30 Swon bujuueld a3n a3an P PaW L2018 +Sp Nyl Ehiadd dNEL-L N> AUnod ouluod0Y)|
Puesn lass N0 YPIm yum XX vyd0s Awey - UON no yum yim 4ANVL dNVL dNVL dNVL 4NVL dNVL 800Z Buipug Jeap [evsiy
OWL-IASS [DWL-10SS SNL YIE0S 1SS 1SS DU} ‘BUOZHY 3204 YeaH
e J
/ dnoug s, 1910

-

152

Page 18 of 31



LSEVIOT-CI80

f@goeesy) _ Jeotoer_ J6oc oct - (Foc's0sT)  Frica2l) — wegt vO¥ 02t 025621 (vi6692)  Ivisov (Tobziis) [beoie)  (g6cocy)  (Be85vo)  (b0LG62) 1025 v1) 1S801) SWOONI 198
022'062 - - - 0zZ2'06Z $S0'SL oot vo1'6L 818'2L 268'6¢ se0'oL 959'7ZL 8501 S80'2L <88'0p 080°9€ 8rl'ez saxe} winjwald
(1L69'z¥L) vP6°62 +96'62 - (seo'zzy) (5ze'cl) 6St PLEOL G0Z'6€ (ovv'orL) 82162 (929261) 1354 (996'61) (ogz'o11)  (z88'0€) SIS'LL SaxXB) S0}
(czo'ovt't) | esz'ost £6Z'051 - (0rz‘065't) [(182'9zL)  €1p'Z 296'69Z €v5'981L (zze'oL8) 0L5'06 (Lzv'zvi‘l) |(seo'st)  (ozz'ost)  (év2'izs)  (110'962) £51'9Z saxe} a10jaq (sso|) ou)
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - {sso|) ou Bupesado-uoN
(czo'ovt't) | esz'0s) £6Z'051 - (922'065°L) [(182'9ZL)  €LH'Z 286692 £vs'ogl (zzs'048) 0LG'06 (Lzv'zvr‘l) |(seo'st)  (ozz'act)  (ev2'izs)  (1L0'962) £61'92 suonesado woyy (ssol) oul
9e76/9'91L 6885 CBR'G = 166'C28°9) [ SOvEES 8422 8BIEIEY 0Ip'20LTL  ZoVEZIZ  96e'evd £86°200°L | 0/v'C2C  vR0'269 B11GI2E 2041861 Z0e'880°t SISNIdXE WIOL
062°18L = - = 061462 6£8'8E 152 020'S02 £28°GY 860°€01 esy'Ly 95TLIE 2EQUT BTG 082501 69Z°€8 16865 dX3 NINQV TV.LOL

cistany
tiriien

os vas
seguny

fislien

i
foanyd
(ve0aan

SRR
Sgi0nk

S DA

PEESEUY

giaiey

i

sman

ol Bre

218

Lomieg

Sarer
aes
Tas g
SHEy
geLel

BORLhY
SeRLHL

EEReL

wrgr

SLyeng
Lipag:

PELOG

Shhzie

ait'see

e e

Zapag

srgise
e

=
o

s 8]

Sepingy

e

e

=0

i34 -
R AL e Dl Ay
souBInSUELD A (b

SoupHsasl e

230

I B

Lot tesney shlauBise

EstuodT o Ve sey

AdEL e

B EWoH Aloed Buiny

: : Gmipupasied:

o Sienben

Wsudinbg eons sy

Hd Ae s jusieding

ibew EDDe p Al Taey

kBBl

Sanimes Aatsig s
Cogmsuadds temihn iy S

(SOUAIBE WEISAU S Odd 1Y |
Besiisdia oo il GpisAng 2iy
: e T
UsmsAnd e Deiina ane
LonssusdLon eomape

Son HUeHEGUL IBIOSOLE Gl 00 8

sedusdeg o sl endsng bop

Sanediendeny) snp
vonemeae

_S3eNa

Sor erialy SUk GO U
e & & = B0 - - i e - = b = Eaa = = GLIODUL IUBUASEALL GrE
psieng = = 2 658669 the - Bhieme Ll ey s e geropi i loge ol Gin uslienieg el oy
BibpEl = o Gik'yrs i vipils A : e G = o = o Woniamas et L oe
higee 0= - - tuees - 5 S gl 916 fonie Lieg - = IHelddnG GOl Al Don
vazann = (veraes shpLEe e - pbig o so8'n2e = = gotioze = Copmisddee saimee Lo
e e = ot 5 * - Wb s G e 5 = - v Jusaddng edsol gie
BT e = = [ f8ov = see'zey 6opP'pEL gleee ove BELVE eLehe T ey Lew'se sei'oy oLy usiendes Sad Ule
cis'ow'tl | zes‘ze 26622 - 9g£0'88€E’LL | 99Z's€1 1697 LIG'LLL'E  LIEZ9E 160°1E8'L  BLLYPL BYE'O6L'S | £SZ'i9F  OP9'BIS 0it'205'L  925'a58°L SSY'ipO'L uoneyded Gog
SANNIAY
0059y 6} 6} = 18v°'9y ¥SL - [22%] 90V (205 SLL'Y 058'67 282} 150t 666'2 v8Y'pL v€0'C SUIN 1GIN dd ¥ 'S0id
6VE'bY 6l 64 - 0EE'vy 069 962 028'L 9¥E 6v0'e SS0'y ¥BE'8Z S22 2z8'e 295°2 964'C1 616't SUIN QW Sdd B ‘80)d
9tL'9y 6t 6l - LiL'9y [ 962 [az4:] 90¥ pLL'e Shi'y 058'62 2821 150'p 666'2 v8Y'pY ¥£0'2 SYluoK Jequisl [el0L
cLi'vp 61 61 - $60'vP 069 = 015°2 L 6v0°C S50y ¥8E'8Z Szel [2253 296°2 962°C4 6L6'1 SUIOW J0GLIaN 'S0
18€'7 - - - 188'T 9 - 729 09 s9 09 99¢'tL 5 44 134 889 S5 SUIION JEqUIBK Ddd
9eZ - - - 134 - 9€2 - - - - - - - - - - SN Jqu Sdd VYE0S
syjuoy 1oquay
SISNIdX3 ? INNIA3Y
lejoy Iejol Pal POW Iejo) swopy aaw a3an [E]] Pol IejoL +S¥ Wyr-vL | dvPpL AW €11 dN 1> Aunoj ello
Pueig 1ass no ym um XX vig0s - UoN no ypm yum INVL INVL ANVL 4ANVL INVL 4ANVL 8002 Bulpug Jeap (eosid
JWL-I0SS JWL-I0SS oL iSS ISS “JU] ‘BUOZY B210UD YHESH
- o AN
} L
N dnoug ysle.__ iiqenosd -

153

EF’ag;@ 19 of 31



LSEYIOI-TIS0

§2¢ Lt ¢ GO9S AZE BBE 208 = Sroseos  Jeseiee ) EMCST LySVELS OPLZIE% _ P¥BO00'L) 1 LIOTL [ sv0ser L 18971 viZesr  (otyeer Cye'o00¢  TZiEBILL) S50 1) INOINT J3N
EEL'EIV'Y - - - SELEI'Y 056212 19%°L 010°268 060'242 £20'129 [4E:3-178 182'22€'T LLO'LEL 19€'66) S¥1°629 681'EhL $10'099 soxe) wniwaldg
281pEE'S $08'59 $08'S9 - £6€°892'S (ZhL'LoL) 642'9 zLL'ove'L §68°999 ol6's2¢e 2€9'10E IT5'651L°T €09'6.2 £80'82Z 01902 £86'£50'} £v2'L2T S9XE} 2UIOSU|
86v°051'81 Z6E'E6T 26E'c6e - s0viss'ty  |(ev'sei'y)  ess'ee 692'848'L seLosv'e (10’7 §99'8/5'} | 8vE'L€6'S SGE'8Y6 859'st8 SEE°L9% ri0'808'c  (r10'zez) sexe) 810j@q (ss0|) Ju|
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (ssol) oul Bunesado-uoN
e6p'0s1L'alL Z6E'E6E 26€'€6E - 801°262°LL (6v'SZL 1) 665'€E 692'8/8'2 gziosr's  (L10'2} 699'8/5'L | 8vE'IE6'S SSE'BYE 869'Gy8 GEE£'798 ¥L0'808'E (pL0'ze2) suonessdo woy (ss0)) Ju|
BeS Bev 002 | G60 D8E R = EBICOL00¢ { 612RGE 1L FPESE SEE R0z OF _ GOB bLP G BIZ 00 1L 221560 C | ceaciteor | 1606008 BoZdl GBE'100°87  £ob'6OL'IE  BLYORS IS SAGNIIXE IVLOL
68L D6 be ~ = = €02 5t5 LT yBE 088 082 € PI6BIE T LB L¥S L8 VEL [ rhoe00's 90L8EE T8 Y geo'L €911126') 038 ¥0LT SXH NINGY IVLOL
BZo B0 a8E | SL0 6L g = ¥6L 895888 ] SEE 1080k ¥9S IE (6268 c  geooen 000 09.BC_ BB GOBY | 821036 16 Do ive oo Gov5ie6s | dXd TVl0awW LanN 1VL0L
(951082 - - - [(est/0s) (128°€) (982) (218°122) (99t'0)) (0e£'92) 95210 (699'56€) (rSp'6eL) {9z} ilgery Aued payL Zvy
(£56'88) - - - (£56°88) - - (68965} (y9z'62) - - - - - - - - SOURINSUISH-Ddd LYY
(zes'ivs'zy) |- - - (z8S‘1ps'zL) 10922 - (ze2vz0'9)  (pes's90'2)  (269'6L2'L)  (10L) (8€2°8€2°7) $08 (258'8Y) (se8'L28) (vLese) {601'6£8'1) JoueINSURY 0Pt
. HITal
BTG BEC ZOC | SE0 DS 9E0'08E = SOVBIE LOZ 1 2GSRBS 6L 0GR iE SOC'OEZPY 22566 ©eieodlc  GYOBIE Y TELGYP 001 | GLLwal % @eO7ECG  OZL COBJT  GIF 089'62 EVBEULLLE dX3 TYI0AN ViDL
S ovL Tl coR'siE 05 - arI'P29'LL PU'Eee' L 21264 spzeer'sl  J8cces| TIPBLoel  OLpIE6 ] ] 260249 18 Cz0001'2  GELLOvE  po00cv L. GOJtce o) eiceelc Mopen SN0 18104
696'722'C - - - 696'22T'C 181881 = €8c'e62't 115'v6Y 91£'69 €Lz 6SPPEL'L €€9'vL ObF'EEL 229'28¢ 80E'SHE 95+'96 1Y0-Odd 8
809'6VE’L - - - 809°6¥E'L 996'c - 059'v6Z 299'67 £99°99C TTT'LOE SSY'LSY 60481 112'28 19v'v8 881'48T 0z8'yL pusdx3) [e21ps| SNOBUE|IBOSIN 9T
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - s - - sesuedx3 (00d y¥siy JBYIQ e
€18'892°L - - = £18°89Z°4 [44:5°} - 08g'eTy S6.'v1 66L°6C4 159'1E 99£°'799 €946 zze've €LL'8ET 6v1'10L 659'291 Adelay] |edisAud Zey
594'8€5'E - - - 591'8E5'S 660°L1 - 151'008'L £90'52€ 066'€90°) €02'292 619'69€ 619'9 £38°0€ 629'65 1 105've 181'68 UlieaH ewoH ‘Apoeg BuisinN 0ty
S0L'6ES'Y So0¢ S0E - 00¥'6¢S'y PZL'SEL 1€ 666'9L6 £¥9'v8 281'0€8 ¥2e'6lb 16SZIE'T 2£¥'00L 52z 281949 181768 €L8'15¥ uonepodsuel| gzy
¥SL'516'8 - - - rs1'sis's 021'95 - 821'592 vBY' L2 0r9's1Z 'Sy 09€'588'L 10v'62 S60'9Lp 9z€'1€8 SL0'9¥S'9 eoy'2 lewsq 92v
WYL 187 i34 - S02'621'7 $86'95 - 69p'08 228'1€ 996'L8% 9L 619'140'L 859'pY S6L'ZZ1 G8£'587 188'vov 66¥'$21L wawdinb3 (eo1pap aiqeina vy
GE2'vSL'YL - - - SEZ'PSL'YL ja 78114 06L'€ oaLL'ssz'e vZr'z8l 141'LEE'Z 6/8'GEY 1£6'8€0'8 £68'250 0/5'G6% 171°190'E ZeL'686'T sLz'eze Anoed weneding zzy
911'8p8'L (71} (913 - svZ'ere'L [y VL] 60 +25'560'T 29z7's2l 9zz'812't iz5'62p P6'L0p'E €L2'186 299°20¢ $19'104'1 ¥82'¢69 $50'82¢ Buibew) |eoipay B ‘Aei-X ‘qe ozp
erz'zee'LL 060'58L 060'SLE - 651°202°24 ¥8€'0¥1 Sgs’HL OLE'C0S'Y 9c2'86+ $61°200'S 821421 122'429'9 859'81L €15°9P0'  058'vEE'T £22'160'2 220'9eY Koewseyd gLy
£69'10z'e - - - £69'10Z'8 ¥12°04) 960'z 950'59€'} §96'18 €rLTIE 65€'VE 192'SEL'S 085'1¥1 EIGEZH 122'209't Pra-fit-x4 §10'980' seolaIeg AousBiows 9iy
sesuadx3 |eatpapy S0
TIELEE 6P | PEBL veg's ) ir5°618'eF £SHEH0'C £eo'el 051018 199'189't EBZ08p 6izade L  Yell'ecriz gBGYSey  248°08¢°L 108'RBRE €96°020'8  SER'09S'L 102 |EOTPON 1210,
106'S62'C - - = 106'€62°¢ ZSETTH - ER A 120'89 15¢6 1Z€'9¢6 068°€E 990'08 Z91'8.¢ €892 VETIE S80INI85 UePISAUd - Ddd 1V |
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - sasuadxy |00d sy ueoIsAud ZIy
8€8'£0L'0E - - - 8£8'20.°0€ 08Y'199'2 0zL'e €8E'VEF'D 611'089 982'020'S IBE'9E0'L | £96'168'YL 1£9'168 €19°2E6 §66°LSE'S €S€'G/8'E S96'¥6.2'C uepishug [eusieY Oly
9z9'6L8SL bz8'L yzg'L - z08°718'Sk 129'86Z £18'0L 016'260'2 6EL'€Z1 9EV'LIS’L SE9'LYE 888'8YY'LL 690'62€ 86L'ELS HE'6EZ'T 812'816'% 66¥'8VH'E uepisAyd aien Aewud 80y
uonesuadwon |BoIpapy
0047192'6L SOVZEL e0¥2ce = Theota L Jstvenen - CPOCO8AL  +687288%0 ZOBLO0 LT 406009 L 1 126 Be YOUDZY' L 18E'0pE') JOGMIGO'R Lp1G88E EL LEV DL UOReTIRIARON (8101
FOE'LIY6h - - - POE'LLY Gl 05€'909 - 6Lr'1€2'9 BLT'EYE Y 682°920'4 152'181 142'226'9 S06'vee 298'82% 959°16¢'L S62'910'4 ¥S6'018'€ yionedu| |edsoH-0dd 90v
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - sesuedx3 |0od sy 1endsoH yOv
9EE°05E°00 80¥'ZET 80¥'ZET - 826°L1109 590'962'S - PILTSLLL  9LL'BEET €49°18L'0L  902'6.8') | vpO'POS'EZ 68E'96L°L  0ZS'LLE 106°691'2 5Y'699'C 28L'029'9L wenedy) jeydsoy Zoy
uojiezieydsoq
S3ISNIdX3
D60908 BLE | LLVEPL 1ZY'evl - (L QLLGIT'0L  £06'89 POZLBOBY  OEWLIS L GOT'66YIC  JBLECHS  JOLVIST60L | ZIZVE00  ZOB7ZOVL  U6T6LY6T  LBEBIEPE  vOM'GREE SANNAANGY TVIO0L
06€'605 06€£'605 06€'60S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - aWwodU| JAYIO O£
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - BSUWICOU| JUBLISAAU| GZE
L01'9¢et'y - - - 01°9et'y 866'€2Z - 864'199'7 91£'06%'L {620'18) YOE'6 09r'ze (6c5'0zL)  (Sv6'sZ) (Lv9'eg1) LL0°GY 895'02¢ WBWBeMNeS Ddd 2Z€
$96'959'¢ - - - $96969'c - - 2e8'LE2'E zel'sly - - - - - - - - WBWBNAS OML 1ZE
292928 - - - 292'928 - - e81'68¢ L02'y €16°192 £9€'L 160'p91 - 126'6€ 8€8'LL €20'LY 652's wawoddng SQIv-AIH 02€
918'269'€L - - - 918'269'CL 080'6€9'L - $98'€8Z - €90'91€ - 808'29¢'S - - 808'29¢'s - - Juswoddng vyE0S §1€
££9'66Z'Y - - - £€9°66Z'Y - - - ££9'66Z'Y - - - - - - - - weweddng eydsoH zLg
19228121 - - - 192°281°'L1 056'08€ - 167'258'L £82'958't 90V TrY $05'28 121'085'9 1£9'66E 204'heL 90¥'220'2 $59'59L°1 YE€€£'992°C uogeyde) Odd OLE
€91°766'cLL | 280'VET 2£0'¥ET - oz)'esL'eLr | zev'iest €06'89 OEE'IE'EE  6S5'66L'C 26862606 919%6..'0 | ¥89'L96°'96 0ZV'IOL'S  BEL'LZL'O  BIBU66'LT  EOLVIL'EE  EVZ'0SL'SZ uoyeyded 5o
. SIANNIAIY
V06'LL 10z 102 - €02°L¥L A - 289'6Z LY LIETY 622y €66'29S 16251 05005 8rEEHL S8LEEE 64£'GS SUIN I Ddd ¥ "S0Id
660202 102 10z - 862'20L 15¢'6 SOE'E £0P'0L 9¢e5'e 05017 (27984 708'2€S $STYL ozv'op 9ry'v0l 6ZL'YLE 665'€S SUIN JUN Sdd B "S04d
602152 10Z 10z - 800°162 £ZLLL S08'e 189'6L LIE'Y LIEZY 2622V £68'295 162’51 050'0¢ Qre'cLl SRLEEE 61£'SS SYIO Jequialy (210
61669 10z 102 - £66'869 15V'6 - €0$'0L 9€S'e 080'LY 6Ly 08'2¢5 ¥SZ'vL [:}24T4 9Py'v0L 6Z1L'1E GGG'ES . SUIUOW JequIal 'So1d
oLL'er - - - oiz'er L9t - +82'6 34:] 128" [32°] 6v0'se 280') 089'c 206'8 959'61 +28'L SUIIOW 18QWEN Ddd
S0€'e - = - 50¢'t = S0e'e - - - - - - - - - - SUYIN JqWN Ed4 YHEOS
SYIUOW JoquIdy
SASNIAXT 2 ANNIATY
1el0) 1ejoL 3] PanN |ejoL swop a3aw a3n pon Pen lejoL +Sp WrtvL 4 vl dJN L dJNL> Ajunoy edoasely
Pueig 1ass N0 ypm yum XX vda0s - UoN no yum Yim 4NVLl dNVL dNVL 4ANVL 4NVL dNVL 800 Buipu3 see, |easiy
OW1-1aSS | ONL-1dSS AL 1SS 1SS ‘U] ‘BUOZUY 83104 UlESH

SN
N4

N

dnoio ¥ ..Ix\ qeyyold

154

Page 20 of 31



LSEYION-TI80

112056 € Syt SYE il Gog [Laa4d ¥Ov 012 626 005 259 1 B0 vOP  \B6vZz8) | GTh bhe 0Y6'S6T CE I ) Togvece [ vieste  foeved S507) SNDONT 13N
09t'sal'L - - - 09b'S9L°s 00¥'2L ¥or ¥EL'89E S29°LL €€ZT'8LL 06462 v18'86% 990'8€ 960'28 629'2L1 S19'8eL 80Y'26 sexe) wniwslg
91681 912'€T 201'€2 691 888'S9V'L 8628l 1 ost'L 99t'£89 SLz'Z9L (20€'98) 025'S0L 9£2'18Y (2e6'2) $0Z've £04'602 Slz'88L 16£'2S $axe} JWOOU|
SE'P00'S 120°6€4 250°'8€L 696 P18'598'y z9429¥ £59'2 00L'¥89'Z  9PB'EV9  (2.5°06)  SE9'BLY 066°€LE'} (6e8'ss1)  vpEZE 8122 ¥0L'vv9 697'LL SOXe} 810§0q (SSO)) OU|
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (ss0)) oul Bunesedo-uoN
SE8'700'S 1z0'6Eh 250'8€L 696 vlLa'sas'y z9L 20t €s9'2 Q0L'¥89'7  9v8'erd  (2:5'062)  SE9'GLY 066'cLe’} (6c8'sst)  ve'ze 2L v0L'v¥9 692'LL suonesado wouy ($50|) du
9Re'c/E1S  [esL'en £96'G8 081 ££5°18Z° 1S ZB2'090'C  SLi'p LE9'BEE'GL  GLZIZL'E  IBLGYES  880'0Y8 SZE'LOV'ZZ | LE0ZS0Z  ZZ6'EZVZ  OLBLIY.  VYSELES 298 666 v SISNIENE WIOL _
099°010°C - - - 099°010°C 0EE'281 961°1 122056 0¥S'681 [ [ 20€'68Z'} 86E'86 0S9'VEL E€ v 882'85€ 089'162 dX3 NINQY Vi0L

a0 o

e - sl sod Fond o
ivsuni : 4 S ey ST traian ey G e S SEORENBER et
othsey e - . fossely) B2 e (BRE s el loouiae) I ledeeeE e e leseiient) e oo e

DiienlL . v G0 talnny . - s

i = - s e GebL L gee s Be L ouw dots : Rig e wae Lol eanon Shosuelataiy ol
o , Lo L o . . L . - . o . o e 106§ G e
Lirisee i Shigie e Liviger LT i SREERL T genig e elieg i gl LeEv UL Ere e it Betay G AdBIBn e A e
sos ey - . e e Sinors Givinoemn o e tetes o toenr e ! Ziane Unnsn auioy Aaned Businyg e
Jimsere . lagr cur e gy ssrse g cuoaun o0e on sigwrr omeny o logmesin o leniun o deeyy = L ummondslsg ooy
goterre = = L e = o foog) tavoue arin e sost s nh o omen o
tegigge ite BE e e Seeg iy Gers g2 SRR Lo oA Shopp s e FED BB EmE wm ”muﬁmﬁ SEIN I ERY
bviaine = = = AL BInE benpny sed LiGwE L meome o zproun facvsre i o gy Siaely o oseoon Ao meneting 2oy
lorerez = Sl el Siorerzz Shiwin e BOLEG s e GEvee o laenie formeir o coing Canel I5ee L BBeuy .mgvmﬁwsﬁ,x e
gue9es o gmeee o fopiee e B IIE L ZrEbE oo GoE L dorir o use cigIveL 06707 lgeen Seer o paray Aewiegg oy

Gs9le | eovEbz. EoeLL arcesry terln Bovony

istzuee = i £ : ispesze BEL PR Gau e SR Lobid sanpaee AoUsBISUIT Ot

sesusden lebbey sy

Rk 8 R i B erl . PRI UEL SHLOEL GEyily BELilY Zenie, sSeopussuBmIs g S s s
T o i o S o S = : Helinnn . % B o s R S : = o e | pesUpdia 100 WSk UBDIEAUY Fib
vy Er0S = o L yrvBrgE oHU el fe o i SepunZ ooogplgle auad anger's LEnpgeg o daptiov L ergere A MEImsAUL Rl fy
ouvEcee " i i ogrEss e i qize G 198y Srtiane bt igs's0rz Sryanl Iylaze 90 vhe g LR e c«w»v%%f& ity @mE;m Lop

unnesusdine’ Eely

FALEOEY o S B | T odlenvzaey sy vm.w, 3 m%m:ﬁ&mw

SeL B0 SEpiils EEE R HBRBULLISHGS UL e Gl
i o i S e Mg i e ; = Gy L Gl i S BE e o S Slessundio s usn imndenty bes
Gineeneg augis noniye 4 Sirigegvy ERERRE R oy e R PREREE L BEY vzl FERLPY sl wibeEei nisee oo ] S Jstedu minasy Bae
uohEziendeog
. SHENEaNE
RN L

SRy "

gnrese BECELL 2esEL e o SuosUL sy e
an e . o L % w o & - W o o L : : : Sl s S
Zevon: = S Sletvos) R - el Sned Liigaes Peten Hngs debam ko Ubo e : .
ggiipea i RN SEREER B Fnilergy i SRR Erniaas e ¢ ST i RN S L L & : B : 3 Jeminnaten s e
dEnve [ i i i CEIBSRE 3 5 igee s R o e SR e S s Clipaitadides diniuiaii i
Stpasee e i i i : Brrlesee oogamianniy Gonivien Bl # Biimar oo # Bidghri = watadane yage ore
gsvdeRy - do ggeate o = G . o B w = = = s midson vin
sationg o = S eRgLEoe omw Ok BLEGEYY oRyEsy L Mm: wesie mwm iy e AR woees Oud 04
mgwmm € pate Lois el sty BONE wBliseel oke Az ieegs 9as'tenns mmmmm Hiare mwmwwmm S R e ey
! iR . o’ . . , e 2 G L , SanNTAGY
Sluus - 7 el o Gale = £ Zabe qeC el s i Savie o Baaac TogiEn Slisdim e sag
Loiiar spRi e 5 yo WL e e o e ¥R veusyl gEEly s e .;mdm, SR - S S S B0
bebpar o ep 2 s seoi o o Zigiooianee i ghiely sy e ante : S enaisE mn s
BlugeL T fog SpEEy L ounnoy Shbren s waar PRUE wegGn: prCy iz Zhrce iRty : b ogiuag eng
oBiZL s S Gl ‘Foegey CRERh e $uiE vk Bey pEH &z Lo LagEE yoLG e g SEim ol vl Gad
giy e e R e s e S e . S T = - U Bl vuate
Siauop ool
SIASNIdXS ¥ IONIATH
e1o] lejoL PN PaN lejor swol [Buiuueid[  aaw a3an PaW PO leloL +Sb Wetbl | debbL | dwell | dwi> Auno) aneyon
Pueig |gss o yum Yim XIX vyg0s | Awey - UoN o yum Yum dNVL 4ANVL INVL dANVL 4ANVL INVL 8007 Buipug Jes |edsiy
JWL-1OSS | DWL-IaSS a{3tL YHE0S ISS ISS U] ‘euozIY 2910YD YijesH
N I o

) : ST
. \ %eo,_mf.,? \.n_nmesn_ P e

155

Page 21 of 31



LSERIBT TG -

el ueeEBmap o Ban , HEss . irie o osaees Sevel wniislg
gEzy e o aniwie o LRrEE 185 L e e o0y SEgnit iopinies dgenaaling
&) : e (oesiize) Besse o venl o zerisy . Lepoeon Sove; siojeq (se0l o)

e

Hemopan Bunpiado e
Supimiads Lo fasns ou

Do e e e

e S i
o

mmmm«w& :
izan)

lagnaee!

SoumASIE S L ,
ey vy |
.

e e i e

nioweR e . luswe : : Biog = Bov o tiier ST oty
yeool - = SN o iveor zis - iigdie Sur'l Zeap o oGmez leres 181 tezy GiohL o oeAzEe o e m%m ﬁmﬁuﬁ Snoslisieon 98y
Piiey : SR 2 2 HIETAE S X D 5 i Gy " i ; , i i s Do LA b SRR \ w@w&@&wm 100 ¥ B0 Pob
sov'es S el Huse e e e sere o degee osie . dwre ADZL ke Easg Adesiy eosiyd oo
f98. 061 . L dsepegl e E vBOLT o ognman o odmev . daoear veEdLdies itk Oige Lieer wion Koed Bus i ois |
geRpELL jwe on e ae b e e s e e vBEEL LsGrie towgiz oo uonELndsUel ok
ivzezg - i e ivzers pgtze - iwen e ez SELR o levms dfret o oanvs Esdany g mueg ozy
Lossmor e {ie S segaee & SERGN N aEsE L Ry iR ieies o leoiw o oige Base ey E&Ex&m Do BluEnn voy
Lo e = CdsogEiLy tis vpERen o gme e e e Aioed fusiieding 22p
sozwL o 1 e } s02wvL S geiis Ehiue coive o Dubely m@mmﬁwx@-x e e
noerEL ey BowL CodmeimEl deavrwee o wieese amg JJB08E o mleel epgene | Jebol o ranes 006 Lr doin g - Aoy uip
Lovowon - = N LoRopoene b esoaer Ghe Lo omRGGer L bmodl o seues 10gE emeier | zegsl acns g8l oo . éﬁ@m Aousbiowg apy
S e $esusdxgjesiven IS
988'092'S |- - - 998'092' | L8269 vSZE \Y2660y 296692 ZeC I8y 89816 | J602SLC | SYBL6C  OvG4BZ  0GOSID  IBGBIS  S/T60L dwiog [edIpei 12101
928°86v - - - 928°86% 90204 - €209l bS¥'/8L  G8S P LI} 189'8L 689'L €29%61 6vZSL 12502 66551 $821M19G UeRIsAUd - Ddd vLY
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - [4%4
L19'65e'e - - - 119'65€'C 859'205 866 164'€L9 8EF PO +98'19€ L2€°1L 8/8've9‘'L | /SHvEZ S9€E'v0Z €6€'919 8r6'c9e S10'99€ uepisiud eudjoy oLt
ovv'zov'L - - - [ 42424 £48'6Y 959'2 126'602 8921 88'VLL vii'eL 8£5'886 666'GS 8G5'€9 80Z'2¥Z [498 74 199'22¢ uepisyd eie) Alewld g0y
uonesuadwo) [edpap
7529299 | iveY [ = 1E129'8 | 1BI6L - G0SZ887L  PIB'SES  IZvOly  0SGG6) ] 062GEB'C | 01S€c  BGZBOZ  O80605  900F8L  0L06GE9} uoyezijepdsoy (2101
8L'v6¥'L |- = - 18'v6v'L | 16162 - 0v.'0EL Z6Y'68E €S8V 9ig'is | esi'vez £99'91L L£2'12 02E'VZ 09%'9t 109'60+ 1uanedu) [eNdsoH-Odd 90t
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - sasuadxg |00d ysiy [endsoH Ot
S9P'i8L's Wwe'v Wwe'v - ¥TS'9LL'S ¥8€'292 - §92°904't zi8'6V1 899'49¢ veL'eet 1091992 | £v6'902 2Z0'18L 95E'SYS 90Z'8¢EL 690065+ jusnedu) eydsoy
S3SNIdX3
665'085°1Z | 02929 029'29 - 899'C0§'LZ | €LE'908'L  Zv66 V884210 OEL v19'L  99908S0c  12LE15 | ZGLEIE6 | 606266 LZ0CLh t  JSLZB0E  2/BLEVZ  BOOBSOEZ SHNNIAZH V101
(X7 005°LE 005'LE - rLEY 168'L - 18'2 961'9 €66 998°¢ 169'6Z - - 69¢€'LL - et 8W02U) 1BYI0 0EE
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - SLUODU| JUSLUISBAU| GZE
ore'sez’t |- - - o16's9z’L | vve'ez - Lo'vee  ezv'ees  (evz'or)  (0z6) Lz9'0¢ 9.€£'6 885'gy (L8's8) Le5've yr6's Juswaees Jdd 22t
(569's€) - - - (569°SE) - - 616'vLL (790G - - - - - - - - uawianes OML 1Z€
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - luswaddng SAIV-AIH 02€
€81'G66'L - - - £8.'666'L ozr'sye't - 859'8¢ Lyt'9 $ZE'6L Lop'9 60Z'64S - - 602'6.45 - = wswalddng wya0s SLe
z9€'10€ - - - 29¢°'10¢ - - - 29¢€'L0E - - - - - - - - juswaiddng |endsoH ZLg
L£9'580'C - il - 1£9'680'Z L16'sy - £16'866 T60'LLS [ i4 S88°0L 8EE'LLY 192'6¢ 055'L6 STO'S9L 9ve'aL £58'26 uogeyded Odd 0LE
vo6‘a28'sk | 0Lbie OLL'LE - veL've'sL | zag'88E  zvE'S 0882 0EZ'6GY  POL'LLO'Z  66V'E6y | 262'002'8 | BZE'PPS  €66'886  ZSE'LBE'T  6BLOEE'T  0B8'PYE'L uoneyded Sog
S3INNIATH
62529 1z 12 - 265'29 2zl - 968'6 9EL z9z'e vZE'E ZLS'EP 09s'L L6¥'9 9¥g'0L £96'02 258 SUYIN IO Ddd ® "s0Md
pe9‘eS 12z iz - £09'8S bLO'L 285 o0zg'e 805 8zZl'e ¥5Z'e LeL'or SsY'L 086'c €68'6 1L9'6} zeL'e SUIN JIN Sdd ¥ 'S0Md
164'€9 &Z L2 - P0L'€9 228'L [k 968°6 9EL z9z'e $ZE'E ZIS'ey 095'L 16v°9 9v9'0L £96'0C 258'€ SYIUOW soquialy Jejol
z80'8s P14 iC - $60'85 y19°L - 0z8's 805 AN vST'e LEL'OY SS'L 086°S €686 1£9'6L ceLE SYIUOW Joquialy "soid
L6v'y - - - 16V 802 - 9L0°t 82z Vel 0L 18L'z sot 1S €52 262’k ozt SUIOW 49qWSH Idd
765 - - - 265 - 255 - - - - - - - - - - SUIN 19w Sd VHEOS
SYJUOW Joquuaiy
SISNIdX3 B INNIAIY
€301 IejoL PaN PaN 1ejoL Swol [Buluueld g3IW a3wn P PoN Ie30L +5¥ Wiyl [ dotpl | JWELL | dWL> Aquno) ofeAeN
puesg 1ass | o ypm m XIX Vi80S | Alwed | -uoN o uum | yum 4ANVL 4ANVL 4NVL 4ANVL 4ANVL ANVL B800Z Bupu3 128 [e3sly
OWL-1ass [JWi-lass|  enit vHE0S 1SS 1SS *5U| ‘BUOZMY 82104D YieaH

' / Vs
N
//\\ . dnoig V_w \\:nmCEn_ @ S

156

Page 22 of 31



LSEPIOI-TIB0

£60'267'9 169'052 165062 ot YOV LP29 C0'528) 936'2 €12'881'Z 225'669 {0L6°281) 652'9Z¢ 269°'Lb0'Y [4:24:74] 2r2'sey Z92'999'4 155'€20°2 {Sy1'cov) (56071 GWOON 1aN
828'99¢'7 - - - 8.8'990'Z ZEVLYL [473 959'885 296'26 9€4'96C yoL'€L 9€6°292°} 610'9L 11896 €15'08Y ¥ST'1SE €18'482 Ssaxe} wniwalg
69Y'68¢' 215816 168°LS - TLY'IEE'E (9E5°28) <hr 2L59°ES6 020's22 90Z'v0C 8EE'ES| 119'Z88°L 126'28 96T'sle S91'92L 191'6€2 8ZL'6LL Saxe)} slooy|
rr'ereE'zL 8p5'Z0E 8¥5'20¢€ - ¥68°'S¥0°ZL (v 098) ves'y 9ZS'0EL'E ¥55°'810"L ZEVELE 104'259 668'981°L 2eL'682 S16'2v6 005'6¥8'2 996'¢91'€ {roz'9s) $9XB) 910499 ($50]) OU|
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - {ss0|) ou) Buyeiado-uon
Wwr'eve'zL 8P5°Z0E 8¥5'20E - 68'SY0'ZL (2v¥'098) sy 925'0eL'e ¥S5'810°'L cEL'ELE 102'259 668'981'2 zei's8e S16'iv6 005'5v8'C 996'294'E (roz'9q) suonesado woyj {ss01) oul
191°2EL' V0L | 9B9'ZP 999'2p - G6H'680'Y0L 292'006'L  PS8'0E $26'096'¥2  SP21EG'E 1GE'968'EL  6IP'EEL'Z | 62£'628°LE [ OBL'SEL'E  PLO'CES'E  100'65L'8L  ZSEOBICL  2ZTZIOCL SISNIIXT TV10L
£89'948'8 - - - £99'91€'9 §12 08¢ OYe L BBZ'EZY L 9 E25C 180°194 €E6 881 0LETITE ZSE'98L  GOY'0ST RLE'EO1 | 96806 BLLEYL dX3 NINTY TVIOL
86¥'66L°16 999'Z¥ 999°29 - TEQ'TIL'LB ZS6'925’'L  v16'82 969'LE€0'EZ  62€'BZ'EC 061 600C). D8V ¥OG 2 | SO0 0L 8F | 626 L¥6 ¢  BYG cal ¢  600Le60L UG E/ZEC).  CYYeSsZl dXd IVOIAIN LIN IVL0L
(tsz'0gc) - = = (15z'0ce) () (€5 Evizeh) ©276) ri'es) rov'e) (Lzvac1) (268°6) {1ze'9l) (£00'99) BSHER) (ovD Raen Aued piuL zpv
(921'2) - - - (a21'2) - - (£59'6) 18Y'Z - - - - - - - - oouRINSURY-Odd LY
(628'5£€'S) - - - (628'5£8'S) 5€9 - (600'zes'e) (zov'eed)  (gzi'ezi’t)  (so6'ee2)  (51¢'2z9) pL2'8 (13-4 (£20'991) (282'61) {rog'15p) aouBINSUIRY Ot
1§88
Y09'8ZP c01. 9092y 990'2¢ - 8C1'99¢'€04 QEG'LZG L  9.6'8Z S0L°469°87  GZLLZL'Y 9Z0'600°v)  GEO'P09'Z FLLBOSL'8Y (OPY'CHE’Z  OLP'A6ZC  998/ZZLL 160 LPECL €66 0L EL dX3A JYIAQIN TWLOL
zeeozy'ee  leseee 6LECE - 996'955'4C BE0000 L GOSIL  CroGapOL  Ze0der §ieTeeg  Goo7e6 T IBLIeLBL 84006+ 6416871  GOGVE0Z  0egroid  CORGHL L JEOIPOW JOGICT 1BTOL
vEE'EE8’} - - - ves'EeR'L 650201 - SL9'E68 €1E'662 lev'ey 8eL's 78L'08Y 958'0¢ $89'€8 S65'26C LESOLE SiLi'gL 18YI0-0dd 8EY
186086 - - - 186'0E6 612 - 06v°L61 1050 62¢'162 SE9'6EL 108°882 18V'9€ v8L1E 55628 6VE'LOE €29 uadx3 [eoipay sNOBUEJROSIN SEY
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -~ - sasuadx3 j00d dsiy Y0 ey
1Zs'eLT - - - 1Z5'€LT QY'Y - 5288 842'9 +ze'sl 286'L oLiLvi £00'9 662'02 8561 15208 0112 Adesay) |edaishud zev
212'89¢E'} - - - L12'89E"L ovo'LL - 967'189 £€58'0S 000'€0€ €10'654 §50'251 €16'99 68v'ZL 865'05 89Z'0L ovL'gl uiiean suioH 'Ajoe BuisinN 0t
089'v66'Z 80z 802 - TLY'PE6'T £56'88 - £16'LE8 £28'vZ +29°45S VER'ELL SOT'LLEL 005'v9 zsL'ovl 298'LZS BES'ELY zzs'olL uoneuodsuell 8zy
g8'0.9'e - - - 1€8'01p'c 882'02 - 690'L9L £La'LL $Z6'c6 173 181'051' vig'oL Z6Y'10Z 98e'zie 118'¢66'7 26T lewag 9zt
62£'v90'L €91 €9l - 91Z'v90'1 26222 - 085's2e S90°EL 9EL'20Z 716'6E $22'086 6sv'ee 6LL'4L 112'604 LOv'2E2 $86'Sy wawdinb3 jeapaly 8|qeina 2t
262'126'8 - - - 262'126'8 09€'16% ¥80'€ 869'POE'Z 116921 £¥S'TSS't 1+8'002 pS8'662'y 60LP¥E 12)'e8E 900'€L2'Z  BSS'6Y6 #S0'062 Ayoe yusneding zzv
9LL'SIL'S - - - 9LL'SLL'S 08L'ess  (282) YrS'reE'L 60€'99 166'6€9 625'2LL SYE'SYE'T S6E'81Z TL8'v8L 9E0'ZEV'L LZe'hoE 122181 ew| ([eapapy g ‘Aei-X ‘qeT 0zr
LIS'BL9'8 886'2¢ 886°CE - £25'sv9'8 6LY'9LL 80TV 912'199'C 195°€6 96Z'V0L'T 649'29 192°065°C 9€T 1LY 000°0LY 800'SYS'L 265866 ozy'est Aoewleud gL+
P6Z'806'C - - - P6Z'806'C 8vT'L0L 819'C S64'656 £6L°1L2 8GL'0LY S¥9'gL LE2°96E°T 989'69 926°'602 Sbi'v56 209'798 £LE'€08 s9oIMeg Aousbiawg 9lLb
sasuadxg [ESIPa JOYI0
| sd5'vee'52 [ 106'e - VBl ‘z68'sr PEOGLET e 880'YY9'G SYEEL 2280592 BLE2E8 (TZeavier | 1ov 208 ZiL'e88 vI2Z80'S 094 VEY'Y 818089 MO ZOIPOW 1210 ],
180'225'L - - - 180'225°1 26508 - 9Z0'6v9 0,820t Z6E°LE L0z'e 000°0LY SLLLL 19826 968'95L L1821 60901 Sa0IaS UBPISAUd - Ddd b
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - fasuadx3 oo ysiy uewisiyd Zidy
998'v00°21 - - - 998'v00°24 2¢e166'L  960'Z ©66'5EL'C 0zz'elz OvE'SSL'T  60K'8OY L2v'ose’e £v1°908 9LO'EVS L$5'109'C (% 41rd 199'212°1 ueRisAyd jeusey oLy
8EL'TIE'S 10S'T 105’z - 182'0LE'8 0EL'E0Z L1L8°6 +90'1.92°1 §S8°'LYy 060'v99 $92'591 95£856'S €61'ShL [475::74 SE9'ETE} BEL'YYE'T  BIY'9S8'S uepishud aien Alewud gov
uonesuadwo) [eapay
TBLELE'LE 8089 808’9 - 086 906°LE GoeoeL e VLIELYI'B 8L 948'C 166°066'F cegeoz | fezlosoct [zivoLe L LLESS GOL'08Y'Y LTrlL EIE VT e HEHAsoH {Rj0 )
T58'66Y'L - - - z58'660'L SZE'E8l - Ziv'olo'e 9652l t £L€'L9€ hgr 6¥6'250' €05'¥Z1 929'¥61 OLY'ELS 9/1'¢ee vET 166 juanedu jejdsoH-Odd 90t
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - sasuadx3 [00d sy |e)dsoH yOv
ove'elv'oe 908'9 908'9 - PEL'LOP'0E 0Es'IvS'E  — Z96'9€9'9 251'256 819'629'v 869'8v0'L | PLL'L6S'EL ¥16's8L S8v'8SY S6Z'LL6'E L¥6'8L6 6EL' 262 Juanedul |eldsoH Zov
uoleziejdsoy
SISNIdX3
€09'08v'9d L | ¥iZ'SVE vi2GYE - 69C'0CL 94 GILOV0 4 BIEGE 015'1 62’82 66L'69G'% $G6 606 €L 021 807 2291888 | ZOB'EZY'E 626'0BY'Y  L0Z'G00'IZ  812'0S€'9l  BL0'B85'CH SANNIATN TVIOL
5L'e8L LS2'€8L LS1'€8L - - - - - - - - - - - - - - BWO3U[ JAYI0 0EE
b - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - BLUODU} JUBLUISBAUY| GZE
(880°LOL'L) - - - (880'1.0L°4) 8yL'sEL - (90t'c22} (geL'z6p) 66561 (LEV'CE) (098°605) viLL'ovL) {88r'12} (9EL'L91) (19z'851) 6€L’LT wswaes Ddd 2z¢
v8L'90¢'}L - - - $82'90€"'L - - L8 120'G9p - - - - - - - - JuaWBINeS OML 12€
S0£'62Z - - - S0£'622 202'v - 9L9'vEL 229'2) 5SSyl (veL'ss) Siv's (250'1) 250'L 6L50L (615'01) siv's wewalddng SAIY-AIH 0Z€
062'82¢'6 - - - 06Z'8LY'6 98i'gLL's  ~ 186'8S1 - 8EL'EEL - §9¢'290'y d - $8€'290'7 - - Juswalddng vyg0s Sie
SEI'PIZ'E - - - SEL'PLZ'Z - - ~ sel'viziz - - - - - - - - juswalddng jendsoH zi€
sLrl'018'01 - - - sLL'olg'oL 980°42Z - 1091929 i96'08L'L  €5G'€0Z LLIB'PY 0962687 68v'LL) vaL'eor LyL'LLOL 166'99% £00'068 uoyended Odd 04L€
zpo'sse'es 25¢'191 Lst'19L - S85'961'€6 869'LOS°L  BLE'SE  E€86°ZLILZ  2YE'SBLL  9EQLOP'EL  PLEIOP'E | pIE'LSE'ZS | 65'€BE'E  LY9'vPL'y  269'920'0L  L00'ZS0'9L  L9Y'069'ZH uonepded Goe
SINNIATA
9LY'6IY ovl oVl - 9EE6LY €918 - £6€'85 962¢C 1E661 vZ6'eC §29°20¢ £v0°6 L€87CE 15082 2957191 8EL'9C SYIN J9W Ddd B "sord
£60'26¢ ori orl - £56'96¢ 9L 9227 892'LS 8Lt zeesl €95°ze ZEL'26Z 195'8 S8L°08 209'€L 889°€SH Lv'sT SUIN UG Sdd B "S04d
zos'izy ovi vl - 295'L 2P £91°8 922'T 26€£'8S 962'T 1£6'61 ¥26'22 §Z9'L0¢ £¥0'6 1€8'2€ 150'82 295'191 8£1'92 SHIUOW JOGLUAW @101
198'v6E (123 ovl - 1zL'v6e 1L - 892°LS 8LL'L 